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The Hospital Authority (HA) is a body corporate in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Its functions are stipulated in Section 4 of the
Hospital Authority Ordinance (Chapter 113).

BREERBER)ATARITHRENZERR - ERESHRETRZEN

F 113 E(BREERMRM) EMHEK -

The Hospital Authority is responsible for:
B b B B AVEKEE ¢

@ Managing and controlling public hospitals
EEREEQNMERR

@ Advising the Government of the needs of
the public for hospital services and of the
resources required to meet those needs
ARARE DN BERRBENERRENZE
ERAMFNER > OBUTFRHES

@ Managing and developing the public
hospital system

EERBRAVERZRS

@ Recommending to the Secretary
for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of
hospital services by the public
RAREABERREENNE
A aRYRELEREERER
BENBER

¥ Establishing public hospitals
BRVANYA- {5

@ Promoting, assisting and taking part in the
education and training of persons involved
in hospital or related services
B ~ YRS HEEBRMERSER
RRIEHIA L
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Vigion, Miggion and Valueg

Bl = Lo R 1B1E

= Helping People Stay Healthy
MiSSion %R}%% 45”\1&%‘%
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Values

= T 7(' \{’1 ETEL = Deople-centred
Vision Bor
2 WA %%
K = e
Healthy People glro eggiona
P &2 I' ervice
Happy Staff BELE
B IR Committed Staff

Trugted by the WEEE
Comrmunity Teamuork
CSE BER

The Hospital Authority has revamped its corporate vision, mission and values (VMV) in
September 2009, reflecting aspirations of the Board, the management and staff in fostering a
healthy community. Guided by the new mission of “Helping People Stay Healthy’, the Authority
collaborates with community partners to strive for continued success and works towards the
vision of “Healthy People, Happy Staff and Trusted by the Community”.

BEEMN 2000 & 0 AEITHEES  FHRROEE  URREEEAS EEERES
FHRERBENHE - £ [HRET RRZE] OFEHIIET  BERILEBAET
S - EANEE  BE [TRER  STHL - AREHE] WES -
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Corporate Strategies
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The Hospital Authority aims to achieve its corporate VMV by adopting six
strategic intents as outlined in the HA Annual Plan 2014-2015:

BERKRM 2014201 FETFFTES AN ANHEER KK - B2 L
MBS - Ea R0 EE

[

Allay staff shortage
and high turnover
FEATARS
BERK 4

Better manage
growing service

demand
Ensure adequate e
resources for ¥ A28 32 B 2%

meeting service AR5 % &

needs
FERB AT RER
RAR S

Enhance

corporate
governance
fin58,

TEEH

Enhance partnership
with patients and
community
05552 5 A Fo AL B B
75 1¢ iM%

Ensure service
quality and safety

RRATE 2 REE

Under the above strategic intents and 25 strategies, the Authority formulated 120 corresponding
programme targets for 2014-2015, of which all were achieved in the year, save for 11 slightly
deferred. The Head Office and Cluster Reports in Chapter 6 describe major achievements in
these areas.

RIE LA REE S % 25 EREER - BERFL 2014-2015 FEFIR] 7 120 RS EZ
BRT 11 IBEEAKEN  2HNFRTH - EAELARSERBRBRATEERNERFE
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Appointed as Chairman of
the Authority on 1 December
2013

Clinician-scientist
specialising in spinal and
paediatric orthopaedics
MN20135F 12 A1 H
BEERBEERERF
BRI RN R BRI
FRIR BB IR R

(up to 30.11.2014)
(E%&2m4¢77ﬁ305)

Appointed on 1 December
2008

Solicitor and owner of a law
firm

R2008F 12 A1H
BZE

A R AR E
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Appointed on 1 December
2012

Former human resources
director of a listed public
transportation group

R2012% 1241 H
ERATE
MABREERAL
fag

£
AR

Director of Health
HEEER

Appointed on 13 June 2012

Board Member in capacity as
Director of Health of Hong
Kong Government

M 20124 6 A 13 A
BZR{E
NEBBFREEER
S EERERR

KE

Appointed on 1 April 2013

Dean of the Faculty of
Medicine of the Chinese
University of Hong Kong

M20134F 4 A1 R
EEE
EERNARBEEM

&

Appointed on 1 April 2014

Chief executive officer of a
marketing, brand building
and event management
company
RN20144 4 411
BEE
TISHERE - METR KR
HEEEARIEE

Appointed on 1 December
2009

Engineering consultant
and managing director of
a consulting engineering
company

M2009F 12 A1 H
BZRE

AR A2 A 2 A R A2 A
NRE=E

Appointed on 1 April 2011

Chief executive officer of a
listed company
R2011F4 /18
BT

TR ETIRARE,



Appointed on 1 December
2010

Chief corporate
development officer of
a listed power supply
company
M2010F12 A1 H
BERE
FHENRAREER
B

Appointed on 1 December
2010

Former secretary general of
the Legislative Council
M2010%12H1H
EBRE
SESMERAMER

Appointed on 1 December
2013

Executive director of a listed
bank
M2013F 12 A1 H
EERE
EHRITHITES

Appointed on 1 December
2012

Solicitor and partner of a law
firm

M20126 12 A1 H
EZE

2R K RN S5 PR
aBRA

Appointed on 1 April 2013

Certified public accountant
and former chief executive
officer of the Financial
Reporting Council

R201344 518
BT
SMEHE - BBERS
BT,

(Passed away on 17 April 2015)

(R

2015 F 4 A 17 AFEH )
Appointed on 1 December
2011

Partner of a garment
manufacturing and trading
company

R2011 ¥ 1281 H
ER{E

HXRFEEA

Appointed on 1 December
2013

Accountant and Adjunct
Associate Professor in the
Faculty of Business
Administration of the
Chinese University of
Hong Kong

MN2013F 12 A1 H
EEE
SETRIRBBFXKE
TREEERRERHR

Appointed on 1 December
2012

Chair Professor of Nursing
and Director of Nethersole
School of Nursing of the
Chinese University of
Hong Kong

R2012F 12 A1 H
BT
VS ON Y I i 1
S8 B K &
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Deputy Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury

HEEBRERBRAINER

Appointed on 2 April 2012

Representing Secretary for
Financial Services and the
Treasury of Hong Kong
Government

R20129F 4 A2 H
BZAT
REBEBFMBEH R
EBRRE

Appointed on 1 August 2013

Dean of Li Ka Shing Faculty
of Medicine of the University
of Hong Kong

R201358 A 1R
BEZME
BERRBFRBABERKE

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015

Appointed on 1 December
2011

Deputy chairman and
managing director of a listed
bank
R2011F12 A 1H
BEE

LARITRIEERES
ZEI 2«( }%

Chief Executive, HA
B EHE BT T AR,

Appointed on 8 November
2010

Board Member in capacity
as Chief Executive of the
Hospital Authority

20104 11 A 8 A
EET

BB IR BT TERAREL
ENHEEREER
K8

Appointed on 1 April 2012

Chief of Service of
Department of Paediatrics
and Co-ordinator (Clinical
Service) of Prince of Wales
Hospital

R2012% 4 A1 BEEE

Bk R AR B2 Bm?ﬁﬂ*ﬁ?ﬁ
FEREBGE

Appointed on 1 April 2013

Specialist in haematology
and haematological
oncology and assistant
medical superintendent of a
private hospital

R2013 F 4 A1 BERE

M&&Mﬂﬁ BER
BANILKERERE

Appointed on 1 December
2014

Engineer and Member of
the Legislative Council
representing the engineering
functional constituency
N2014F12 A1 H
EZE

TREMREEES
RETIERR



Appointed on 1 December
2009

Director and general
manager of a commercial
bank

2009 12 A1 H
BRE
RITERFRBILIE

Appointed on 1 December
2010

Director of a listed public
transportation group and
founder of a listed media
company

M20105F 12 A1 8
ELA{E
ERAKEGRIBESEK
ERERHERTAIMA

Appointed on 1 April 2011

Appointed on 1 April 2011

Chief executive of a listed Dean of the Faculty of Health

real estate group and Social Sciences of the
RN2011E4 818 Hong Kong Polytechnic
R University
R ETRER R20115481H
= BE(E
ERRIASBARK
Har k&

Appointed on 1 December Permanent Secretary for Food
2012 and /—/ea/z‘ﬁ (Health)
RYREGEREINER

Solicitor and a law firm

consultant (ffA ) inted 9 5€pte be
° ppointed o mber

Board Member in capacity
as Permanent Secretary for
Food and Health (Health) of
Hong Kong Government

MN2011F9HA9H
BZRE

NERBRRY RELER
BEEMER @) ST
TR ERRKE

R M K 2 AD = S PR R

BREEBFR 20142015
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Corporate Governance -y

WA T 2%

The Hospital Authority (HA) is a statutory body
established under the Hospital Authority Ordinance
(Cap.113) in December 1990, responsible for
managing all public hospitals in Hong Kong. The HA is
accountable to the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (HKSAR) Government through the Secretary for
Food and Health.

EREER(BER) ERE(ZERESEREMN) R e
1990 £ 12 B KA EER EEEERBHNA =
VER  TEBAYEELERBENEBEITHR %
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Principles

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for and commitment to
corporate governance principles and recognises that the Authority’s
stakeholders expect the highest standards of performance and
accountability and conduct.

Hospital Authority Board

Under the HA Ordinance, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR appoints
members to the Authority Board. The 2014-15 Board consisted
of 28 members, including the Chairman. Details are listed in
Appendix 1. Membership of the Authority comprises 24 non-public
officers, three public officers and one principal officer (the Hospital
Authority Chief Executive). Apart from the principal officer, other
members are not remunerated in the capacity as Board members.

The Authority Board meets formally about 12 times a year and any
other times as required. In 2014-15, it met 15 times and considered
over 140 agenda items, covering an array of important matters in
leading and managing HA, including policies, strategies, planning
and development, operations and performance, resources
management, management and control, risk management,
contingency preparedness, governance etc., as well as the progress
of the Review of HA which was launched by the Government in
August 2013. In addition, seven Board papers covering urgent
matters were circulated for approval between meetings.

I:"u-' AT .
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BERASHOTEROENERERET
ERYE FEMRRTIHAERSERE
WHERH B THBE R RN B AR o

BEREERAE

RE(BREERGH)  BERASEKEH
EBEITHETHRREMED ° 2014-15 F
B REERE28 £ (BEXRE) - F5EH
R 1 REF 24 ARFLKE = A
ROABE s —ABRETETBRAB(BERT
HAR) - RZITBAEN - AR SR
BEREN S0 M EBEAHH -

REEEEHEY N2 ALREE NEEE
SEHERIEE - £2014-15 FF - KEH
B 15 X &% BEEBB 140 EERESE
HEEHEERERRERNEESEE &
FEECR  RiE - HEIRERE  EFERRR
BEREE EERRE RREE EgE
& BR% LURBUFE 2013 £ 8 ARA
MEERRTNER  IMFESH 2B
EHARNBRLOXY  RERSEH -

s
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Corporate Governance

HisEs

The HA Board had implemented a number of enhancements on
corporate governance structure and processes, following the
recommendations of a comprehensive review of governance
practices completed in 2012-13 (Phase 1 of the Corporate
Governance Review). These enhanced practices, together with
relevant provisions of the HA Ordinance, the Standing Orders as well
as the various principles and corporate policies adopted by HA on
corporate governance at the Board level, were consolidated in the
Code of Corporate Governance Practices of the HA Board (the Code).
The Code aims to provide appropriate structures and processes
ensuring that a robust governance and accountability framework
is in place, guiding members of the Board and committees in
performing their roles and responsibilities. The Code was approved
by the Board in April 2014.

With concerted efforts of all in HA in enhancing corporate
governance in the Authority over the years, the HA Board received
the Directors of The Year Award 2014 under the Statutory/Non-
profit-distributing Organisation — Boards category and a special
recognition of Excellence in Board Diversity from the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors in December 2014. These honours and
recognitions indeed gave great encouragement to HA Board
members, the executive management and all staff members of
HA in contributing to good corporate governance of this sizable
statutory organisation.

HFE 2012-13 FE TR EBER B
HMBEARNE—BR) TRENER
BERAEEITT —RIEK - REEE
REBRER - BENEEEER (BRE
BRGH) NEBEKY BRERUREE
REAESEMRMANERRAUNBE B
HERA (BIREERASEBEEAAD
(=PRI ) o (SFAD FIE T EE LB
BF BREERE —EERNESNIME
EE ABERASNBTZEEHNER
Higs|  UEBTHERSEME - (SFAD R
2014 F 4 AEAXSBBARERK -

BERLT—O BAORAKBERK
F-BERAEZN2014F12 9B
EEAESTEERR 204 EEHRLES
®— ZE/FIEBMABEASESSARE
BHREFEZLEMETR - BERPK
ERE - THABNFEEI—EBERHAE
EREREAEEEREVERER  R1E
MARRBTIRERNSE -
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Board Committees

For optimal performance of its roles and exercise of powers, the
HA Board has established 11 functional committees: Audit and
Risk Committee, Emergency Executive Committee, Executive
Committee, Finance Committee, Human Resources Committee,
Information Technology Services Governing Committee, Main
Tender Board, Medical Services Development Committee, Public
Complaints Committee, Staff Appeals Committee and Supporting
Services Development Committee. Membership of the committees,
their terms of reference and focus of work in 2014-15 are outlined
in Appendix 3.

Hospital Governing Committees

To enhance community participation and governance of public
hospitals, 32 Hospital Governing Committees (HGCs) have been
established in 40 hospitals and institutions in accordance with
the HA Ordinance. These committees are listed in Appendix 4.
In 2014-15, the 32 HGCs conducted a total of 130 meetings.
They received regular management reports from Hospital Chief
Executives, monitored operational and financial performance of the
hospitals, provided policy guidance on hospital management, and
participated in human resources and procurement functions, as
well as hospital and community partnership activities. Linkage and
interactions between the Board and HGCs were strengthened, and
feedback collected from individual committees, where appropriate,
were conveyed to HA Head Office for consideration.

AREETHNEES

AHPBERASARBERRRITER
B RERLT 11 BEERES  BFEF
AREREEZEE  RSEEREZRS

g EABRRBERZEES - hARE
ZEE  BERBBRREES  ARRFE
B BELRZEERZERBRRES
2o BEEG 201415 FENKERE - B
FEEEE N TAERER BT8R 3

BiREREEE
AREMESHRMEAVERES  BER
7 (BIREERFRG) £ 40 BB HERK
NT REBREREZES - FEERNMIER4 o
201415 EF R ABRERZESH
BHRE10XREE FHERTHRAENE
HEERE  ERBREEFENMEIEN
KRB EEBREERXR  WSHRAHER
REBIE URBRREENBFHBES
B o BERCNREERASHERERE
ESMERNEE  TKHRERERZEEN
BER EBEEBRTELEZANEERZE -

BREEBFR 20142015
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Corporate Governance

HisEs

In addition, the Manual on the Operation of Hospital
Governing Committees (the Manual) was updated,
consolidating various corporate governance policies and
practices adopted by the HA Board and the HGCs over
the years, including the initiatives of Phase 2 Corporate
Governance Review completed at cluster/hospital level in
2013-14. The Manual, which was approved by the Board in
July 2014, aims to provide guidance to HGC members in
discharging their responsibilities.

Regional Advisory Committees

In order to provide HA with advice on the healthcare needs for
specific regions of Hong Kong, the Authority has established
three Regional Advisory Committees. These committees and their
respective membership are listed in Appendix 5. Each Regional
Advisory Committee meets four times a year.

In 2014-15, the Regional Advisory Committees discussed a number
of matters including HA's healthcare manpower situation, the pilot of
General Outpatient Clinic Public Private Partnership Programme in
three districts, the winter surge response plan, preparedness against
communicable diseases, the results of the 2013 hospital-based patient
experience and satisfaction survey, cross-cluster new case bookings
at specialist outpatient clinics, etc. The committees were also
briefed on the progress of the annual plans and targets of individual
clusters as well as various service enhancement programmes.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015

tboh - BERBET T (BRERZE]EETF
) ((FM))  GEBEERASNEREAZ
EEZFREMN S ERBE LR FERE -

LUK R FE 2013-14 FE 5T R VB4, B P /B
BB E AR (MEBE AR E R T
EEBEMBETHIER - (FM) BERER
ZEgREIRMHES  UMEBITHRE - 1
MR2014F 7 PEREBBRER -

BEARNEES
PRRGEHBRREEENER - BER
RI=EEHENERS - i 5 HEE=
BEESERAMEEE - SBYBNEEY
SEBHIREE -

£ 2014-15 FE  —AEREZAZESHR
TTRZEE  GEBEERNEBEAFRR
ZEtENEBRMZ ARERELEST
g2 RETRBRKES GBS - E2%
FEE A4 ~ 2013 F1E BB A LR K AR
BrEERAENER ERMZIEBRTE
HE - ZESTEEBERIBAN TEEE
RMEE > URZERERETE -




Executive Management

The executive management team of the HA is outlined in
Appendix 2(b). Executives are charged by the HA Board with the
responsibility to manage and administer day-to-day business
and operations of the HA. To ensure that the management can
discharge duties in an effective and efficient manner, the HA Board
has set out clear delegated authority, policies and codes of conduct.
The Board also approves an annual plan prepared by the executives
in accordance with the Board's direction. Regular executive reports
on the progress of agreed performance indicators and targets are
presented to the Board.

Under the powers stipulated in the HA Ordinance, the Authority
determines the remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment for all employees. Remuneration packages of
executive directors and other senior managers are devised
to attract, motivate and retain high calibre individuals in a
competitive talent market. Remuneration packages of all senior
executives are considered and endorsed by the HA Board through
the Executive Committee.

TTHEE

BisE 2(b) METHRERERWEE - FITH
AERBERASREEERMTEERN
AESBEREE - BRAEEBATREANR
HWEITHE  KRSCBEREIIHRTESD - K
RERBRTER - KREBFHRZBTHAER
BRERILGEETH TS THRAS
TEHEASREERS  BEFHEENER
BESRTFEENEE -

RIE (BIREERIRG) ETHED  BER
A EE A B S B R RIS IR - BT
MERHMSREE A S MEE K H %
o BREABFHIANA LTSS R
5 HBRBRESERAT - FIESRITH
AEHFHH  HBERASNITREES
ZRREM

BREBBFER 2014-2015
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Chairman’e Review

T % B =
A ibl bli isati H ital \ \ &
s a responsible public organisation, Hospita b= /

Authority (HA) adopts prudent measures in delivering
quality healthcare services through funding support
of HKS49 billion from the Government in 2014-15. An
ever increasing demand during the year registered
9.6 million attendances for specialist outpatient and
allied health outpatient services, 6 million for primary
care, 2.2 million for accident and emergency (A&E)
attendances and 1.6 million for inpatient and day
patient discharges and deaths.

EREER (BER) AEESTNLAEME —HE
HERER  =RBFTE 2014-15 F£ER 490 &8
TR BHRERUHEENEERKE - R mRY
BEREHERIFELN  ERMAZ R EREEREM
DMZAXEG0E - EEEEMZ AR 600 &
SEZEMPZAR220E ~ FlE K BERAHKRRE
T#E 160 B -
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With concerted efforts of all in the HA, we strived to overcome
the challenges of rising demand for public hospital services by
driving for continuous efforts in enhancing our services, operation
and performances. Notwithstanding, major challenges faced by
the public healthcare system are daunting, particularly with the
fast ageing population, increased prevalence of chronic diseases,
manpower shortage, increasing cost of providing hospital care,
rising public expectations, just to name a few. We treasured the
opportunity of the comprehensive review of the operation which
the Government has commissioned in August 2013 for exploring
viable measures for enhancing the cost-effectivenss and quality
of HA's services. HA positively supported the work of the Steering
Committee on Review of Hospital Authority.

Leadership is vital for the HA Board particulalry given its role
as a managing board, and the Board has a duty to attain and
maintain high standards of corporate governance. It is of great
honour and recognition to HA that the Board achieved ‘Directors
of the Year Award 2014’ organised by the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and was also specially recognised for ‘Excellence in
Board Diversity" | wish to extend my deep appreciation to my fellow
Board members for their invaluable contributions to HA's corporate
governance. | am fortunate to work with such a good team of
talented and highly dedicated fellow Board members and have
strong support of the Executive Management. | am also grateful to
Dr Ko Wing-man, Secretary for Food and Health, for his support and
vision to augment the skills and experience of the Board to ensure
better operation of the organisation.

EREERLT -0 2HEMEAD
NERRE  BENMKRE mKREALS
BB M EBRRE T RS R K
BoTh 2EBEASHRENE
BPmEEK HBRREAQZEEL
BMRET AFRER - BERASE
MERABMELEAE - UL RHB
BRARNBEREFNHE  BEX
FE1RM 2013 F 8 ARFAMN I R
RABRABEMEZWAITHE -

BEERAENEEAE  BHRER
EEZRNAE RAREE KEFEH
EHIEFSKFNEBER - FR
REREETBESSGHE 2014 FE
HRHESRRESESINLEMESR
R-BRLBHBZTRERERNEDY -
BLBERNEBER - BT R BH
RYKRBLERBREANEL  HEA
NRSKREZHRSZ  THREER/INE
EEBTE -
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Chairman’s Review

FRER

We welcomed Ms Anita Cheng Wai-ching and Dr Lo Wai-kwok as
new Board members in April and December 2014 respectively.
| offer my sincere thanks to Mr Chan Bing-woon who stepped
down as a Board member after years of distinguished service.
We were deeply saddened by the loss of Mr Andy Lau Kwok-fai,
who passed away on 17 April 2015. Andy was appointed to the
Board in 2011. His dedication and strong support for HA will be
sorely missed.

| am grateful to all members of the Regional Advisory Committees
and Hospital Governing Committees, and to the co-opted members
of our functional committees, for their advice and support. | must
also thank the patient groups, District Council and Legislative
Council members, and all HA volunteers, whose efforts have
enabled us to make headway with our vision and mission.

———
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2015 marks the 25" anniversary of HA. | wish to acknowledge
our predecessors at all levels for establishing a solid framework
for delivering service excellence. With this foundation, we are
developing HA with the aim of maximising healthcare benefits
for all and meeting community expectations as they continue to
evolve. My heartfelt thanks to my 70,000 colleagues who continue
to work diligently towards these objectives and ensure HA remains
one of the leading public healthcare services in the world.

Zm_, *

John CY Leong
Chairman

2015 FEEBE /ML 25 A%  BHBIA
ABERBRINEBERE  BRMSKAR
HEENEERY - TEEER L BMHF
BRI MNER > BOATREREABEN
@ YIELARAENEE - KR LBHBR
tERET MM EELEERREE
BHHEFEERREN T RREBERE -
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Enhanced risk management was a major theme for
the Hospital Authority (HA) during 2014-15. We took
action to tackle major health risks posed by Ebola
virus disease, Middle East respiratory syndrome, avian
influenza and significant surge in demand for our
services during the winter influenza season. Despite
growing pressure on the organisation, we continued to
develop initiatives to effectively and efficiently deliver
high quality patient-centred care.

E2014-15 FE - EREER(BER) WIIEESH
ERERERE  @E¥EREBEHN (FEY) mESK - F
RRRGEAENBAREEARERE  URES
MBS IR S| SRS F RIS BRPIEHRE R U
BEERENEBEIENRD  BREFSUER
=W B E R AR ©
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We continued our effort in hospital accreditation, and a total
of 17 hospitals had already attained full accreditation status
recognised by Australian Council on Healthcare Standards, an
international accrediting agent. Through setting up a mechanism
on credentialing and defining scope of practice, we strived to
enhance professional competence of our clinical staff with a view
to further improving patient safety.

We fully embrace the importance of transparency to enhance
public accountability and confidence. We have promulgated
the waiting time of specialist outpatient clinics of all eight major
specialties on the HA internet website as well as at clinics. Patients
are encouraged to make their own choice in making cross-cluster
bookings for new cases.

To reduce workload burdens of frontline staff and address
manpower shortage in certain specialties, we hired 350 doctors
including 291 resident trainees, 1,915 nurses and 557 allied health
professionals during the year. Overseas training scholarships
and training subsidies were provided to around 180 healthcare
professionals.
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Chief Executive's Report

TR EER

To increase service capacity, we opened 205 permanent new beds.
We also added 282 temporary beds and 5,962 general outpatient
clinic (GOPC) quotas during winter surge period. In September
2014, North Lantau Hospital launched round-the-clock Accident &
Emergency services.

We further leveraged technology to improve service efficiency and
enhance medical safety. The use of digital imaging in operating
theatres at selected major acute hospitals was widely deployed.
The expansion of the Inpatient Medication Order Entry system to
Princess Margaret Hospital, Tseung Kwan O Hospital, North Lantau
Hospital and Prince of Wales Hospital has further cut the risk of
prescription errors. We now have over 20 mobile applications
in operation or under development for staff and public use,
including TouchMed, which frees patients from extended waits at
our pharmacies. We are currently piloting an Integrated Human
Resources Management Information Access system to identify and
monitor critical pressure areas, such as staff attrition, to proactively
manage other service risks.

The GOPC Public-Private Partnership programmes launched in
March 2014 in Kwun Tong, Wong Tai Sin and Tuen Mun districts to
shorten waiting time and enhance patient choice to primary-care
services registered over 3,500 patients participating.

Patients and community partners were continuously engaged for
service improvements in public hospitals. We conducted a patient
experience and satisfaction survey on specialist outpatient service
in 26 SOPCs. An electronic system was also implemented to
capture and analyse statistical information on patient complaints
and feedback.
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We completed building works for the redevelopment of Yan Chai
Hospital, piling works for Hong Kong Children’s Hospital, and
technical feasibility statement for construction of the new acute
hospital in Kai Tak development area. In pursuance of the strategic
intents and directions of HA, we commenced the construction of
Tin Shui Wai Hospital and Hong Kong Children’s Hospital to increase
capacity and capability. Preparatory works for providing new
facilities at United Christian Hospital, Kwong Wah Hospital, Queen
Mary Hospital and Kwai Chung Hospital have started. To modernise
and upkeep standards of facilities, redevelopment or refurbishment
works are also to be carried out in Caritas Medical Centre, Yan Chai
Hospital, and Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital, etc. Barrier-free access
at 16 acute hospitals and most GOPCs were modernised.

Senior appointments in 2014-15 included Dr Lee Koon-hung
as Hospital Chief Executive (HCE) of Shatin Hospital & Bradbury
Hospice and Dr Deacons Yeung Tai-kong as HCE of Pok Oi Hospital.

| wish to offer my heartfelt thanks to our dedicated staff for
their continuing passion and professionalism in the face of
the demanding challenges of providing modern healthcare.
| also wish to express my appreciation to the Hong Kong SAR
Government for its ongoing support through annual recurrent
funding and policy decisions.

We will continue to face immediate and future challenges as
we work to uphold our commitment to delivering high quality
healthcare services. With the strong support of our staff, the
Government and the communities of Hong Kong, | am confident
we will continue to drive forward to successfully deliver our
mission of helping people stay healthy.

h—

PY LEUNG
Chief Executive
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Milestones of the Year

RE[OE

/2014

Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital completed
the second Organisation Wide Survey of hospital
accreditation, the first public hospital in Hong Kong

to do so.
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- Hospital Authority launched a mobile “U‘
‘ : ‘ I application TouchMed which radically F-=C &N d
reduces idle waiting time at hospital iqp
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! pharmacies. The mobile app is well :
/ received by the public. y 9
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital kicked off a series
of activities to celebrate its 15" anniversary,
aiming at building rapport with the
community and staff.
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The Hospital Authority launched the General
Outpatient Clinic Public-Private Partnership
Programme on a pilot basis in Kwun Tong, Wong Tai Sin
and Tuen Mun districts to help manage the demand for
and improve patient access to primary care services.
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Aiming at developing into a baby-friendly hospital,
Queen Elizabeth Hospital set up a breastfeeding
support team and also launched a new Chinese
cookbook Simple and Healthy Recipes for Mothers-to-be
sharing gourmet ideas for new mothers.
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Milestones of the Year

REERE

8/201%

HA signed a collaboration agreeme'nt with Klanc“;J
Wu Hospital Charitable Association of Maca
d collaboration framework 9n

ini een the two parties
exchanges and training betw L o
to enhance the quality of healthcare ser

facilitating healthcare development.

outlining broa
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Tuen Mun Hospital completed the
Organisation Wide Survey for Hospital
Accreditation programme and received full
accreditation status of the Australian Council

on Healthcare Standards for another four /
years. J
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Milestones of the Year
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9/201¢%

In collaboration with Radio Television

- Hong Kong, HA produced a six-episode TV
docudrama More than Healing, projecting an
image of professionalism, compassion and
humanity of healthcare workers in public
hospitals. The series recorded an average 11.5
points in TV ratings, representing an audience
of 0.74 million per episode.
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The North Lantau Hospital extended its clinical
services, including 24-hour Accident & Emergency
service, in-patient service with 20 convalescer}t /
rehabilitation beds, specialist outpatient. service,
allied health service, day rehabilitation and

ambulatory services.

NEESEE R
kkmm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’@%24jg =
1#%%@§/ﬁ§ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ~§ﬂﬁwmﬁ‘

N

%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬂﬁ@%&%ﬁﬁﬁ°

34  Hospital Auhqit\ysnum Report 2014-2015



10/201% A

Queen Mary Hospital achieved historical debut of
successfully re-transplant of the liver of a Hepatitis
B patient to another patient. The liver, which was
transplanted for the first time 11 years ago to
the first recipient, was re-transplanted again to a
second recipient. Entailing technical challenges,
the transplantation reflects the team’s innovations
in injecting new life in patients with end-stage liver

disease.
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Opening of a simulation suite in the Accident &
Emergency Training Centre not only provides
diversity of emergency medical training courses
to frontline staff of the Hospital Authority, but
also marks the 20" anniversary of the centre.’
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Milestones of the Year

RE[OE

12/201%

Hospital Authority received the Directors of the Year
Award 2014, recognising continuous efforts and
achievements of the HA Board in enhancing corporate
governance practices over the years.
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Hospital Accreditation

12/201%

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital and Tai .Po ‘
Hospital were fully accredited by the Australfan
Council on Healthcare standards after undergoing

Organisation Wide Survey.
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1/2015

Public reporting of waiting time was extended to eight
major specialties and also to elective surgeries of total
joint replacement.
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2/2015

Completion of a new hospital block
marked a milestone in the history of Yan
Chai Hospital. The new block provides a
wide range of services, including general
outpatient, specialist outpatient and family
medicine service, paediatric and adolescent
services and allied health services with
improved efficiency and quality in a better ‘
environment.
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Commissioning of the Kwun Tong Community
Health Centre marked a new age for primary
health care in the Kwun Tong district.
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Six Staff Group Consultative Committees at the corporate level
serve as direct communication channel between HA Head Office
and staff representatives. Other than bimonthly staff newsletter
HASLink, online update on topics of concern is made possible
through live webcast and senior executives’ blogs on the intranet.

While the HA Chief Executive paid regular visit to hospitals, an
online Staff Letter Box enables staff to express opinions and
ideas. At cluster and hospital levels, two-way communication
channels such as regular meetings with Cluster Chief Executives
(CCE) and Hospital Chief Executives (HCE), cluster newsletters,
CCE or HCE blog, online letterbox and Staff Relations Office
hotline facilitate exchanges with staff. Staff Communication
Ambassadors in hospitals serve as additional links relaying staff’s
concern to the management.

A wide variety of sports programmes and leisure activities were
organised throughout the year to promote balanced and healthy
lifestyle, such as inter-cluster sports competitions, swimming
gala, and fundraising activities. HA Family Day and HA Family
Night continued to be the most popular family events. The
annual event of 2015 Chinese New Year Run recorded a new high
enrolment of more than 4,200 staff members and their families.
Around HK$950,000 was raised for the HA Charitable Foundation,
benefitting chronically ill patients.
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To enhance staff access to radiological imaging services, a
pilot programme providing eligible staff with access to private
diagnostic imaging services of Computed Tomography, Magnetic
Resonance Imaging and Breast Imaging on a co-payment basis
was launched in December 2014, facilitating early diagnosis and
medical intervention.

Loyalty and dedication are accorded recognition in HA. Long
service and retirement awards were presented every year. Timely
spot awards recognised frontline managers and teams for taking an
extra mile.

Exemplary behaviours demonstrating the core values of the
organisation are highly recognised through the HA Outstanding
Staff and Teams Award Scheme, which has been organised for over
22 years. This year, six staff and six teams won the awards. Another
four staff and three teams were granted Merit Awards.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Outstanding Teams:
Hong Kong East Cluster Wound Management Team
« Paediatric Orthopaedics and Spine Surgery “Bone FOCUS for

Brighter Future” Team of The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital
at Sandy Bay

- Establishment of Express Lane — Reduction in Procurement Lead
Time of Kowloon Central Cluster

+ United Christian Hospital Multi-disciplinary Renal Team

«  The Magic Bullet of Kowloon West Cluster Specialist Outpatient
Clinic Waiting Time Management Team - Family Medicine
Specialist Clinic

« Inpatient Medication Order Entry (IPMOE) Implementation Teams
of Princess Margaret Hospital, Prince of Wales Hospital, Tseung
Kwan O Hospital and Hospital Authority Head Office

Merit Team Awards:
« Movement Disorder Team of Queen Elizabeth Hospital

«  New Territories East Cluster Community Outreach Services Team

« Tuen Mun Hospital Community Services Centre and Volunteer
Team
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Hospital Autherity (HAJ provides

contributing to a friendly environment,
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through the Head Office and seven
clusters. Head Office
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Head Office and Clugfer Reporte
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The HA Head Office (HAHO) aligns corporate values and
directions. It plays a strategic role in leading corporate
development and supporting hospital clusters
through interactive collaboration of seven divisions,
namely Cluster Services, Corporate Services, Finance,
Human Resources, Information Technology and Health
Informatics, Quality & Safety, and Strategy & Planning.
The HAHO initiated some 120 corporate targets in
2014-15 under six strategic intents outlined in the HA
Annual Plan.
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Strategic intent:
Allay staff shortage and high turnover

To allay staff shortage and high turnover, a series of measures
were implemented to attract, motivate and retain well-qualified
staff. More than 350 doctors, including 291 resident trainees,
1,915 nurses and 557 allied health professionals were recruited.
Up to March 2015, a total of 20 non-local doctors with limited
registration had been recruited.

To strengthen career development for doctors, a centrally
coordinated associate consultant promotion mechanism
established since 2011 has helped retain specialist doctors. A total
of 38 frontline doctors were promoted to associate consultants
during the year.

A wide range of professional and management training initiatives
were implemented to secure manpower supply, upgrade morale,
and enhance staff competency.

We organised 23 specialty simulation training programmes for
doctors to enhance their career development opportunities and
professional capabilities. 300 student nurses were enrolled in
the Higher Diploma in Nursing Programme while 100 students
participated in the Enrolled Nurses Training Programmes. Overseas
training scholarships were provided to around 180 healthcare
professionals including doctors, nurses and allied health staff.
Due to the lack of local training for podiatrists, 3-year overseas
scholarship was offered to 11 podiatrist students to attend training
in the United Kingdom. Midwifery training programmes with an
annual intake of 83 trainees were organised to meet escalating
demand for maternity services in public hospitals.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
BmEE R BB TEER

Other than training on patient-centred communication skills,
personal effectiveness and team building for professionals and
supporting staff, management enhancement courses were
organised for 1,641 first-line managers and 450 experienced
frontline professionals.

To ensure effective succession of senior leadership, the HA Executive
Leadership Programme in 2014-15 has prepared 89 candidates for
key leadership positions.

To strengthen occupational hygiene and safety, a 3-year
occupational hygiene and chemical safety work plan was
formulated. Key initiatives include an in-house nitrous oxide
exposure monitoring exercise at HA labour wards to validate the
effectiveness of control over fugitive nitrous oxide; a comprehensive
noise assessment for prosthetic and orthotic operations; and
provision of noise hazard awareness training to enhance hearing
protection for staff.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Strategic intent:
Better manage growing service demand

205 new beds were opened in 2014-15 to manage growing service
demand. An extra 282 beds were put in place for six months to
build further capacity during surge period.

The capacity for high demand life threatening diseases was
enhanced. Emergency cardiac service was strengthened by adding
two beds in the cardiac care units at Tseung Kwan O Hospital and
extending the service hours of emergency / primary Percutaneous
Coronary Intervention (PCl) from eight hours to 12 hours in Tuen
Mun Hospital.

Queen Mary Hospital and United Christian Hospital started 24-hour
thrombolytic acute stroke service to improve coverage for indicated
acute stroke patients. Quality of service for patients with Transient
Ischaemic Attack (TIA) was improved by setting up TIA clinics in the
Kowloon West Cluster.

In the area of renal services, haemodialysis (HD) service was
expanded to additional 30 patients in hospitals and 20 patients
under Nocturnal Home Haemodialysis Programme. Automated
peritoneal dialysis was also provided to 30 more patients.

Cancer case manager programme was extended to all seven clusters
to provide integrated cancer care to patients with complex breast
and colorectal cancers. In response to the Government’s Policy
Address in 2014 in addressing rapidly rising burden of colorectal
cancer (CRC) in Hong Kong, a pilot programme on CRC screening
for specific age groups was scheduled to be launched in end 2015.
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
BmEE R BB TEER

Clinical management for patients diagnosed with Human
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) was strengthened with multi-disciplinary
care through providing highly active antiretroviral therapy to eligible
patients in Queen Elizabeth Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital.
Genotyping resistance test was established to guide antiretroviral
treatment and monitor the emergence of drug resistance.

Management and secondary prevention of chronic diseases
was enhanced. In the area of mental health, community care for
psychiatric patients was further strengthened through extending
the Case Management Programme to three more districts, namely
Tsuen Wan (including North Lantau), Yau Tsim Mong and Tai Po,
providing intensive and personalised case management support
to patients with severe mental illness. Physical environment of
psychiatric inpatient admission wards in Pamela Youde Nethersole
Hospital, Tai Po Hospital and Kowloon Hospital were modernised
as on-going efforts. Therapeutic elements for psychiatric
inpatient services were improved with strengthened workforce
of psychiatric nurses and allied health professionals in all seven
clusters, providing recovery-oriented treatment programmes
facilitating early discharge and re-integration of psychiatric
inpatients back to the community.

We provided timely and appropriate treatment of eye diseases
for elderly patients through enhanced specialist eye services for
treating age-related macular degeneration, diabetic retinopathy
and glaucoma. Additional 4,650 visual field tests and 4,650 Ocular
Coherence Tomography scans were performed for glaucoma
patients, and a total of 160 additional vitreoretinal procedures were
conducted for patients with sight-threatening diabetic retinopathy.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Services with pressing issues of waiting time and access were
improved. Accident and Emergency (A&E) Department Support
Session Programme implemented in 12 hospitals since 2013
had alleviated the workload of frontline staff working. The
programme continued in 2014 and provided support sessions
handling Triage IV (semi-urgent) and Triage V (non-urgent) cases’.

The pharmacy workforce was strengthened to meet increasing
demand for outpatient pharmacy services, improving service
delivery time at specialist outpatient pharmacies. Accessibility
to pharmacy services was also enhanced with round-the-clock
pharmacy services in Caritas Medical Centre and Yan Chai Hospital.
Weekday pharmacy service in Grantham Hospital, Kowloon
Hospital, Tai Po Hospital, Tung Wah Eastern Hospital and Tung Wah
Hospital were extended by two hours.

Anticipated rise in service demand during winter surge
period was managed with six key strategies namely managing
demand in community, gate-keeping to reduce unnecessary
admission, improving patient flow, optimising buffer capacity,
reprioritising core activities and enhancing communication
with the public through mass media and daily release of service
statistics during Chinese New Year. A total of 5,962 additional
General Outpatient Clinic quotas during the surge period
alleviated pressure on A&E services.

# Patients attending A&E departments in HA hospitals are divided into five categories (Triage | to V) according to medical condition, namely critical, emergency,

urgent, semi-urgent and non-urgent cases.

BRSO NERRERE > SREFEHE - B
2013 i 12 AN EBRNESEETEMNE
BYESE  BENSBENTERS o 5
BIE 2014 FHREHT  SEEEMZED
EEE - REENORE2)RERGEES)
BRI RER

HKMEmMEREAF BN ELANMDER
BRBEEFR AEENFIZEENRBE
B RELERA EEHER - NES
Bt~ RKIFE RERRREBRER
FHHORBRELERM/NE - MAZEER
RICESBRERME 24 NGEERT -

RENLERBBEHFIRZSHA - KRR
NEBHEE  BEEEHEER - ML
BEREDIFLENERER  XEHBAR
B ERRBERATF BEZORBEX
LR BB EEMREARBRAME - MER
B FHEE A A AnRBRTET - RME
LFERBSIEHE N 5,962 EEBRMZZ
FEBEE  BERSEZENED -

# REPATE  BREBERETEZBERIMAHE | BERK £z B2 RESRFER -

BREBBFER 2014-2015

ol



52

Head Office and Cluster Reports
BmEE R BB TEER

The HA supports healthy competition and co-operation among
healthcare services providers. Public-Private Partnership (PPP) in
healthcare services optimises the use of healthcare resources in
both public and private sectors and also helps shorten the waiting
time for public healthcare services. In 2014-15, over 3,500 patients
had benefited from pilot PPP programmes of cataract surgeries,
primary care service and radiological investigation service. The
haemodialysis (HD) PPP programme were extended to 20 additional
public patients. The new GOPC PPP programme launched in Kwun
Tong, Wong Tai Sin and Tuen Mun districts since March 2014 also
benefitted over 3,500 patients.

Strategic intent:
Ensure service quality and safety

HA continues to build safety culture corporate-wide. Critical
incident psychological services for HA staff have been strengthened
to improve preparedness and response for crisis intervention. Four
Critical Incident Psychological Services (CIPS) Centres and Cluster
Staff Psychological Services Clinics were set up in four clusters
(Hong Kong West, Kowloon Central, New Territories East and New
Territories West) to provide timely and quality one-stop critical
incident psychological services for employees.

Safer service models were developed in various clinical areas. A
corporate-wide barcode-based tracking and archiving system
implemented in 14 HA hospitals with anatomical pathology
laboratories ensured correct identification in processing anatomical
pathology specimens. The reuse of single use device was reduced in
phases based on prioritisation of clinical risk. Breastfeeding support
teams were established in Queen Mary Hospital, Queen Elizabeth
Hospital and Kwong Wah Hospital to enhance necessary nursing
support with improved clinical setting and physical environment.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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HA adopts modern technology and new treatment options to
ensure service quality and patient safety. Additional recurrent
funding was provided to widen the scope of HA Drug Formulary
for the treatment of psychosis, dementia and prostate cancer.
New technology of Matrix-Assisted Laser Desorption / lonisation
Time-Of-Flight (MALDI-TOF) Mass Spectrometry was installed in
Queen Mary Hospital, Prince of Wales Hospital, Princess Margaret
Hospital and United Christian Hospital to speed up microbiological
identification for timely diagnosis and treatment.

Minimally invasive surgery (MIS) technique was adopted in 70% of
the hysterectomy surgeries conducted for suitable gynaecological
patients. The facilities and equipment in operating theatre in Queen
Elizabeth Hospital and Tuen Mun Hospital were modernised with
MIS suites set up.

To enhance the quality and safety of medication use for
hospitalised children, paediatric clinical pharmacy services were
rolled out to six more public hospitals, namely Alice Ho Miu Ling
Nethersole Hospital, Caritas Medical Centre, The Duchess of Kent
Children’s Hospital, Kowloon Hospital, Queen Elizabeth Hospital
and Yan Chai Hospital.
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Continuous quality improvement systems were implemented to
improve clinical practice, including an HA-wide Clinical Outcomes
Monitoring Programme with three nurse reviewers recruited to
develop data capture template for monitoring clinical outcomes.

Improvement of hardware and facilities continued to ensure service
quality and safety. Barrier free access in 16 acute hospitals and most
General Outpatient Clinics were improved. With continual funding
support from the Government, 751 medical equipment items were
installed in public hospitals, and 309 pieces of medical equipment
were acquired.

Strategic intent:
Enhance partnership with patients and community

HA adopts patient-centred approach in communication with
patients and carers. Involving patient groups and community
partners is an important strategy in care delivery. The Patient
Empowerment Programme (PEP) was implemented with
non-governmental organisations (NGOs) to provide chronic
disease patients with disease specific education and self-care skills
and thus enhance chronic diseases management. An additional
14,000 patients were recruited to participate in the PEP.

Case managers were recruited in Tuen Mun Hospital, United
Christian Hospital, Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital and
Queen Mary Hospital/The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital to
support children with special-care needs such as those with mental
retardation or physical disabilities.
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The core services of Patient Resources Centres , self-help groups
and clinical teams have been aligned to develop collaborative
projects on patient support so as to enhance partnership with
patients and community. Seminars and sharing sessions were
also organised with graduates of the Patient Partnership in Action
programme to intensify the participation of patient leaders. The
Health InfoWorld has been refurbished and volunteers were
trained in supporting its operation.

A proactive approach is adopted to maintain rapport and
communicate with the media and community stakeholders to
keep them abreast of the latest development in HA policies and
services. During the year, 223 media activities were organised, 369
press releases issued and 340 articles contributed to various media
platforms. 1,900 media enquiries and 187 community enquiries
were handled.

A 6-episode docudrama produced in collaboration with Radio
Television Hong Kong and broadcast from September to October
2014 received overall positive feedback. The drama specifically
portrayed the dilemmas, challenges and humanistic sides of HA
staff. The series recorded an average 11.5 points in TV ratings,
representing around 0.74 million per episode. The click rates of
YouTube and HA Channel of all docudrama related videos also
reached 26,000 times.
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Strategic intent:
Ensure adequate resources to meet service needs

The Government continued to give strong support to public healthcare
with subvention to HA reaching HK$49 billion in 2014-15. As a
responsible public organisation, we continue to undertake prudent
measures on financial management to ensure resources are
properly safeguarded and appropriately deployed.

To facilitate value-for-money delivery of quality patient
care, HA stays vigilant in revisiting and monitoring resource
management to optimise output and performance. Through
continuous engagement with internal stakeholders, additional
resources were allocated to Clusters during the service planning
process for new services and specific pressure areas or gaps in
addition to resources needed to sustain core and centralised
services of respective Clusters.

The HA recorded a surplus financial position in 2014-15
mainly due to persistent recruitment difficulties of healthcare
professionals despite various recruitment and retention measures.
Given expected continuing tight manpower situation, different
recruitment and retention initiatives such as the re-employment of
serving employees beyond the age of 60 will be implemented to
maintain a more stable workforce.

In order to meet challenges of ageing population and rising service
demand with long-term financial sustainability, HA has discussed
with the Government the financial requirements for the coming
years based on estimated resource need.
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A series of hospital development projects have been planned and
implemented to meet service needs. Key milestones achieved
in 2014-15 included the completion of Yan Chai Hospital
redevelopment and piling works of Hong Kong Children’s Hospital.
Technical feasibility statements were completed for the extension
of Tuen Mun Hospital Operating Theatre block and the construction
of a new acute hospital at Kai Tak development area.

Information technology used in healthcare improves patient care
by allowing storage, sharing and analysis of healthcare information.
We further leveraged technology to improve service efficiency
and enhance medical safety. The use of digital imaging was widely
deployed and will be extended to operating theatres of selected
major acute hospitals. The expansion of the Inpatient Medication
Order Entry (IPMOE) system to Princess Margaret Hospital, Tseung
Kwan O Hospital, North Lantau Hospital and Prince of Wales Hospital
has further cut the risk of prescription errors. The system will be
implemented in all acute hospitals. Over 20 mobile applications are
now in operation or under development for staff and public use,
including TouchMed, which frees patients from extended waits at
our pharmacies.

Human resource system has been enhanced to expedite
leave application and approval, covering about 32,000 staff
so far.

Corporate application systems were implemented in all new
hospital buildings, including North Lantau Hospital and Yan Chai
Hospital, with the network infrastructure upgraded for better
availability, efficiency and stability. Internal controls have been
upgraded by enhancing business administration and enterprise
resource planning technology throughout HA hospitals with asset
management and maintenance service processes streamlined.
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Ensuring patient data privacy is of prime importance in HA
and is everyone’s responsibility. Committed to promoting and
strengthening privacy protection, identifying emerging privacy
risks and responding efficiently, we have maintained an ongoing
personal data protection education and training programme for
all staff to ensure awareness on the need for privacy protection.
A robust privacy infrastructure is maintained with resources
allocated to continually perform internal privacy compliance checks
and engage independent third parties in privacy and security
assessments. We also participated in the Privacy Management
Programme led by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data.
We continued to review and enhance IT system availability,
performance and accuracy of data through established quality
assurance and risk management processes.

HA continued to provide technical agency services to the Hong
Kong Government in developing the eHealth Record Sharing
System, Elderly Healthcare Voucher Scheme, Vaccination Subsidy
Schemes, Primary Care Directory System, Communicable Disease
Information System, Laboratory Information System and Colorectal
Cancer Screening Programme System.
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Strategic intent:
Enhance corporate governance

HA had enhanced corporate governance structure and processes,
following the recommendations of a comprehensive review of
governance practices at the Board and cluster/hospitals levels
completed in 2012-13 and 2013-14 respectively (Phase 1 and Phase 2
of the Corporate Governance Review). The enhanced practices
at the Board level, together with relevant provisions of the HA
Ordinance, the Standing Orders as well as various principles and
corporate policies adopted by HA on corporate governance, were
consolidated in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices of HA
Board (the Code). The Code aims to provide appropriate structures
and processes in ensuring a robust governance and accountability
framework to guide members of the Board and committees in
performing their roles and responsibilities.

The Manual on the Operation of Hospital Governing Committees (the
Manual) was updated on corporate governance practices at the
cluster/hospital level, consolidating various corporate governance
policies and practices adopted by the HA Board and the Hospital
Governing Committees (HGCs) over the years, and also the
initiatives implemented at the recommendation of the Corporate
Governance Review. The Manual aims to provide guidance to
HGCs members in discharging their responsibilities. Both the Code
and the Manual were approved by the Board in April 2014 and
July 2014 respectively.
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Contributing to a Green Environment

HA is committed to achieving the best practicable environmental
standards and practices to ensure environmental protection and
minimise adverse impact on the environment.

Over the years, a wide range of energy conservation initiatives
have been implemented in new hospital developments and
existing hospitals. These initiatives include the application
of energy conservation and renewable energy technologies
in lighting, air-conditioning, steam and hot water systems in
HA premises. In January 2015, we commenced the building of
Hong Kong’s first hospital application of combined heat and
power system in Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (AHNH).
Upon its completion in mid-2016, the system can help AHNH
reduce 2,000 tonnes or 12 per cent of carbon emission, and
save HKS$2 million of energy cost per annum.
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HA will continue to explore and implement energy saving
technologies to achieve environmental sustainability and offset
the rising trend of energy consumption due to increasing hospital
activities. In 2014-15, 24 public hospitals and institutions met the
carbon emission reduction standard of the Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence scheme and were awarded Carbon
Reduction Certificates.

Various waste reduction and recycling programmes
continued in hospitals, some of which were collaborated
with non-government organisations. A total of 3,500
tonnes of recyclables including waste paper, plastic,
metals, glass bottles, used clothes were collected. 21
hospitals achieved the Certificate of Appreciation for Used
Clothes Recycling Programme from Friends of the Earth,
and 29 hospitals and institutions were awarded the Class of
Excellence Wastewi$e Label of the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence.

Food waste reduction programmes such as promotion of waste
reduction at source and adoption of low carbon menu continued.
15 hospitals have environmental friendly food waste decomposers
implemented or participated in various food recycling
programmes to further minimise food waste disposal. Last but not
least, the use of environmental friendly LPG vehicles played a role,
with four Non-emergency Ambulance Transfer Service vehicles
replaced and three more added in 2014-15.
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Hong Kong Eagf Clugter (HKEC)
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Number of general outpatient clinics Z@ERIPFIZ2 & E 12
Throughput FRIEE

Number of beds BHREH 3,071
Patient discharges* HiFxim A B B* 183,649
A&E attendances SIEERMZ AR 236,747
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERFIRZ#Z AR (B KIRIE) 806,737
General outpatient attendances ZBERIFIZMZ AR 587,882
Full-time equivalent staff ZREIZBASEE e

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths
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HKEC appreciates the commitment of staff in managing growing
service demand amidst manpower constraint. To allay staff shortage,
additional nurses, allied health staff and patient care assistants
were recruited to improve support for service delivery. The Cluster
accorded priority to sustaining a happy and competent workforce.
Outstanding achievement in the promotion of family-friendly
employment practices was exemplified by the Family Council award
“Distinguished Family-Friendly Employers 2013-14" in the category
of non-governmental organisations in June 2014. Enhanced training
and development initiatives including provision of simulation
training courses for professionals continued.

Services in pressure areas of HKEC were strengthened with
40 acute medical inpatient beds opened in July 2014 and
two medical beds designated to improve care for patients on
mechanical ventilation. RH opened a 42-bed acute medical ward
in January 2015 to improve ward environment. Site renovation
commenced in preparation for a 10-bed emergency medicine
ward in RH in 2015-16. Space utilisation was prudently reviewed
to support rising service demand.
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Service capacity was expanded to better manage waiting time. Five
additional operating theatre sessions per week had been added in
PYNEH since December 2014. Facilities for the combined Endoscopy
Unit in PYNEH were augmented with the renovation of a new floor.
Hospital haemodialysis for ten extra patients and home automated
peritoneal dialysis for three extra patients with end-stage renal
disease were provided. Pharmacy service of TWEH was improved
with extended service hours on weekdays.

Sustaining a robust quality and safety system is always high
on HKEC's agenda. The barcode-based tracking and archiving
system implemented in anatomical pathology laboratories since
the second quarter of 2014 enhanced correct identification
of specimens. The surgical instrument tracking system rolled
out to TWEH in December 2014 improved sterilisation service
for operating theatres. PYNEH was the first public hospital
in Hong Kong that completed the second organisation-wide
survey (OWS) of hospital accreditation in June 2014. TWEH
completed its first OWS in July 2014. The HKEC Patient Safety
Week in September 2014 was climaxed by Quality & Safety
Seminar themed Embrace Challenges — Quality Healthcare for
All, boosting staff awareness and sharing good practices. HKEC
also supported HA in rolling out Crew Resources Management
training to other clusters.
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Various initiatives were launched to enhance patient and community
partnership, including a community engagement symposium which
was successfully held in collaboration with 14 community partners.
The Symposium attracted more than 430 participants.

Certificate of merit under Public Organisations & Utilities sector
was granted by Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence
organised by the Environmental Campaign Committee to HKEC in
May 2014 for its contribution to environmental friendliness.

Additional communication platforms between management and
Hospital Governing Committees (HGC) at cluster level continued
to enhance corporate governance, with the annual self-assessment
survey of HGC commenced in the year.

Last but not least, one of HKEC’s outstanding achievements in the
year was the Excellence Award (Clinical Service Improvement) at
Asian Hospital Management Awards 2014 granted to PYNEH for the
programme titled Prevention of Ventilator Associated Pneumonia in
Intensive Care Unit: A Multi-pronged Strategic Approach for meeting
international benchmark.
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Hong Kong Weat Clugter (HKWC)
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Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIZ 2 MEE 6

Throughput RIS 2

Number of beds BHREH 3,142
Patient discharges* HiFxim A B B* 197,818
A&E attendances SIEERMZ AR 128,855
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) BERFIRFZ AR (B KIRIEE) 851,826
General outpatient attendances ZBRIFIZMZ AKX 389,451
Full-time equivalent staff EEIZ2BAS2 B 7,750

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* (Eh kBB A LR RIE TR
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HKWC has continuously fostered close partnership with Li Ka Shing
Faculty of Medicine of The University of Hong Kong in supporting
undergraduate and postgraduate medical education, training,
research and development, as well as innovations in healthcare
technology and services. Redevelopment of QMH is one step ahead
in enhancing future partnership.

Manpower shortage is one of the main concerns of HKWC. To allay
shortage, nursing manpower was reinforced to meet operational
needs at acute settings and high pressure areas. Additional allied
health professionals were recruited to enhance support for patients
requiring multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation. Additional
patient care assistants were hired to share out simple clinical and
clerical workload.
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Service capacity for high demand life threatening diseases including
end-stage kidney disease, cancer, stroke and blood diseases
was strengthened through enhancement in technologies, care
coordination, transplantation and long-term ventilator care. This
included improving pre-phase service for liver transplant patients,
enhancing day care service for haemopoietic stem cell transplant
patients, and supporting the care of ventilator dependent patients
in MMRC as well as implementing 24-hour thrombolytic service for
acute ischaemic stroke patients in QMH. Surgical capacity for eye
procedures was enhanced through additional operating theatre
sessions in GH. Besides, through participating in the HA Integrated
Chinese-Western Medicine Pilot Programme Phase |, TWH had
started to provide Chinese medicine treatment for eligible stroke
patients since September 2014.

Chronic diseases were better managed through enhancement in
endoscopy service, computed tomography (CT), lung function
laboratory, and rheumatology services. 3,000 CT examinations and
150 lung function laboratory tests were added in QMH per year. The
endoscopy service in QMH was reinforced by strengthening nursing
support for on-call and emergency endoscopy cases. The nurse-led
clinic in QMH was strengthened through effective case triage to
provide better care for rheumatology patients.
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Congestion of medical wards in QMH were alleviated
by diverting geriatric patients to FYKH and GH. To
provide one-stop cataract service and also to relieve
overcrowdedness of eye specialist service in QMH, planning
and preparation for relocating the eye specialist outpatient
clinic to GH was in progress, targeting to upgrade the
cataract operating theatre. The renovated Cataract Centre
in GH started serving patients in February 2015, providing
three operating theatres.

Service models with enhanced safety were developed. The surgical
instrument tracking system was rolled out to TWH to support improved
sterilisation service for operating theatres. Re-use of selected types
of single use device according to clinical risk prioritization was
phased out and a barcode-based tracking and archiving system
in anatomical pathology laboratories was implemented to ensure
correct identification of specimens.

To keep abreast of modern clinical practice, minimally invasive
surgery was adopted in hysterectomy for suitable gynaecology
patients. Besides, the quality and safety of medication use for
paediatric patients was enhanced through rolling out paediatric
clinical pharmacy services to DKCH. Case managers were recruited
in QMH and DKCH to spearhead integrated care and community
support for children with special care needs.
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Kowloon Cem‘ral Clugter (KCC)

B T & 2B (JU88 7 B de)

Kowloon Hospital (KH)

NEEEERR
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital (HKBH) Hong Kong Eye Hospital (HKEH)
& B ERR B BRBIERT

Queen Elizabeth Hospital (QEH) Rehabaid Centre (RC)
PRI AR () N LT

Hong Kong Red Cross
Blood Transfusion Service (BTS)

BBA+FERMARKEH O

Number of general outpatient clinics Z@ERIFIZ 2 AME A 6

Throughput FRIEE

Number of beds EHRE B 3,572
Patient discharges* HiFZim A B B* 209,610
A&E attendances SIEZERMP AR 190,391
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIZ 2 AR (BKRT) 1,026,591
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIZ P2 AKX 570,648
Full-time equivalent staff ZEZBAE%H 9,546

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* (EB e B ERA LR RIE T 22K
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KCC managed staff shortage through recruiting additional allied
health professionals and patient care assistants to enhance
multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation service. While 100 nursing
students joined QEH nursing school, nursing manpower was also
strengthened to meet operational needs in pressure areas.

To cope with ageing population and escalating demand in
medical services, additional support sessions were arranged in
QEH to alleviate the access block problems in A&E departments.
Overcrowdiness and long waiting time at A&E was improved. 19
acute beds, one Intensive Care Unit bed and four surgical High
Dependency Unit beds were opened in QEH. Two medical beds
were re-designated to enhance support in mechanical ventilation.
Waiting time for emergency trauma operation was improved with
six additional operating theatre sessions. Multi-disciplinary care was
provided for patients diagnosed with Human Immunodeficiency
Virus (HIV) with highly active antiretroviral therapy (HARRT) offered
to eligible patients in QEH. Capacity of renal replacement therapy
was enhanced for patients with end-stage renal disease.
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Community case management programme was extended to Yau
Tsim District to patients with severe mental illness, the renovation
of psychiatric wards of KH commenced to improve environment
with the support of recovery-oriented treatment programmes.

To keep abreast of modern technology, QEH set up a minimally
invasive surgery suite and a robotic assisted laparoscopic surgery
suite. The first operation using robotic assisted laparoscopic
technique in QEH was conducted in February 2015.

The accreditation status of QEH was successfully renewed in
2014 for another four years by Australian Council on Healthcare
Standards. In pursuit of continuous quality improvement and
patient safety, a barcode-based tracking and archiving system
in anatomical pathology laboratory was implemented in QEH to
ensure correct identification of specimens. Ageing washing facility
in QEH was replaced in phases to improve sterilisation of surgical
procedures with the surgical instrument tracking system rolled
out to other KCC hospitals. The Cluster had phased out the re-use
of selected types of single use device to ensure patient safety. BTS
also enhanced their blood bank management information system
to meet increasing service demand. Paediatric clinical pharmacy
service was introduced in QEH and KH for better medication safety.
Auto-refill services for medical consumables, personal protection
equipment, central sterilised supplies and linen items were fully
implemented in BH and HKEH.
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Initiatives of baby-friendly hospital were promoted in QEH. Other
than setting up a breastfeeding support team, a new Chinese
cookbook sharing gourmet ideas for new mothers was launched in
July 2014.

To dovetail with the Government’s planning of the Kai Tak
development area, Phase 1 of the KCC Clinical Services Plan
was completed and planning work for a new acute hospital has
commenced.
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Kowloon Eagf Cluster (KEC)

TUBE R & PR B (7188 R4E)

Haven of Hope Hospital (HHH)
EEEMR

v

United Christian Hospital (UCH) Tseung Kwan O
BEEHRBS Bk (HSEk) Hospital (TKOH)
5 EIRE T
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIZ P AMEAE 8
Throughput FRIEE
Number of beds JHHRE R 2,491
Patient discharges* iR m A B B* 176,556
A&E attendances SIEZERMP AR 320,071
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) BRI FZ AR (B KRIE) 795,801
General outpatient attendances EZBERIFIRZ 2 AKX 944,950
Full-time equivalent staff ZREIZBASEH 7,281

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* (EB e B ERA LR RIE T 22
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Manpower constraint remained a key challenge for KEC. To allay staff
shortage, KEC recruited additional nurses to replenish manpower
shortfall in hospital wards. More allied health professionals were
added to cope with increased workload and strengthen support for
patients requiring multi-disciplinary care and rehabilitation. Patient
care assistants were injected to share out simple clinical tasks and
relieve clerical workload of allied health professionals.

To address growing service demand and pressure areas, the Cluster
added two Intensive Care Unit beds and two Coronary Care Unit
beds. Service capacity was broadened by implementing 24-hour
thrombolytic service for acute ischaemic stroke patients, increasing
treatment quota for renal replacement therapy for patients with
end-stage renal disease and specialist outpatient clinic sessions
as well as introducing cardiac catheterisation laboratory service.
This year, KEC continued to increase the general outpatient clinic
episodic quota by 11,000 attendances to meet growing service
demand. To alleviate the access block at A&E departments,
additional support sessions were rendered for handling patients of
Triage IV and V categories. The Cluster also enhanced mental health
services by providing recovery oriented treatment programmes for
patients in the psychiatric wards. The long waiting time at specialist
outpatient clinic pharmacies was alleviated by recruiting additional
dispensers. Case management service was available to patients with
complicated breast and colorectal cancer. The Cluster also provided
prosthetic service to support rehabilitation and continuity of care.
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On service quality and safety side, a barcode-based tracking and
archiving system was implemented in anatomical pathology
laboratories to ensure correct identification of anatomical
pathology specimens. KEC stepped up the adoption of minimal
invasive surgery technique in hysterectomy surgeries for
suitable gynaecology patients. In addition, the Cluster phased
out the re-use of selected types of class Il moderate and
moderate-high risk single use device according to clinical
risk prioritisation. An implementation team was set up to
support the launching of Inpatient Medication Order Entry
system. Besides, matrix-assisted laser desorption / ionisation
time-of-flight (MALDI-TOF) mass spectrometry was installed to speed
up microbiological identification for timely diagnosis and treatment.

In strengthening partnership with patients and community, case
managers were recruited to deliver integrated care for children
with special care needs, such as those with mental retardation or
physical disabilities.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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The Kwun Tong Community Health Centre commenced operation
in March 2015. The centre provided an integrated range of services
including general outpatient clinic service and various chronic
disease management programmes.

KEC is committed to ensuring smooth progress of major capital
projects of UCH and HHH expansion through close monitoring. The
UCH planning team was strengthened to facilitate service transition
during the decanting period of the UCH expansion project. Site
renovation and preparatory works were carried out for setting up
an emergency medicine ward in TKOH.
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Kowloon ng{ Clugter (KWC)
R E RS U

R T

— e e

Kwai Chung Hospital (KCH)
By
Yan Chai Hospital (YCH)
- e
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital (WTSH)
RE=PrE ALER
Q% = Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital (OLMH)
. ? EER
Princess Margaret
Hospital (PMH)
BEZIER
North e ntau gﬂng Vi\fah Hospital (KWH)
Hospital (NLTH) REEE
3k KU1 & B
Caritas Medical Centre (CMC)
B Z &P
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERFR 2B E 23
Throughput RIEE
Number of beds HAKEH 6,652
Patient discharges* HfTmAZB* 381,842
A&E attendances SIEZEMPZ AKX 621,547
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIRZ#Z AR (BRKRE) 1,674,173
General outpatient attendances ZBERIFIZFZ AKX 1,656,204
Full-time equivalent staff £EZBA S H 15,683

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* (Eh e B ERA LR RIE T 22
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KWC implemented a number of initiatives to relieve manpower
strain, meet growing service demand and also uphold service
quality and patient safety.

Nursing manpower of KWC was substantiated with additional
nurses recruited and also 100 registered nurses trained in CMC
nursing school joining our nursing workforce. Manpower of allied
health professionals was strengthened and additional patient care
assistants were recruited to enhance multi-disciplinary care and
rehabilitation services.

To improve accessibility to public healthcare, NLTH extended
its clinical services in the third quarter of 2014, including
24-hour A&E service, inpatient service with 20 convalescent and
rehabilitation beds, specialist outpatient service, allied health
service, day rehabilitation and ambulatory services. Besides, the
YCH Community Health and Wellness Centre commenced services
in February 2015, through general and specialist outpatient clinics
and the Paediatric and Adolescent Ambulatory Centre. The KCH
planning team was set up in April 2014 to coordinate the overall
planning and commissioning of hospital redevelopment.
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PMH added operating theatre sessions and OLMH added
computed tomography examinations to meet growing service
demand. Designated beds were assigned for patients on
mechanical ventilation in KWH, and chronic ventilator-assisted
children in CMC. Stroke service was enhanced in PMH with
the set-up of a Transient Ischemic Attack Clinic. Service for
renal patients was expanded with extra quotas for hospital
haemodialysis, home haemodialysis, and home automated
peritoneal dialysis.

Waiting time for outpatient services was managed with new
resources through triage of new cases booked at specialist
outpatient clinics to Family Medicine Specialist Clinics. The waiting
time for orthopaedic specialist outpatient clinics across KWC was
shortened. More episodic quotas were added to GOPCs to improve
public access.

To cope with pressing need for mental health services, KWC
extended the case management model for severe mental
illness to Mongkok, Tsuen Wan and North Lantau. There
were further improvements on recovery-oriented treatment
programmes for KCH inpatients and psychiatric outpatient
services for child and adolescence.
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KWC adopts modern technology and new clinical practices in
pursuit of continuous quality improvement and patient safety.
A barcode-based tracking and archiving system was rolled
out in anatomical pathology laboratories to ensure correct
identification of specimens. Matrix-assisted laser desorption /
ionisation time-of-flight (MALDI-TOF) mass spectrometry, which
could expedite the microbiological identification for timely diagnosis
and treatment, was installed in PMH. The service standard of Theatre
Sterile Service Unit (TSSU) in YCH was enhanced. Surgical instrument
tracking system was implemented in PMH, CMC and NLTH to improve
sterilisation in surgical operations. Minimally invasive surgery technique
was used in hysterectomy surgeries for suitable gynaecological
patients. Paediatric clinical pharmacy service was implemented
in CMC and YCH in September and October 2014 respectively for
improved medication safety. The hospital accreditation programme
by the Australian Council of Healthcare Standards continued.
PMH successfully completed organisation wide survey and YCH
completed gap analysis in November 2014.
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New Terrh‘ovr:ieg East Clugter (NTEC)
R BRI (17 K18

North District Hospital (NDH) DHZEKESR
1t EER

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital (AHNH) _i-'

TR AT = &P

Tai Po Hospital (TPH)
RIFEERR

Prince of Wales Hospital (PWH)

Cheshire Home, Shatin (SCH)

L ER TR £ 2P
Bradbury Hospice (BH)
BEEEEHRL
Shatin Hospital (SH)
W HER
Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFI2D & E 10
Throughput FRIEE
Number of beds BHRE R 4,580
Patient discharges* HiFZim A B B* 269,422
A&E attendances SIEZERZ AR 380,042
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) ERIFIRZ#Z AR (BRKRE) 17124589
General outpatient attendances ZERIFIZ P AR 946,315
Full-time equivalent staff £EZBASEH 11,028

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* {EB ke BERA LR RIE T A2
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Human capital is our valuable asset. NTEC had taken steps to
allay staff shortage and high turnover. Additional nurses and
allied health professionals were recruited to meet operational
requirements. More patient care assistants were hired to share
out simple clinical tasks and the clerical workload of allied health
professionals. To relieve clinical staff from non-clinical duties, NTEC
also implemented auto-refill service for medical consumables and
linen items in all hospitals in the Cluster.

The momentum to rise above the challenges faced by NTEC in
coping with escalating service demand was sustained this year. The
Cluster was inundated with patients beyond its capacity. In the past
year, we had deployed resources and revisited our service models to
better meet service needs. 50 acute medical beds and a hematology
oncology ward with 12 beds were opened in PWH. Renovation and
preparatory work was carried out for new wards in AHNH and NDH.
Psychiatric consultation liaison service was provided in the A&E
Department of NDH. Additional support services were arranged
to handle Triage IV and V patients to alleviate the effect of access
block at A&E departments in the Cluster.
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Better management of waiting time and chronic diseases is another
focus area of NTEC. Child and adolescent psychiatric outpatient
service was enhanced to relieve waiting time of patients with
autistic spectrum disorders and attention deficit hyperactivity
disorders. Operating theatre sessions for colorectal cancer surgeries
and surgical support of renal dialysis patients were augmented in
PWH. Endoscopy service was increased by 25 sessions. Computed
tomography and ultrasound services at AHNH were enhanced
through additional quota. On chronic illnesses, two designated
medical beds with multi-disciplinary support were set up in NDH for
patients on mechanical ventilation. Community support for mental
health patients was strengthened through case management
service for 600 patients with severe mental health illness residing
in Tai Po district. The capacity of renal replacement therapy for
patients with end-stage renal disease was also increased.
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NTEC also attached great importance to patient safety and quality
of service. Inpatient Medication Order Entry system was successfully
launched in PWH, winning the acclaim of clinical staff for enhancing
medication safety. Besides, pharmacy service had become more
accessible on weekdays with extended services hours in TPH and
additional dispensers for the pharmacy of specialist outpatient
clinics. Minimally invasive surgery technique was applied in 70% of
hysterectomy surgeries for suitable gynecological patients.

Infectious disease outbreaks have been a threat to Hong Kong for
some years due to globalisation. NTEC has closely monitored the
steep increase in the number of flu cases during the winter surge
period and adopted various measures to streamline the workflow
to tide over the situation.
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New Territoriee Wegt Clugter (NTWC)

15 0 B P04 (37 R 20 55 4R

Tuen Mun Hospital (TMH)
Bk

\

Pok Oi Hospital (POH)
BEER

Siu Lam Hospital (SLH)
NEEERR

Castle Peak Hospital (CPH)
BILER

Number of general outpatient clinics ZERIFIZ 2 MEE 8
Throughput FRIEE

Number of beds BHRE B 4,137
Patient discharges* HiFZim A B B* 209,789
A&E attendances SEZERMZ AR 345,248
Specialist outpatient attendances (clinical) BRI FZ AR (B KRIE) 915,063
General outpatient attendances ZBERIFIZFZ AKX 809,812
Full-time equivalent staff £EZBASEH 9,324

* Total inpatient, day patient discharges and deaths

* (Eh N B ERA LR R T2
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To face challenges from growing population as well as rising ageing
population of Tuen Mun, Yuen Long and Tin Shui Wai, NTWC catered
to escalating demand of healthcare services of the community
through various initiatives.

52 new beds commenced service in TMH and POH in 2014-15,
relieving overcrowded ward environment. In addition, the
Cluster strengthened surgical operation capacity by adding extra
operating theatre sessions in POH and setting up a new Total Joint
Replacement Centre.

For ambulatory and outpatient services, POH opened a geriatric
day hospital with 20 day places and enhanced urology day
service by providing additional clinic sessions to manage 80 new
cases from specialist outpatient clinics. The Cluster’s general
outpatient clinics added 7,300 episodic quotas to improve the
access by target population groups to public primary healthcare
services in response to rising service demand. Service for renal
replacement therapy for patients with end-stage renal disease
was enhanced with additional home automated peritoneal
dialysis treatment. The Cluster also strengthened cardiac care
by providing extended hour emergency percutaneous coronary
intervention service at TMH.

For mental health services, recovery-oriented treatment
programmes for patients in psychiatric wards were provided. NTWC
also recruited case managers for the provision of integrated care
and enhance community support for children with special care
needs such as those with mental retardation or physical disabilities.
Besides, a new computed tomography (CT) scanner was installed in
TMH to alleviate waiting time through enhancing the capacity by
3,000 more CT examinations.

EHHEM - TBRRKEBAOERKREL
HBRE - TR AR EFRETSEHER
Ol et BB AR RIBMFER o

Fr - BMERREEERS HIER 52 R
HmR  AEREEARR - B BER
BB IFMER - R ZEEHEBRP
RABREEFIREE -

EHEERMAZERELIE  BEERARTE
AR BB R 20 BB BEE%E > 30
8 A RBRBHRTS - IRERENND R E 0 R
B 80 EREBENMDHIE - BEETH
LB aRIEMT 7,300 EBE%E
GRS BAEERAHLNEEEERE
BEREAIBHNER  BAEREE - BREAXR
HBRBEMRBNAERE - ENREE
ERRENT B AR 0 SO e O R RS
EREMERBESEMRBIKN A E MR
R o

BHMRBEIE BRASERBARHRE
TRARREE - HNARBKRES
(BIanE HEZSIEIZR) R E - B4
AT ERKE  REGESEEEER AT
BXE -  BEERARIRERE - BFIERE
R —APERE E IR RS - SR ALERSP 3,000 &
RELH -
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Head Office and Cluster Reports
BmERE R BB TEER

The Cluster has recruited more doctors and nurses to tackle
increasing workload. More allied health professionals were hired to
enhance support for patients requiring multi-disciplinary care and
rehabilitation. The Cluster also enhanced the manpower of patient
care assistants to share out simple clinical tasks and relieve the
clerical workload of allied health professionals.

To strengthen service quality and safety, TMH has rolled out surgical
instrument tracking system this year to support the improvement
of sterilisation in operating theatres. A barcode-based tracking
and archiving system in anatomical pathology laboratories was
also implemented to ensure correct identification of anatomical
pathology specimens. With a newly set up minimally invasive
surgery suite in TMH, the facilities and equipment in operating
theatres were modernised. Minimally invasive surgery technique
has been applied in 70% of the hysterectomy surgeries for suitable
gynaecological patients.

NTWC has strengthened business and administrative support
to facilitate further expansion of clinical services of POH and the
construction works of Tin Shui Wai Hospital.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements

BIUZHEOI RS REBENIBRR

_E
pwc

Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Members of the Hospital Authority

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Hospital
Authority (“HA”") and its subsidiaries set out on pages 92 to 142, which comprise
the consolidated and HA balance sheets as at 31 March 2015, and the
consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of cash flows
and the consolidated statement of changes in net assets for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The Hospital Authority’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hospital Authority is responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the Hospital
Authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 10 of the Hospital Authority Ordinance and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

B BT R 5
HEREERKE

AREE AT ERE [HMD ERRINFERENAEE 1A
BixEER((BER]) REMBEENGREMBHRE © IR
BYBEHREER T AF=—A=1T"HNGEEKEBER
EEABREREZA LFENGERIEER  FatHE
WEER - SRERMEMEBRANGAFEELSHEK - UKE
ZEFTRRME R A REER -

BREERMGEMBBRRARENEE

BRERRAAERETE S AGRHNTENBERE
RARANESMITRE  USHEAMBHRREHEERNA
FHRER - MR EERRRERGE MBS MR L EH AR
B - MBS MR M ER N ARFRERMERNER
sEERMERL -

BB EE

BN EERRERMNBAEZSERAVBEREEHE
5 TRREGREREBGIFE HEERBRZEREERK
W& - BULZ I AREREEM B - RATERARSE
AR AERIEAM AT B ESREEMELE

BNEREEERHTAGRAN TR ERIETH -
BRI RR I TEERE - WRBRATE - UA
BRI AN RR R DT AR -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of HA and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015 and of

their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
compliance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

?V\\QM) oterhoutaleo ot

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 September 2015

A KB it FTF BT » Bl PR KT

B ZEE SRS
ZEENET @)

FRTP RITIZ P IAERA B4R & M S R PR S R S R
BEHNERER - MEENREFEURANZEEINHE - 215
A R IREF SRR RR M B 2R & M S R F R E A R R
BREE o R Z SRR - REENE B EZEBRRGS
MBEHRRAEHEEM AT RRABEARRES - RS
HENFET - (BB R IEE BRI R MR R
BR - BRI EETEEREMRANSHBERNSEE R
FrfEH St bET S B - A RFIBRS MBS RR R
5T -

HAIEE - BPIFFERNERERERTRINE S AT
EAt B R AR o

=z
=
HMRBE  ZEGAVBRRERBEBUBRESLEIER

MAFHRREERREMERER T —AF=A=+—
BRI BIRRRBEZ A LFENRBRRMAERE -

?V\\QM) okerhouialeo ot

BOBKEEMELH
B2 AN

B —F—AFNA=F+H

ML : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 » www.pwchk.com

o g frs

Bl EERHER 2014-2015

M



92
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BUKHMBE REEEOYHBRR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEEAEX
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt =E 20153 A31H 201453 A31H
BET T BT T
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% - #88 R EE 5 4,638,538 4,130,741
Intangible assets EFZEE 6 514,664 479,286
Loans receivable FEYER 7 4,193 5,597
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMEE£1F5K 8 13,300,000 6,000,000
Fixed income instruments BEIFE AR LA 9 1,650,000 -
__________ 20107395 _________ 10615624
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories 175§ 10 1,313,568 1,368,619
Loans receivable FEYER 7 1,053 1,240
Accounts receivable FEUER X 11 353,110 293,317
Other receivables Hfth fEUER 5k 12 216,529 156,302
Deposits and prepayments #&& K& I8 FHEIE 13 279,630 252,091
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE& 7R 8 962,359 408,438
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 14 17,737,531 13,369,608
JRPREEA BB R = 1R A K SR1TIF 3K
Cash and cash equivalents & K& EE 14 3,066,200 14,658,206
e 23,929980 30507821
Current Liabilities REI& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #3873k & & 46k 15 669,972 408,438
Creditors and accrued charges &E# A K FER B 16 10,348,841 9,026,349
Deposits received B YIZE 17 208,052 172,454
_______ 11226865 ________ 950724 _
Net Current Assets ®g¥#®*&# 12,703,115 20,900,580 _
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&Z®ng8® 32,810,510 31,516,204
Non-Current Liabilities JERBEE
Balance with Samaritan Fund #HU3SH| B R & 48k 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 56T R &5 FIE £ 18 237,892 199,687
Deferred income EEH z 19 12,756,119 13,408,766
_______ 18,994,011 _ __ _ ___ 19608453 _
Net Assets & F(E 13,816,499 11907,751
Capital subventions and capital donations EZ B & &5 20 5,153,202 4,610,027
Designated fund EEEE % 21 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 3,585,928 2,220,355
Total Funds E£4% 13,816,499 11,907,751
Dr KAM Pok Man H 832 {8+ Dr LEUNG Pak Yin, JP R B &£
Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee TR A EL
MBEEEERE

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. £ 98 £ 142 BB A G & M ISHRERN—& D °
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BUKHMBE REEEOYHBRR

Balance Sheet
EEAER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Mt =E 20153 A31H 201453 A31H
BET T BT T
Non-Current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% - #88 R EE 5 4,638,538 4,130,741
Intangible assets EFZEE 6 512,718 477,925
Loans receivable FEYER 7 4,193 5,597
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMEE£1F5K 8 13,300,000 6,000,000
Fixed income instruments BEIFE AR LA 9 1,650,000 -
. 20105449 10614263
Current Assets RENEE
Inventories 175§ 10 1,313,568 1,368,619
Loans receivable FEYER 7 1,053 1,240
Accounts receivable FEUER X 11 353,110 293,317
Other receivables Hfth fEUER 5k 12 216,529 156,302
Deposits and prepayments #&& K& I8 FHEIE 13 279,547 252,008
Placement with the Exchange Fund SMNEZE& 7R 8 962,359 408,438
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 14 17,737,531 13,369,608
JRPREEA BB R = 1R A K SR1TIF 3K
Cash and cash equivalents & K& EE 14 3,066,200 14,658,206
e 23,2989 30507738
Current Liabilities REI& &
Balance with Samaritan Fund #UGSH R E &4 15 669,972 408,438
Creditors and accrued charges &E# A K FER B 16 10,348,764 9,026,272
Deposits received B YIZE 17 208,052 172,454
_______ 11226788 ________ 9507164 _
Net Current Assets ®g¥#®*&# 12,703,109 20,900,574
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities #&Z®ng8® 32,808,558 31,514,837
Non-Current Liabilities JERBEE
Balance with Samaritan Fund #USFIEE S 4 15 6,000,000 6,000,000
Death and disability liabilities 56T R &5 FIE £ 18 237,892 199,687
Deferred income EEH z 19 12,756,119 13,408,766
_______ 18,994,011 _ __ _ ___ 19608453 _
Net Assets EEFE 13,814,547 11,906,384
Capital subventions and capital donations EZ B & &5 20 5,151,256 4,608,666
Designated fund EEEE % 21 5,077,369 5,077,369
Revenue reserve WA & 3,585,922 2,220,349
Total Funds E£4% 13,814,547 11,006,384
Dr KAM Pok Man H 832 {8+ Dr LEUNG Pak Yin, JP R B &£
Chairman Chief Executive
Finance Committee 1TBUBEL
UBEEEER

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 25 98 £ 1
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BUKHMBE RCEEOYHBRR

Consolidated Statement of Income and Expenditure

el REER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Note HK$000 HK$'000
By aE BZE2015F HZE 201445
3ABAILLEE 3A3EILEFE
BT T BT T
Income WA
Recurrent Government subvention 4% 14 7 B) 48,037,806 43,717,781
Capital Government subvention for building projects 808,545 1,156,191
RETENEREBTRHEED
Hospital/clinic fees and charges &Pz, ZEFTU E 22 3,422,811 3,181,876
Donations 1B 13 98
Transfers from &8 :
Designated donation fund & EREES 19 229,599 182,755
Minor Works Projects Fund /NUTRIEE &% 19 1,011,020 207,583
Capital subventions & A7 E) 20 673,485 787,916
Capital donations &EZA154 20 110,317 127,508
Investment income 1% & Wz 266,914 195,003
Other income Efbiia 668,952 697,526
L 55220462 50254237
Expenditure i
Staff costs B IAA 23 (37,234,711) (34,459,087)
Drugs &%) (5,328,465) (4,940,504)
Medical supplies and equipment E&EYm k& # (2,326,445) (2,118,174)
Utilities charges AR (1,201,717) (1,131,095)
Repairs and maintenance #1&&IR%E (1,741,345) (1,520,377)
Building projects funded by the Government 2(g)(i) (1,819,565) (1,363,774)
T B R TR & K (iii)
Operating lease expenses ‘&8 &R Z (156,117) (131,409)
Depreciation and amortisation #1& K& # 8 5& K6 (779,103) (909,338)
Other operating expenses Hfih&iEH % 24 (3,265,135) (3,015,447)
(53,852,603) (49,589,205)
Surplus for the year FREER 1,376,859 665,032

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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BIRENRERCEENYHREK

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHERER

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
By aE BZE2015F HZE 201445
3A3ALEE 3A3ALLFE
BT T BT T
Surplus for the year FRZ &R 1,376,859 665,032
Other comprehensive income H{tiZ2HEz
[tems that will be reclassified subsequently to income or expenditure:
HiggsHoBARASRIZ HWIER ¢
— Additions to capital subventions and capital donations 20 1,301,538 1,142,216
BB R E AR
— Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 20 25,439 -
g/ A ITEERES
— Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure 20 (783,802) (915,424)
ERTGRa R EE
Item that will not be reclassified to income or expenditure:
TEEFHEARASZEHIER
— Remeasurement of death liability 18 (11,286) 22,725
FRCENEEENE
Total comprehensive income for the year FRA2EWHATHE 1,908,748 914,549

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. £ 98 £ 142 B &R AR & IS HmE—& D °
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BUKHMBE RCEEOYHBRR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

" _\éiﬁgﬁﬁﬁi

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

Note HK$'000 HKS$'000
o BZE2015F HZE 201445
3A3ALEE 3A3ALLFE
BT T BT T
Net cash generated from operating activities 27 1,416,049 2,627,854
EEEEMAERSFE
Investing activities & &#)
Investment income received B Y% E Wa 255,592 195,003
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 5 (1,199,257) (980,603)
BEME - KRG
Purchases of intangible assets & @B AE 6 (127,720) (161,613)
Net increase in bank deposits with original maturity over (4,367,923) (4,482,925)
three months
JRIR B H iR = 1 A A IRITF SR F RGN
(Increase)/decrease in fixed income instruments (1,650,000) 300,001
BEEAEIEGEN SR
Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (7,300,000) -
SNEE S TFRIE M
Net cash used in investing activities (14,389,308) (5,130,137)
WERSRARSFE
Net cash outflow before financing activities (12,973,259) (2,502,283)
mEMZRSFELL
Financing activities B & &EE)
Minor Works Projects Fund /NI T2IHE E¢ 19 - 13,000,000
Interest earned for Minor Works Projects Fund 79,715 15,684
NEUT2IE B & PR &
Capital subventions & 788 20 1,143,643 1,015,202
Capital donations EA#E# 20 157,895 127,014
Net cash generated from financing activities 1,381,253 14,157,900
RERBAGZRASFE
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (11,592,006) 11,655,617
Be&RBELFE2 CRL) N
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14,658,206 3,002,589
FYzReRRECEE
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F# & KIREHE 14 3,066,200 14,658,206

Note: The cash flow for the placement with the Exchange Fund on behalf of
the Samaritan Fund was netted off with the outstanding balance with
the Samaritan Fund and the detailed arrangement is disclosed in note

15.

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report and Audited Financial Statements
BIRENRERCEENYHREK

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

REREERDEHRX
Capital
subventions
and capital
donations
[Note 20]
 HK$'000 Designated Revenue
NG fund reserve Total
KEARIER HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[H3E 20] EEES o st
BB BB BETT BETT
At 1 April 2013 RZZE—=FMH—H 4,383,235 5,077,369 1,532,598 10,993,202
Total comprehensive income for the year 226,792 - 687,757 914,549
FRZEKESERE
At31 March 2014 RZZE—WF=A=+—H 4,610,027 5,077,369 2,220,355 11,907,751
Total comprehensive income for the year 543,175 - 1,365,573 1,908,748
FAZEKEER
At31 March 2015 R=ZZE—haF=-A=+—H 5,153,202 5,077,369 3,585,928 13,816,499

The notes on pages 98 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BIUZHEOI RS REBENIBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Hospital Authority

Background

The Hospital Authority ("HA") and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as the “Group”in the consolidated financial statements. HA is a statutory
body established in Hong Kong on 1 December 1990 under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance (Cap.113). The Hospital Authority Ordinance provides
HA with the powers to manage and control the delivery of public hospital
services in Hong Kong. Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, HA is
responsible amongst other matters for the following:

advising the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) of the needs of the public for hospital
services and of the resources required to meet those needs;

managing and developing the public hospital system;

recommending to the Secretary for Food and Health appropriate
policies on fees for the use of hospital services by the public;

establishing public hospitals; and

promoting, assisting and taking part in education and training of HA
staff and research relating to hospital services.

Pursuant to Section 5(a) of the Hospital Authority Ordinance, an agreement
was entered into between the Government and HA on 3 June 2011
("Agreement”), under which the Government and HA agreed that HA shall
be responsible for managing and controlling the government lands and
the hospitals, clinics, facilities, buildings and premises established thereon
(as set out in Annex A of the Agreement and referred to as “Properties”), as
well as the facilities and amenities (as set out in Annex B of the Agreement)
that may be provided on the Properties. The ownership of the Properties
continues to be held by the Government.

HA has also entered into agreements with the individual governing bodies
of the ex-subvented hospitals which allowed HA to assume ownership of
some operating assets as at 1 December 1991 and to manage and control
other assets, the ownership of which remains with the individual governing
bodies.

As a result, HA has assumed responsibility for the management of the
public hospital operations since 1 December 1991. Also, all operating and
capital commitments outstanding as at 1 December 1991 were assumed
by HA, except for the capital works projects funded under the Capital Works
Reserve Fund of the Government.

As part of the Government'’s healthcare reform plan, HA has taken over the
management and operation of all general outpatient clinics (‘GOPCs") from
the Department of Health by July 2003. Under the arrangement, the title
and ownership in respect of the related operating assets of the GOPCs were
retrospectively transferred to HA in July 2003 after receiving formal approval
from the Government in June 2006. These assets were transferred at nil
value.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Background (Continued)

In order to promote the development and research of Chinese medicine
in Hong Kong, HA's subsidiary, HACM Limited entered into agreements
with 10 non-governmental organisations (“NGOs") in collaboration with
certain universities in Hong Kong to operate 18 Chinese Medicine
Centres for Training and Research (“CMCTRs"). Under the agreements
with the NGOs, HACM Limited has provided an annual subvention to the
NGOs for operating CMCTRs in Hong Kong. These NGO clinics have
provided Chinese medicine outpatient services including the
prescription of Chinese herbal medicine and related services. HACM
Limited has also provided funding to three NGOs of the tripatrtite
CMCTRs for provision of Chinese medicine services to HA patients under
the Integrated Chinese-Western Medicine (“ICWM") Pilot Programme
which have been implemented at three hospitals for three disease areas
since 22 Septemeber 2014.

In order to support the Government-led electronic health record (‘eHR")
programme, which is an essential part of the healthcare reform, HA has
been engaged to serve as the technical agency to the Government,
leveraging its experience and know-how in the Clinical Management
System (“CMS"). With this role, HA undertakes multiple streams of eHR
related projects, which are funded by the recurrent subvention and other
designated funding from the Government. During the financial year
ended 31 March 2015, HA recognised HK$246,150,000 (2014
HK$283,816,000) as other income to match with the expenditure
incurred in relation to the eHR related projects.

On 19 October 2011, HA set up a subsidiary, eHR HK Limited, to act as a
custodian to hold, maintain and license the intellectual property rights
and assets related to the eHR programme.

Hospitals and other institutions

At 31 March 2015, HA had under its management and control the following
hospitals, charitable trusts and institutions:

Hospitals:
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital
Bradbury Hospice
Caritas Medical Centre
Castle Peak Hospital
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
Cheshire Home, Shatin
The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
Grantham Hospital
Haven of Hope Hospital
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
Hong Kong Eye Hospital
Kowloon Hospital
Kwai Chung Hospital
Kwong Wah Hospital
MaclLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre
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BUMBEMNBSREBSENUHRE

Notes to the Financial Statements BAFEER AR 5T
1. The Hospital Authority (Continued) 1. BREER®
(b) Hospitals and other institutions (Continued) (b) EBbT R E MRS (o)
Hospitals (Continued): b (&)
North District Hospital bl 2hx
North Lantau Hospital JE R | BB
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital ERIE
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital %Etﬁ%/\%ﬂ%%ﬁ%
Pok Oi Hospital HE b
Prince of Wales Hospital Elﬁﬁﬁﬁf &
Princess Margaret Hospital SR
Queen Elizabeth Hospital R EEERT
Queen Mary Hospital BB
Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals EHEREPER T
Shatin Hospital ) H B B
Siu Lam Hospital NMEEERT
St John Hospital RNEERT
Tai Po Hospital NI EEbT
Tsan Yuk Hospital BEE Bt
Tseung Kwan O Hospital 1S EIR B BT
Tuen Mun Hospital HPIERT
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERP
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King Hospital RE=Pr SR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin Hospital %%:Kﬁﬁﬁﬂhﬁ 5t
Tung Wah Hospital REERR
United Christian Hospital EEHES B
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital =R
Yan Chai Hospital [y {7
Charitable Trusts: REFTES:
North District Hospital Charitable Foundation R EEEEES
Prince of Wales Hospital Charitable Foundation BRI TEREEETES
The Hong Kong Eye Hospital Charitable Trust BERMBREEETES
The Hospital Authority Charitable Foundation BiigEREEES
The Hospital Authority New Territories West Cluster Hospitals ELBEES
Charitable Trust
The Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital Charitable Trust RELERAIITZEREESETES
The Princess Margaret Hospital Charitable Trust BRBhEEEe
The Queen Elizabeth Hospital Charitable Trust FRHEBREEETES
Other Institutions: Hit 48
eHR HK Limited eHR HK Limited
HACare (ceased operation of the long stay care home on 31 mERE (L RPEREEE—STNF+ A
December 2004 and voluntary liquidation was in progress) =+ —B&AREE T‘-EJ.T:}E?‘TQJ?E/@ 2FF)
HACM Limited B EBERTPBERBERA
Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service BBAL T F & R MARKE T L
Rehabaid Centre ERERRERFT L
Specialist outpatient clinics ﬁﬂ?ﬁ il
General outpatient clinics BEIPIZ 2R
Other clinics and associated units Eﬁﬂ 2R T R AB A RHAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.

©

The Hospital Authority (Continued)

Principal office

The address of the principal office of HA is Hospital Authority Building,
1478 Argyle Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") as appropriate to
Government subvented and not-for-profit organisations. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets which are stated at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying HA's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group include the income and
expenditure of the Head Office, subsidiaries, all Hospitals, Charitable
Trusts, Specialist Outpatient Clinics, General Outpatient Clinics and other
institutions under its management and control made up to 31 March
2015.

The financial statements reflect the recorded book values of those assets
owned and the liabilities assumed by the Group.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
within the Group have been eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. The accounting policies of the
subsidiaries are consistent with the accounting policies adopted by the
Group.

At 31 March 2015, the principal subsidiaries of HA comprise:

BIFSIRARMTEE

FESHBER @)
B B A HE ()

SERNRBZRNZS  ERERER 2R 5
ERE2NRERE - RERZERIFERE - KR3F

R ERAMER N EEREE -

MEREN S

AR ESERAN S BR

E-Z—AF=A=+—0H BERNZZENEKE
g :

Effective percentage

Place of directly held by the
incorporation/ Group

Name Principal activities operation SEEERENEN

=L FEEHR HEMEYEEmE D

HACM Limited To steer the development and delivery of ~ Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) Chinese medicine services HE

Bl ERRHEEREER AR R8P B B RIS ) B R LR

(BERBERRA])

eHR HK Limited To act as a custodian to hold, maintain Hong Kong 100

(limited by guarantee) and license the intellectual property rights & i

(FERBERRR) and assets related to eHR programme

ERREAN BE REABTAEHE
FTRECLEEBRERINAMERER

(d)

4E

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs, including
interpretations, amendments or improvements to the existing standards,
which become effective in the current period. The following
amendments to standard which are effective for the Group’s financial
year beginning 1 April 2014 are relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for

Non-Financial Assets
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(d) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the criteria of offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet and the amendments
to HKAS 36 address the disclosure of information about the recoverable
amount of impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs
of disposal. These amendments have no impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.

The HKICPA has also issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs which are
effective for accounting period beginning on or after 1 April 2015. The
Group has not early adopted these new/revised HKFRSs in the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. The Group is in
the process of making an assessment but is not yet in a position to
quantify the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs on its results of
operations and financial position.

Recognition of income

Subventions for recurrent expenditure are recognised on an accruals
basis, except for those subventions for designated programs or capital
items that are recognised when the related expenditure is incurred as set
out in note 2(r).

Hospital/clinic fees and charges are recognised when services are
provided.

Transfers from the designated donation fund and capital donations are
recognised as set out in note 2(f).

Transfers from the capital subventions and Minor Works Projects Fund
are recognised as set out in note 2(r).

Investment income from fixed income instruments is recognised as set
out in note 2(k).

Investment income from bank deposits is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued) 2. TEEHHE @)
(f) Donations ) 8m

ARAE

(i)  Donated assets

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the Group
each with a value below HK$250,000 each and other donated
assets with a value below HK$100,000 each are recorded as income
and expenditure in the year of receipt of the assets.

Properties, computer software and systems donated to the Group
each with a value of HK$250,000 or above and other donated assets
each with a value of HK$100,000 or above are capitalised on receipt
of assets according to the policy set out in note 2(g)(i) and note 2(i).
The amount of the donated assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in total funds under
capital donations. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation
or amortisation charge for these assets and the net book value of
assets disposed of is transferred from capital donations to the
statement of income and expenditure.

Cash donations

Cash donations for specific use as prescribed by the donor are
accounted for in the designated donation fund. When the fund is
utilised and spent for expenditure not meeting the capitalisation
policy as set out in note 2(g)(i) or note 2(i), they are accounted for
as expenditure of the designated donation fund. Cash donations
that are spent on property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv) and note 2(i) respectively are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
total funds under capital donations, and the corresponding
amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets respectively. Each year, an amount equal to the
depreciation or amortisation charge for these assets and the net
book value of assets disposed of is transferred from capital
donations to the statement of income and expenditure.

Non-designated donations for general operating purposes are
recorded as donations in the statement of income and expenditure
upon receipt of cash.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(g) Capitalisation of property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Effective from 1 December 1991, the following categories of assets
which give rise to economic benefits have been capitalised:

Building projects costing HK$250,000 or more; and
All other assets costing HK$ 100,000 or more on an individual basis.

The accounting policy for depreciation of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 2(h).

For expenditure on subsequent improvement to properties the
ownership of which has not been vested with HA, the amount
spent is capitalised only if the improvement does not form part of
the properties and can be re-used by HA when re-located.
Otherwise, the expenditure is charged to the statement of income
and expenditure in the year as incurred.

For properties which are funded by the Government through HA
but are owned by an ex-subvented governing body, the associated
expenditure is charged to the statement of income and
expenditure in the year as incurred. Under the agreements with ex-
subvented governing bodies, the ownership of building projects,
although funded by the Government through HA, is vested with
the governing bodies.

Expenditure on furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles and
computer hardware is capitalised (subject to the minimum
expenditure limits set out in note 2(g)(i) above) and the
corresponding amounts are recognised under capital subventions
and capital donations for capital expenditure funded by the
Government and donations respectively.

Property, plant and equipment transferred from the hospitals to HA
at 1 December 1991 was recorded at nil value.

(h) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Additions represent new or replacement
of specific components of an asset. An asset’s carrying value is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(h) Depreciation (Continued)

The historical cost of assets acquired and the value of donated assets
received by the Group since 1T December 1991 are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful lives of the assets as

BIFSIRARMTEE

2.

(h)

FESHBE®
& @)

SEE-—NAN—F+=-A—HRAREHNEENRE
KA BREENEBE  EREENRERAFH
ABAESTENENT

follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the life of the lease to which the improvement relates
HEMEERE RIZEE 2 F 5
Buildings 20 - 50 years F
BEY
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10years &
FE  BEEXRENRKR
Motor vehicles 5-7 years &
qE
Computer equipment 3-6vyears &
B R E

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Capital expenditure in progress is not depreciated until the asset is
placed into commission.

() Intangible assets

Computer software and systems including related development costs
costing HK$250,000 or more each, which give rise to economic benefits
are capitalised as intangible assets. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and impairment and are amortised on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of one to three years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

()

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund as a “financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss” HA determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition, and such classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed to the
statement of income and expenditure. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or have been
transferred and HA has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value.

Fixed income instruments

Fixed income instruments are classified as held-to-maturity investments
on the basis that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold
the investments to maturity.

Fixed income instruments are recognised on a trade-date basis and
stated at amortised cost, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect
irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or
premium on the acquisition of fixed income instruments is aggregated
with other investment income receivable over the term of the
instrument using the effective interest method.

The Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that fixed
income instruments are impaired at each reporting date. The amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the fixed income instruments and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the fixed income instruments is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the statement of income and expenditure.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise drugs, other medical and general
consumable stores, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Where
applicable, provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving items.
Inventories are stated net of such provision in the balance sheet. Net
realisable value is determined with reference to the replacement cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of accounts
receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the carrying amount of the accounts receivable
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the accounts
receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised as an expense in the statement of
income and expenditure. Decrease in the previously recognised
impairment loss shall be reversed by adjusting the allowance account.
When an accounts receivable is uncollectible and eventually written off,
the respective uncollectible amount is offset against the allowance
account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the current year's expense in
the statement of income and expenditure.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and
bank deposits with original maturity within three months.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects
a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. A contingent liability is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made
to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are dealt with as
payments to defined contribution plans where the Group’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan. The retirement
benefit costs charged in the statement of income and expenditure
represent the contributions payable in respect of the current year
to the Group’s defined contribution retirement benefit plan and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.

Termination benefits costs

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s
employment is terminated before the normal retirement age or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits costs
when there is an obligation to make such payments without
possibility of withdrawal.

Death and disability benefits costs

The cost of the Group's obligations in respect of death and disability
benefits provided to employees is recognised as staff costs in the
statement of income and expenditure with reference to annual
actuarial valuations performed by an independent qualified actuary.

The death benefits for eligible employees are accounted for as post
employment defined benefits. Remeasurement of death liability
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income.
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BIUZHEOI RS REBENIBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

(@ Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Death and disability benefits costs (Continued)

The disability benefits are accounted for as other long-term
employee benefits. Remeasurement of disability liability arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised immediately in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Further details of the death and disability liabilities are set out in
note 18.

(iv) Other employee benefits costs

Other employee benefits such as annual leave and contract gratuity
are accounted for as they accrue.

Government subvention

Subvention grants approved for the year other than the following are
classified as recurrent subvention income.

Government grants for building projects are classified and recognised as
capital subvention income when the amount is spent on expenditure
which does not meet the capitalisation policy of property, plant and
equipment as set out in notes 2(g)(i), 2(g)(ii) and 2(g)(iii).

The one-off grant received from the Government for minor works
projects (under Subhead 8083MM) together with the related investment
income are recognised as deferred income — Minor Works Projects Fund.
Each year, the amount spent on the minor works projects is transferred
from deferred income to the statement of income and expenditure or
other comprehensive income as appropriate. Further details of the
deferred income — Minor Works Projects Fund are set out in note 19(b).

Government subventions that are spent on property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets as set out in note 2(g)(iv) and note 2(i)
respectively are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in total funds under capital subventions, and the
corresponding amounts are capitalised as property, plant and equipment
or intangible assets respectively. This includes capital expenditure on
furniture, fixtures, equipment, motor vehicles, computer hardware,
software and systems. Each year, an amount equal to the depreciation or
amortisation charge for these assets and net book value of assets
disposed of is transferred from capital subventions to the statement of
income and expenditure.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Principal accounting policies (Continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as expenses in the statement of income
and expenditure on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Translation of foreign currencies

Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Group operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the Group’s functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and
losses are dealt with in the statement of income and expenditure except
for Minor Works Projects Fund, which are recognised as deferred income.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa. Related parties also include key management personnel
having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group.

For the purpose of these financial statements, transactions between the
Group and Government departments, agencies or Government
controlled entities, other than those transactions that arise in the normal
dealings between the Government and the Group, are considered to be
related party transactions.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities of providing healthcare services to patients, the
administration of drugs, the employment of a large workforce and the
investment activities are primary areas of financial risks being mitigated
by the Group’s financial risk management process. The Group's
underlying principles of financial risk management are to transfer the
cost of financial risks of significant level through insurance with a
diversity of insurers, to self insure for the operational risks and to comply
with regulatory insurance requirements as an employer and owner of a
motor fleet.
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BIUZHEOI RS REBENIBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

(@)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

With regard to investments, in accordance with the Group's policies and
guidelines, the primary objectives are to meet liquidity requirements, to
protect capital and to provide a reasonable return. The investment
portfolio (“Portfolio”) as at 31 March 2015 consisted of bank deposits,
fixed income instruments and placement with the Exchange Fund. Based
on the risk control measures as summarised below, the risk of default by
the counterparties is considered minimal and the Portfolio has no
significant concentration of credit risk. Besides, the Group has no
significant currency risk because substantially all assets and liabilities are
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group's functional and
presentation currency. The Group manages its cash flow requirements
and risk as disclosed in note 3(c).

(i)

(i)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is the risk that counterparties may default on
its bank deposits, fixed income instruments and placement with
the Exchange Fund.

Bank deposits are placed with the Group's approved banks which
are of investment grade as determined by Standard and Poor’s and
Moody’s. For bank deposits, banks must meet the minimum credit
rating not lower than Moody’s Baa3 or equivalent.

All transactions in fixed income instruments are settled or paid for
upon delivery through approved banks. The credit risks of the
issuers are assessed based on the credit rating determined by
Standard and Poor’s or Moody's. Investments in fixed income
instruments (i.e. certificates of deposits) are with issuers of credit
rating not lower than Moody’s A3 or equivalent. Where the maturity
is over three years, the credit rating should not be lower than
Moody’s Aa3 or equivalent at the time of investments.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is entered into between
HA and the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”") and it is
expected that the HKMA can fulfill its contractual obligations to HA
in respect of the placement.

Interest rate risk

The Portfolio’s interest rate risk arises from interest bearing cash at
bank, bank deposits and fixed income instruments. Cash at bank,
which earns interest at variable rates, gives rise to cash flow interest
rate risk. Fixed rate bank deposits and fixed income instruments
expose the Portfolio to fair value interest rate risk. Sensitivity
analyses have been performed by the Group with regard to interest
rate risk as at 31 March 2015. If interest rates had been increased or
decreased by 50 basis points, which represent management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in those rates, and all
other variables were held constant, the effect on the Group’s
surplus and net assets is insignificant.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Price risk

Fixed income instruments are subject to the price risk caused by
the changes in the perceived credit risks of the issuers and market
interest rates as disclosed in note 3(a)(i) and note 3(a)(ii)
respectively.

Currency risk

The Group’s financial assets and liabilities are substantially
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, the Group's functional and
presentation currency, and hence will not be exposed to significant
currency risk.

(b) Fair values estimation

(i)

Financial assets carried at fair values

The Group's financial instruments that are measured at fair value are
categorised by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs).

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length basis.
These instruments are included in level 1. None of the instruments
of the Group is included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2. None of the
instruments of the Group is included in level 2.
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BUKHMBE RCEEOYHBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements
3. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b) Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at fair values (Continued)

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

— Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

— The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the reporting
date, with the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

—  Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are
used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is included in level 3. The
following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the
financial years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2015:

B FRERRMIEE
3. BIRAKRER®
b) ANREBEME @
() BARBEIERNIEEE (B)

BA—IA Bk % IR E K AL SRR AR AT B AR T 95 2K
B BETABREZE -
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— ENESHNAAEBEERBREANE
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— Bl Pl ER SR AN - B
EEHEBMTANAABIE -

SNEESTHRBRE=E - TREJBE-F
—ME=A=t+t-HALER=-F-AF=A
=H-HEFEE=ETANES

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZE2015F BZE 20145

3A31BLEE 3A3ELEEE

BET T BB

At beginning of year R4 4] 6,408,438 6,124,158
Addition [note 19(b)] &AM [FFEE 19(b)] 7,300,000 -
Interest 78 553,921 284,280
At end of year [note 8] REFL[KizES) 14,262,359 6,408,438

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values

The fair values of fixed income instruments (i.e. certificates of
deposits) at the reporting date are provided by the banks from
whom the instruments are purchased. These instruments are
summarised below:
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BUKHMBE RCEEOYHBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

3.

(b)

Financial risk management (Continued)

Fair values estimation (Continued)

(i) Financial assets not reported at fair values (Continued)

BIFSIRARMTEE
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The Group and HA
KEREBER
Carrying Value Fair Value
REEE DMREE
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014 At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 A31H 201443 A31H 201563 A31H 2014%3A31H
BT BETFT BT BT T
Fixed income instruments 1,650,000 - 1,658,626 -

BEEASILE

(i) The carrying values of other financial assets and liabilities such as
cash and bank balances, loans receivable, accounts receivable and
trade payables approximate their fair values and accordingly, no
disclosure of fair values for these items is presented.

Capital management

Under the Hospital Authority Ordinance, the resources of the Group
consist of the following:

(i) All money paid by the Government to HA and appropriated for that
purpose by the Legislative Council and otherwise provided to HA
by the Government; and

(i) All other money and property, including gifts, donations, fees, rent,
interest and accumulations of income received by HA.

In this regard, the capital of the Group comprises revenue reserve,
designated fund, capital subventions, capital donations and deferred
income as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. At 31 March 2015,
the capital of the Group was HK$26,572,618,000 (2014:
HK$25,316,517,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group's objective for managing capital is to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern to ensure sustainability of the
public health care system. As in previous years, the Group undertook a
budget planning process to work out a viable budget plan for the
financial year ended 31 March 2015. The annual budget is compiled by
assessing the total resources required for HA to meet its needs on
baseline services, pressure areas, as well as programmes approved for the
year and other initiatives incorporated in the HA annual plan. The
projected requirement has been mapped against the funding indicated
by the Government together with other sources of income, including
medical and non-medical fee income and alternative sources of income.
The Group targeted to contain the overall expenditure within the total
funding available. The Group will also make every endeavour to meet the
rising service demand and ensure the best use of public resources. To
enhance accountability for the appropriate use of resources, key
performance indicators have been developed to measure performance

of hospitals/clusters and monthly financial report on HA and clusters’

performance has been reviewed to monitor the spending level against
budget on an ongoing basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to
exercise significant judgments in the selection and application of
accounting policies, including making estimates and assumptions. The
following is a review of the more significant accounting policies that are
impacted by judgments and uncertainties and for which different
amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or using
different assumptions.

Provision for doctors’and non-doctors'claims

165 doctors had filed claims against HA for alleged failure to grant rest
days, statutory holidays, public holidays and overtime worked over a
period going back to 1996 in High Court Action No. 1924 of 2002. Similar
claims were lodged by other doctors in the Labour Tribunal between
2006 and 2012 and they were adjourned pending assessment of the
High Court claim.

HA paid out HK$525,434,000 during the financial year ended 31 March
2007 and HK$222,640,000 between the financial years ended 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2013 under two settlement packages implemented
in 2006 and 2010 respectively.

Following the Court of Final Appeal ruling in October 2009 and the
assessment of damages for the three lead plaintiffs in High Court Action
No. 1924 of 2002 in June 2012, damages in respect of the three lead
plaintiffs were paid in September 2012. HA has since settled over 90% of
remaining claims in High Court Action No. 1924 of 2002 and the Labour
Tribunal.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

(Continued)

Provision for doctors’and non-doctors' claims (Continued)

Meanwhile, HA paid out HK$63,294,000 between the financial years
ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2015 under the call payment offer
to eligible non-doctors approved by the HA Board. A number of non-
doctors had filed claims against HA in the Labour Tribunal for rest days,
statutory and public holidays or claims under the call payment offer.
These claims were either settled or adjourned by the Labour Tribunal.

Presently, uncertainties remain in relation to the eventual outcome of the
outstanding claims and/or potential claims. A provision of
HKS$121,224,000 (2014: HKS129,342,000) has been made in the financial
statements as at 31 March 2015, representing management'’s best
estimates after making reference to the court rulings and an
independent qualified actuary.

Provision for medical malpractice claims

The Group co-insures and retains a designated sum for each medical
malpractice claim. For those professional liability claims in excess of the
retained sum, the claims will be borne by the insurer. In view of the
complex nature and long development period of the claims, a Claims
Review Panel consisting of the participating medical malpractice
insurers, the external panel law firms appointed by the insurers and HA's
in-house experts review the status of potential and active claims semi-
annually and assess the provision required on each significant case. An
independent qualified actuary also assists the Group on the assessment
of the exposure of other reported cases based on historical development
trend of the claims settlement. With reference to the assessments and
the analysis by the Claims Review Panel and the external actuarial
consultant respectively, management reviews the claims exposure and
determines the provision required to cover the Group's exposure at each
reporting date. Such provision is included in accrued charges and other
payables in note 16.

Death and disability liabilities

The Group engages an independent qualified actuary to assess the
present value of obligations for its death and disability scheme at each
year end date. Major actuarial assumptions include the discount rate and
salary inflation rate which are set out in note 18. The present value of the
Group's obligations is discounted with reference to market yields on
Hong Kong Government Bonds, which have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related obligations. The long-term salary
inflation is generally based on the market's long-term expectation of
price inflation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B FE IR A<M 5T
5. Property, plant and equipment 5. Y HBRRE
The Group
%8
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA - EE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
RENEEE  EERERE RE BERE @it
BT T BT BT T BT T BT T
Cost FiA
At 1 April 2014 720145451 H 1,053,138 9,069,214 242,734 693,545 11,058,631
Reclassifications E#1 %8 - 3,950 - (3,950) -
Additions &0 13,658 1,068,393 17,932 99,274 1,199,257
Disposals & (2,045) (339,223) (6,979) (56,234) (404,481)
At31March2015 R201543 8318 1064751 9802334 253687 732635 11853407 _
Accumulated depreciation EEHE
At 1 April 2014 201454 A1 H 363,475 5,898,653 157,937 507,825 6,927,890
Reclassifications E#T%8 - 2,682 - (2,682) -
Charge for the year AFEZHTE 23,181 567,579 25,653 70,584 686,997
Disposals & (1,087) (336,191) (6,979) (55,761) (400,018)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H o §8§,§69 o _6,13_2,Z2§ L 17_6,6_11 o é1_9,96§ o _7,21&@69 |
Net book value fREFE
At 31 March 2015 7201543 31 H 679,182 3,669,611 77,076 212,669 4,638,538
HA
BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XA - EE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RENEEE  EERERE RE BERE @it
BET T BT BT T BT T BT
Cost F{ZA
At 1 April 2014 7201454518 1,053,138 9,069,214 242,734 690,908 11,055,994
Reclassifications E#15 %8 - 3,950 - (3,950) -
Additions &0 13,658 1,068,393 17,932 99,274 1,199,257
Disposals & (2,045) (339,223) (6,979) (56,234) (404,481)
At 31 March 2015 7201543 531 H 1,064,751 9,802,334 253,687 729,998 11,850,770
Accumulated depreciation EEHE
At 1 April 2014 7201454 A1 H 363,475 5,898,653 157,937 505,188 6,925,253
Reclassifications E#15 %8 - 2,682 - (2,682) -
Charge for the year NFE 2 & 23,181 567,579 25,653 70,584 686,997
Disposals HE& (1,087) (336,191) (6,979) (55,761) (400,018)
At31March2015 R201543 8318 385569 6132723 176611 517329 7212232
Net book value FREEE
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H 679,182 3,609,611 77,076 212,669 4,638,538
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Notes to the Financial Statements B FE IR A<M 5T
5. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 5. Y% HB/REE @
The Group
%5
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$’000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 XE& - EE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RENRRE EERBE HE BERE @it
BETT BET T BET T BT T BT T
Cost FiA
At 1 April 2013 7201354 H1H 1,051,770 8,554,987 216,782 654,110 10,477,649
Reclassifications E¥15 4R - (160) - 160 -
Additions &0 1,368 881,004 33,750 64,481 980,603
Disposals & - (366,617) (7,798) (25,206) (399,621)
At 31 March 2014 7201453 A31H 1,053,138 9,069,214 242,734 693,545 11,058,631
Accumulated depreciation EEHE
At 1 April 2013 720134 H1H 340,736 5,661,946 138,752 462473 6,603,907
Charge for the year AFEZHTE 22,739 597,685 26,983 70,111 717,518
Disposals & - (360,978) (7,798) (24,759) (393,535)
At 31 March 2014 7201453 A31H o ;%6_3175 o _5,§9§,§5§ o 15_79_32 o 50_75225 o _6,92_7,5299 |
Net book value RREFE
At31 March 2014 1201443 A31 B 689,663 3,170,561 84,797 185,720 4,130,741
HA
BER
Furniture,
fixtures and
Building and equipment Motor Computer
improvements HK$'000 vehicles equipment Total
HK$'000 & - BEE HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEYREKE KERZRBE TE EhRBE #Et
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
Cost R4~
At 1 April 2013 M2013F4 81 H 1,051,770 8,554,987 216,782 651,473 10,475,012
Reclassifications EH#T %8 - (160) - 160 -
Additions &0 1,368 881,004 33,750 64,481 980,603
Disposals & - (366,617) (7,798) (25,206) (399,621)
At 31 March 2014 72201443 31 H L _1,95_3,1_3§ o _9,(_)6_9,2_14_1 o 24_2134_1 o 99_0%0§ o 1_1 ,95_5,994
Accumulated depreciation REHE
At 1 April 2013 201354 A1 H 340,736 5,661,946 138,752 459,836 6,601,270
Charge for the year NFE 2 #E 22,739 597,685 26,983 70,111 717,518
Disposals & - (360,978) (7,798) (24,759) (393,535)
At 31 March 2014 7201443 31 H o 56_34175 o _5,898,653 157,937 505,188 6,925,253
Net book value BREEE
At 31 March 2014 7201453 A31H 689,663 3,170,561 84,797 185,720 4,130,741
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Notes to the Financial Statements B RS RMIEE
6. Intangible assets 6. BEEE
The Group
&8
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE2015F BZE 201445
3A3MHLEE 3A3BIEEE
BT BT
Cost F{Z
At beginning of year ) 1,102,768 941,376
Additions &0 127,720 161,613
Disposals Hi& (66,359) (221)
Atendofyear ®&& 1,164,129 1102768
Accumulated amortisation RE#H
At beginning of year R4 623,482 431,883
Charge for the year A&7 #H 92,106 191,820
Disposals & (66,123) (221)
Atendofyear & 649,465 623482
Net book value fRMEEE
At end of year IRF# 514,664 479,286

HA
BER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE2015F BZE 20144
3A31ALEE 3A3BLEEE
BET T BT
Cost AN
At beginning of year R4 1,093,906 933,875
Additions &0 126,598 160,252
Disposals & (66,359) (221)
At end of year RF#K 1,154,145 1,093,906
Accumulated amortisation EE#H
At beginning of year 4] 615,981 425,248
Charge for the year AFE 2 #H 91,569 190,954
Disposals HE& (66,123) (221)
Atendofyear R&& 641,427 615981
Net book value fREEE
At end of year RF# 512,718 477,925
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Notes to the Financial Statements

7.

BIFSIRARMTEE

Loans receivable 7. EWER
Certain eligible employees under the Home Loan Interest Subsidy ERERHBITNBEEERAEZMEIT  —&5F
Scheme were offered downpayment loans for the purchase of their HBEEFESEHBHERUEE EM( 8 AERG
residential properties (‘Downpayment Loan Scheme”). The repayment 2l]) - ERERNERI A ERBFHE20F - M
period of the loans is the shorter of the mortgage life and 20 years. BEERE BHERNEXHBEERTRAE - 1
Interest charged on the downpayment loans is determined by the Group TR AF=A=1+—HKAR/1395% (=T —MF :
from time to time and is set at 1.395% as at 31 March 2015 (2014: 1395%) - HHEFGIEIE — ST —FWAREE(= -
1.395%). Downpayment Loan Scheme has been suspended since April
2002.
At 31 March 2015, the downpayment loans advanced to eligible staff E-Z—RF=A=+—8 BERGEEREERDN
which are fully secured by charges over the properties are as follows: BB A YEETRERNOT
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201543 A31H 201493 A31H
BET T BB
Repayable within one year —FR{EE 1,053 1,240
Repayable beyond one year #iE—FE&E 4,193 5,597
5,246 6,837
The loans receivable is neither past due nor impaired. The maximum FEUERI EBEERE - £HREBRANEERR
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the = i ERERMEEE - BETSNERRGEE &
receivable mentioned above. According to the terms and conditions of HESNEAAS R EBReERENF SR -
the scheme, the monthly principal repayment and payment of interest in ElREENERE ST B REEE B HERLTY
respect of the downpayment loans are deducted from the employees’ ME - BEERE BERATEETE ] Al &S EM
wages and that any benefits to which an employee will be entitled to Wz - REIREL R - Al EREREHRE
receive under the HA Provident Fund Scheme shall stand charged with Al LATE 2 URE] o
repayment of downpayment loan and interest thereon if such debt has
not been paid by the employee upon resignation or on an agreed date.
On this basis, the receivable balance is considered to be fully recoverable.
Placement with the Exchange Fund 8. NHNEEEHER

HA has designated the placement with the Exchange Fund as a “financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss”. The valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are
the discounted cash flow and discount rate respectively. The placement
is denominated in Hong Kong dollar. Its fair value is determined with
reference to the estimated rates of investment return for future years and
approximates its carrying value.

BERRERRINEESFIRSR [TRAREET
RRERGRE CMBEE] - HAABEEMA
BV ERM REARATBEGA © DHRBER LR
KB E  BIRFIANBTREN - EARBEEBE
RRFENEFREDREETE - BEREEEE

ot

Eo
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BUKHMBE RCEEOYHBRR

Notes to the Financial Statements

8.

Placement with the Exchange Fund (Continued)

The interest on the placement is at a fixed rate determined annually in
January and payable annually in arrears on 31 December. The rate of
return is calculated on the basis of the average annual rate of return on
certain investment portfolio of the Exchange Fund over the past six years
or the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes in the
previous year (subject to a minimum of zero percent), whichever is the
higher. This rate of return has been fixed at 3.6% and 5.5% per annum for
January to December 2014 and January to December 2015, respectively.
HA did not withdraw the interest earned up to 31 December 2014 which
would continue to accrue interest at the same rate payable for the
principal amount.

The placement with the Exchange Fund is analysed as follows::

Minor Works Projects
Fund [Note 19(b)]

FI PSRRI EE

8.

MEREESTFR &

EEGRNEXRERE  EEF—AET  UNEF
+ZA=t+—B%ft - ERERZINEESIRERE
BENFHFIREBRE - A=FHINEESES
BE—FHNEEFERRZEFE(FER®) @ LB
BERE . —ET—NF—AE+-AR=-T—RHF—
RZETZAMNESFERIRESFIA36% K&55% BEH
BREZBHE-ZT—NF+=-A=+—BEKNHF
B BUTIERIRAS A Z B REERTH S -

SNEESFROITMT

Custodian for Samaritan

Fund [Note 15]

The fixed income instruments represent Hong Kong dollar certificates of
deposits with maturity periods within five years from the date of
purchase. The investment yield for the year ended 31 March 2015 is
between 1.75% and 2.55%.

At 31 March 2015, the fixed income instruments held by the Group and
HA are as follows:

NTREEES EARBREESH Total
[ B3 19(b)] RE N[HIE 15] st
At31 March At31 March  At31March At31 March  At31March At 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2015 F 20144 2015 F 20144 2015 20144
3A318  3A31H° 3A318  3A31H° 3A318  3A31H°
BETT BT IT BET T BT T BET T BT T
Principal Amount ZA"& 7,300,000 - 6,000,000 6,000,000 13,300,000 6,000,000
Interest earned but not withdrawn 190,800 - 580,726 352,053 771,526 352,053
at the reporting date
#Hd A ATERZ A IRIAF B
Accrued interest JE&TFIE 101,587 - 89,246 56,385 190,833 56,385
7,592,387 - 6,669,972 6,408,438 14,262,359 6,408,438
Less: non-current portion (7,300,000) - (6,000,000) (6,000,000) (13,300,000) (6,000,000)
W FERENE S
Current portion Ji#Ef 5o 292,387 - 669,972 408,438 962,359 408,438
9. Fixed income instruments 9. EEAERIA

E)\Elﬂ%#ﬁmﬁ%%ﬁElﬁzﬁi?rﬁilﬂq@lﬂﬁﬂ’ﬁ%ﬁ
GRFE —T—hF=A=+—HLFEMNEERS
TE1.75% & 2.55% 2 [ °

R-ZE-—AF=A=+—H SERBERFENE
EAL

ABTENMT :

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

20153 A31H 201493 A31H

BET T BETT

Maturing within one year — R Hj - -
Maturing between one and five years —% R & A 1,650,000 -
1,650,000 -

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements B PR ERIRMY5E
9. Fixed income instruments (Continued) 9. EIEAEIER

PR BEELR G RBNRRE  ELEENEEHR
ERBENMEE3E - £HRE R - RANEERRZH
F30)) PPELEEN DA BE - FEWARFAE

The above financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit
quality of these assets is disclosed in note 3(a) while the maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of these assets

as stated in note 3(b)(ii). The Group does not hold any collateral as security. AR G VR o
10. Inventories 10. &
The Group and HA
SEREER

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

201543 A31H 201443 A31H

BT T BT

Drugs %4 1,086,706 1,150,776

Medical consumables E#ZEFEm 199,220 188,338

General consumables —#&JE#Em 27,642 29,505

1,313,568 1,368,619

11. Accounts receivable

11. FEURBRFX

The Group and HA
SEREBER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
201563 A31H 201443 A31H
BT T BT
Bills receivable [note 11(a)] EUWERE [FIFE11(R)] 384,690 335,167
Accrued income FERTIRA 14,824 16,050
399,514 351,217
Less: Provision for doubtful debts [note 11(b)] ¥ : RERE M [FIFE11(0)] (46,404) (57,900)
353,110 293,317

(a) Aging analysis of bills receivable is set out below:

(@) EREBHESSTOT

The Group and HA
EEREBER

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 HA31H 201443 A31H
BT T BETT
Below 30 days 30 HIAT 164,370 130,647
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 61,342 66,432
Between 61 and 90 days 61 %90 H 95,794 40,375
Over 90 days #8:@90 H 63,184 97,713
384,690 335,167

e p

B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11. Accounts receivable (Continued)

AP IRIRMIEE
11. BEWERR &)

The Group's policy in respect of patient billing is as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Patients attending outpatient and accident and emergency services
are required to pay fees before services are performed.

Private patients and non-eligible persons are required to pay
deposit on admission to hospital.

Interim bills are sent to patients during hospitalisation. Final bills are
sent if the outstanding amounts have not been settled on
discharge.

Administrative charge is imposed on late payments of medical fees
and charges for medical services provided on or after 1 July 2007.
The administrative charge is imposed at 5% of the outstanding fees
past due for 60 days from issuance of the bills, subject to a
maximum charge of HK$1,000 for each bill. An additional 10% of
the outstanding fees are imposed if the bills remain outstanding 90
days from issuance of the bills, subject to a maximum additional

SEEERBARENBRNT

¢

() AEIPIR 2P R REE R AR EZ 288

?%SIHEH% g

(i) ARBAMFFEEBALTALRRABNG S -

(i) EFrEmERRE AL R HARE o BRMFEAE
B RANEANER  Biiei ik
BIMAN o

vy M-TTLFLHA B BATRENEER
% %%B%ﬂs‘zﬁ;%?ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%%zﬁﬁg WTERREE
BB 0 BIARBEHER &3 IMIUAR 5%
ERITHE - &ﬁ%ﬁi@ﬁmmm,WE%
BEHEZEOBNABHRER Al BIMIKK
AR 10% 1ERTTIE - §IEARE LR A10,0007T °

charge of HK$10,000 for each bill.

(v) Legal action will be instituted for outstanding bills where
appropriate. Patients who have financial difficulties may be

considered for waiver of fees charged.

An aging analysis of receivables that are past due but not impaired is as

) & o R A0 BR FUR [ B B R BREUER 21T
@J *ﬁ_ﬁ&/@.“@iﬁﬁ’]r/\ SEEEETUNER
R ©

BHMERARER YR ERIREE DT -

follows:
The Group and HA
EEREBER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 H31H 014493 A31H
BT AT
Past due by: 385
Below 30 days 30 HUA'R 129,195 92,058
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 47,178 51,386
Between 61 and 90 days 61290 H 86,095 30,160
Over 90 days #3890 H 26,121 49,517
288,589 223,121

Receivables that are past due but not impaired include outstanding
debts to be settled by government departments, charitable
organisations or other institutions for whom the credit risk associated
with these receivables is relatively low. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Notes to the Financial Statements B PR ERIRMY5E
11. Accounts receivable (Continued) 11. EUWRBRER ()

(b) At 31 March 2015, bills receivable of HK$96,101,000 (2014: (b) R=—ZT—HEF=HB=+—H8 " # %¥9,101,0007T

HKS$112,046,000) were impaired by HK$46,404,000 (2014: HK$57,900,000) (ZZ V04 : % 112,046,000 7T ) &) FE U R BE B
of which HK$20,718,000 (2014: HK$30,203,000) related to receivables # 46,404,000 7T (= F — 4 : ¥ 57,9000007T) - H
individually determined to be impaired. These mainly related to non- H ¥k 20,718,000 7T (== — M4 : #K30,203,000 7T )
eligible persons, the recoverability of which are considered to be low HERRERENEYREERE  EZEPRIEFEE
after taking all possible debt recovery actions. Remaining allowance for AT - 8RB ERENFTA Al BET TED Al PY3E LRUR R -
impairment of HK$25,686,000 (2014: HK$27,697,000) was made by ERINKRE#EETAK - FE2E LERNBIRFERE
reference to historical past due recovery patterns. It was assessed that a W& - fETVEDL T % 25,686,000 7T (=T —PU4F : 7
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The aging analysis & 27,697,000 7T ) ERFRRUERG IR - (A 5105 BRFKE AT 1K
of these receivables is as follows: B o ELLEIARE M AREC DATLAT ¢
The Group and HA
SEREBER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 A31H 201493 HA31H
BT T BT
Below 30 days 30 HLAT® 35,175 38,589
Between 31 and 60 days 31260 H 14,164 15,046
Between 61 and 90 days 61290 H 9,699 10,215
Over 90 days #3890 H 37,063 48,196
96,101 112,046
Movements in the provision for impairment of accounts receivable are as FEUERFORE R ENE ST :
follows:
The Group and HA
KEREER
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
HZ20155F BE2014F
3A31HIE 3 )EJ 31H Ll:
BET T BETIT
At beginning of year R4FH] 57,900 49,094
Additional provision &N 52,227 45,052
Uncollectible amounts written off & #5#) R4 B A FE (63,723) (36,246)
At end of year A 46,404 57,900
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair ERER - RANGEERRE BRI DR E
value of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any 18 - SECRFEA AR G R o

collateral as security.
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12. Other receivables

B FRERIRMY 5
12. EAEURERFR

The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201543 A31H 201493 A31H
BET T BT T
Donations receivable FEYIBTR 96,432 67,161
Interest receivable F&UYF]E 82,589 60,524
Receivable from the Government for reimbursement or refund of 2 -
expenditure incurred on capital projects
BT sGREE A TIZIE B AT M EIGIE
Others At 37,506 28,617
216,529 156,302

HEWHIRT EREEE - £3EH - ZANEE
= bt S B RUGREN AR EE - KRELREH

Other receivables do not contain impaired assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class

of receivable mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral

EE AR G R o

as security.

13. Deposits and prepayments

13. RERFANKIA

The Group
&8

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201543 A31H 201493 A31H
BT T BT
Utility and other deposits 2 F2E R E ML 23,799 24,834
Prepayments to Government departments [A1BUR &RPITEL #9508 72,725 57,287
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments #R& & 49 & H At FE 5118 183,106 169,970
279,630 252,091

HA

BER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
20153 H31H 201443 A31H
BET T BT
Utility and other deposits AR EXREMIEZS 23,716 24,751
Prepayments to Government departments [REUT 0PI B HI IR 72,725 57,287
Maintenance contracts and other prepayments /& & 49 & E At T 5118 183,106 169,970
279,547 252,008
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14. Cash and bank balances 14. RERBITHEER
The Group and HA
EEREBER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 A31H 201443 A31H
BET T BETIT
Cash at bank and in hand $RITFEREFHFRE 725,252 1,030,810
Bank deposits with original maturity within three months 2,340,948 13,627,396
[FIREIHA A TR =18 A MER1T1T X
Cash and cash equivalents & REE£EE 3,066,200 14,658,206
Bank deposits with original maturity over three months 17,737,531 13,369,608
[RIRENEA B BB = 18 A HiRIT1E
20,803,731 28,027,814
The effective interest rate on short term bank deposits is between 0.01% RHRITEFRNERF ER001% £1.11%2
and 1.11% (2014: 0.01% and 1.60%). These deposits have an average (ZZ—V4F : 001% = 160% 2MH) @ ELERFH
maturity of 49 days (2014: 56 days). AR A49 R (ZZT—M4F : 56K) ©
15. Balance with Samaritan Fund 15. MIBFASESLER

FI PSRRI EE

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Government injected
HK$10,000,000,000 to support the operation of the Samaritan Fund, which
was established in 1950 by resolution of the Legislative Council for the
purpose of providing financial assistance to needy patients. As instructed
by the Government, HK$4,000,000,000 was vested immediately in the
Samaritan Fund. The balance of HK$6,000,000,000 not immediately
required by the Samaritan Fund was placed with the Exchange Fund since
8 November 2012 by way of a credit facility entered into between HA and
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority for a fixed period of six years during
which time HA would not be able to withdraw the principal amount.

EHE-Z—=F=ZA=+—HIEZHBREE ' BUT
MRS R S E £ )E BB 10,000,000,000 T8 * AT HEE
SHBIE - HOFFDESR —NASTFLE LA BRE
K BWRAARZENRARMER - RIBEFE
N AEUB T 4000,000,000 TTHI BRI AR S
&R T 7 BN EF 55 2 #9785 5 6,000,000,000 7T * R IEEEE
RESERAMINEELRHE A= —=F+—AN
ARFAINERES - FHETE ANF - EUL R

BERTREXHEERS -

As HA is acting as a custodian for the Samaritan Fund, the cumulative HRNBEERREARNBHNEESHNREA 282
investment return up to 31 March 2015 was recorded together with the T -RF=A=T—HIEFENRERELHRER
principal amount as balance with Samaritan Fund, which is unsecured, e BIERISH R ES AR - EEFHRERK
interest free and denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The principal RE - BT REN - WREIHARE -

amount is repayable upon the maturity of the placement.

The balance with Samaritan Fund is analysed as follows:

RESNIEES SR

At 31 March 2015

At 31 March 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

201563 A31H 201443 A31H

BT BB

Principal Amount A& 6,000,000 6,000,000

Interest earned but not withdrawn at the reporting date 580,726 352,053
] HFTEER A R R EMA

Accrued interest JEFTHIE 89,246 56,385

6,669,972 6,408,438

Less: non-current portion & : FERENER S (6,000,000) (6,000,000)

Current portion ENEFH 669,972 408,438

e p

B HFHR 2014-2015
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16. Creditors and accrued charges

AP ER IR EE
16. EREARENSER

The Group
%H
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HKS$'000
201543 A31H 201493 A31H
BET T BB
Trade payables [note 16 (a)] FERTE SR [T 16()] 362,125 207,301
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16 (b)] 4,875,208 4,364,721
FERTE A I E M BR R [ M3 16(0)]
Current account with the Government [note 16 ()] 5,111,508 4,454,327
BT < eV RERR B [FI5E 16(0)]
10,348,841 9,026,349

HA
BER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HKS$'000
201538310 201443 A31H
BT BT
Trade payables [note 16 (a)] FERTE S8R5 [T 16()] 362,125 207,301
Accrued charges and other payables [note 16 (b)] 4,874,660 4,364,525
FERHE A I E M BR AR [MIEE 16(0)]
Current account with the Government [note 16 (c)] 5,111,508 4,454,327
ELIR T 2 R RR B [FiFE 16(0)]
Current account with a subsidiary B2 B8 2 & RERE 471 119
10,348,764 9,026,272

(a) An aging analysis of trade payables is set out below:

(@) ERESEXNELBIWTHT :

The Group and HA
EEREBER

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 H31H 201443 A31H
BETT BETT
Below 30 days 30 HA'R 285,545 194,731
Between 31 and 60 days 31 £ 60 H 38,935 10,098
Between 61 and 90 days 61 %90 H 20,854 1,719
Over 90 days #8890 H 16,791 753
362,125 207,301

All trade payables as at 31 March 2015 are expected to be settled within
one year. The Group has maintained adequate cash flows and banking
facilities for settlement of trade payables.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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16.

(b)

(©)

17.

18.

Creditors and accrued charges (Continued)

Accrued charges and other payables included accrual for annual leave of
HK$1,756,146,000 (2014: HK$1,659,186,000) and contract gratuity accrual
of HK$1,233,794,000 (2014: HKS$1,099,314,000). The balance also included
a provision for doctors’and non-doctors’ claims of HK$121,224,000 (2014:
HK$129,342,000) as described in note 4(a).

The balance mainly included Government funding for designated
programmes or specific items that were already received and will be
recognised as income over the periods in which the related expenditure
isincurred and charged to the statement of income and expenditure.

FI PSRRI EE

16.

()

(@)

EBEARENSER @

EREAREMERCERAREREEEE
1,756,146,0007C( = T — M 4 : & #1,659,186,000
T0) + AR FEET G AN S 7 %1,233,794000 0 (= F
— P4 @ B#1,0993140007T) © EHRINBIE—FH
#5121,224,000 T4 (= F — P 4F : 74 85 129,342,000
JL) A AT K EE 4() Al 45 B8 A K SEES AR B B A48
BEEE -

AERR T B BRI BT R B R AT B3k R TR B Ry
B BEBRFARRXEERERARSEERE
TERIERA -

Deposits received 17. EWEE
The Group and HA
EEREER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
20153 A31H 201453 H31H
BT AT
Patient deposits HmAZE 38,235 39,476
Deposits received from the Government in respect of building projects 8,710 -
MBETREBUTAENZES
Other deposits E iz 161,107 132,978
208,052 172,454
Death and disability liabilities 18. AT REEBATRE

Under their terms of employment, HA employees are entitled to death and
disability benefit cover. This is funded by HA through the recurrent
subvention from the Government.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

RIFERGE - BERNERNZALT REERT
RIZ - Zet BB EREBENOEEIEMETUE
By -

BEABERTIAERRRELT

The Group and HA
SEREER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
20153 H31H 201493 A31H
BET T BT
Present value of funded obligations JE& & EHRE 239,936 206,350
Fair value of plan assets T EIEEM AR EE (2,044) (6,663)
237,892 199,687

BT EE RF R 2014-2015
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18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The movement in the present value of funded obligations is as follows:

The Group and HA
KEREER

FI PSRRI EE

18. AT REERTBREE @

TEBEZRERHMT

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$'000 HKS$'000

BE2015F = 20145

3ABILLEE 3A3ALLFE

BT BETT

At beginning of year R4FH] 206,350 207,103
Current service cost FR1TARTSFH = 27,447 30,844
Interest cost FEFX 5,048 2,848
Benefits paid E1F1&%| (6,543) (4,727)
Remeasurement of disability liability @R EEEHTE 1,606 (2,403)
Remeasurement of death liability St @M B EEIFHE 6,028 (27,315)
Atend of year £ 239,936 206,350

The movement in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

The Group and HA
EEREER

HEBENDA EERBNT :

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

BZE2015F BZE 20144

3A31ALEE 3A3ELEEE

BT T BETIT

At beginning of year R 6,663 10,079
Adjustment on plan assets 5T EI& &8I FH (5,258) (3,286)
Employer contributions 1& =5k 7,182 4,597
Benefits paid E 4@ (6,543) (4,727)
Atend of year R 2,044 6,663

The death benefits are insured by a group life insurance policy and the
current insurance policy covers the period up to 31 July 2015. The fair
value of plan assets was taken as the present value of the expected
death benefits with respect to the obligations covered by the policy.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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18. AT REERTBREE @

Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of income and
expenditure and consolidated statement of comprehensive income have

TIRERE B EERRGS 2 ERER T AR
MR - RIRBBEMESD

been calculated by reference to an actuarial valuation and are as follows:

The Group and HA
EEREER

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

BZ2015F BHZE 20144

3AAILLEE 3A3ALLFE

BT T BT T

Current service cost H1TARISFH = 27,447 30,844

Interest cost FLEFX 5,048 2,848

Remeasurement of disability liability SEEMNEEEMT= 1,606 (2,403)

Total, included in staff costs [note 23] 45 (RIFEE TRAR) [F5E 23] 34,101 31,289

Remeasurement of death liability St T&FIEEEFFE 6,028 (27,315)

Recognition of previously unrecognised actuarial loss - 1,304
BRAER TR BEAEEE

Adjustment on plan assets (excluding interest income) 5,258 3,286
FFEIEENFE (TEEMNEMA)

Total, included in other comprehensive income 11,286 (22,725)

fEH (BREEELEEREA)

Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation are as
follows:

The Group and HA
EEREER

RBEGERANIZEREMRKRET

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HZE 20155 HE 20145

3A3MHLEE 3ATHIEFE

% %

Discount rate BRIRE 1.60 2.50
Assumed rate of future salary increases Ra& AR E & 15 1E 3.70 3.60

B BE R 2014-2015
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18. Death and disability liabilities (Continued)

The analysis below shows how the present value of the funded
obligations as at 31 March 2015 would have increased/(decreased) as a
result of the following changes in the principal actuarial assumptions:

NI RABIEIA T EZRBERRAE -

FI PSRRI EE

18. AT REERTBREE @

BE==F

—RF=ZA=t—BEXERERENEM Cid) :

Increase in Decrease in
50 basis points 50 basis points
HK$’000 HK$’000
R F 50 % T FIEHE 50 %7
BT T BT
Discount rate BhER 3 (13,386) 14,619
Assumed rate of future salary increases RERAKH & E1E 14,109 (13,052)
19. Deferred income 19. ELE Rz
The Group and HA
SEREBER
Tseung Kwan O Minor Works
Designated Hospital Fund Projects Fund
donation fund [Note 19(a)] [Note 19(b)]
[Note 2(f)] HK$’000 HK$’000
HK$’000 % B REE B NRITRR Total
EEREES e HEES HK$'000
[BiE 2] [MEE19(a)]  [KfaE 19(b)] #st
BET T BT BT T BET T
At 1 April 2013 7201354 A1 H 417,642 72,786 - 490,428
Additions during the year R0 299,002 - 13,000,000 13,299,002
Interest earned P& & - - 15,684 15,684
Utilisation during the year R JER - (6,010) - (6,010)
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (182,755) - (207,583) (390,338)
expenditure
HRATGREBEEER
At 31 March 2014 7201453 A31H 533,889 66,776 12,808,101 13,408,766
Additions during the year R0 230,760 - - 230,760
Interest earned FTEF S - - 382,845 382,845
Utilisation during the year F &R (194) - (194)
Transfers to consolidated statement of comprehensive - (25,439) (25,439)
income
ERTGE 2 EEEE
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and (229,599) - (1,011,020) (1,240,619)
expenditure
HRATGRAEREIEER
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H 535,050 66,582 12,154,487 12,756,119
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19. Deferred income (Continued)

(@)

Tseung Kwan O Hospital Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 1996, the Government advanced
HK$2,047,290,000 to HA for the construction of Tseung Kwan O Hospital. All
interest earned from this grant is repaid annually to the Government. The
hospital was commissioned during the financial year ended 31 March 2000.
The remaining fund balance will be used for project costs and any unspent
balance will be repaid to the Government.

Minor Works Projects Fund

During the financial year ended 31 March 2014, the Government
advanced HK$13,000,000,000 (under Subhead 8083MM) to HA for minor
works projects to improve the existing facilities in public hospitals and
clinics. The one-off grant has replaced the annual block funding
allocation under Capital Works Reserve Fund — Improvement Works Block
Vote (Subhead 8100MX) and covers minor works projects under five
planned progammes, with costing not more than HK$75 million for each
individual item. The five programmes are facility rejuvenation
programme, capacity enhancement programme, safe engineering
programme, universal accessibility programme and regular maintenance
/minor works and preparatory works for major capital works projects.

As approved by the Government, HA has placed HK$7,300,000,000 with
the Exchange Fund over a period of six years since 11 April 2014 while
the remaining funds have been managed internally and invested within
the ambit of HA's prevailing investment guidelines. The approved grant,
together with the related investment income, will be fully used to meet
the costs of the minor works projects in the coming 10 years or so. For
the use of funds, HA will continue to seek prior approval from the
Government for each individual item of expenditure to be funded by the
one-off grant, as has been the practice for the use of funds under
Subhead 8100MX.

Minor Works Projects Fund balance predominantly comprised non-
current items.

BIFSIRARMTEE

19.

(@)

ERE W ()
BERERES

REBEE—ANAAFZA=Z+—BHLENTREER K
I T8 2 A% 2,047,290000 T FEE B + MAEEGER
Bt - TERBEEHBNF EGFHEHT - 1§F
BERDREE—TTTF=A=+—HILNTERE
EARA - ESHNSBREBAUSHEERY - K
KEANREEREBLET -

NEVTIRIREES

REE=Z—NF=A=1+—HIENTREER K
JiF 78 3% 75 % 13,000,000,000 7T (43 B 8083MMIE T ) T &8
ER - UET R TIZIER - RERA B RZH
IR RRIE - EE—AURRERBEEFEREAT
EHREHEES - NS TREMEEEI(H E 8100MX)
Wiz A @ T8 TEE LR AEE 75008 TH
NRIBET AR - AEREIREREEEE - REE
RARTE - REMELTE - MRAAGERITAE
AR ERME, NI TREEREETEAENERT
fE o

BT RERMFIE  RT—NENA+— B8
7,300,000000 TT/F ASNEE S + BEINF - BRRER
HDEE - WRBRBEERRITNRERTETIRE - &
BEFCERABEAMEWA - AU RROTFL
NITIRIEARY - HRESHER BERSH

BAER S B 8100MXIE NES MMUE - SHE—IRA
BRA NS EFRXIE B B EIBTHUE

NITIRIRR ESHHERBIEIEREIAR -

o

BB FHF 2014-2015
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20. Capital subventions and capital donations

FI PSRRI EE

20. EXRMBIREABE

The Group
%H
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)] [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$’000 Total
B A B R HK$’000
[ Kt 2(n)] [HEE 2(F)] L
BET T BETT BET T
At 1 April 2013 720134 H1H 3,164,315 1,218,920 4,383,235
Additions during the year FR3E10 1,015,202 127,014 1,142,216
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (787,916) (127,508) (915,424)
HRATGRER AR
At 31 March 2014 7201443 431 H 3,391,601 1,218,426 4,610,027
Additions during the year FR& N 1,143,643 157,895 1,301,538
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 25,439 - 25439
ERE/ETRERES
Transfers to consolidated statement of income and expenditure (673,485) (110,317) (783,802)
ERTHFEa R EER
At 31 March 2015 7201543 A31H 3,887,198 1,266,004 5,153,202
HA
BER
Capital Capital
subventions donations
[Note 2(r)] [Note 2(f)]
HK$’000 HK$'000 Total
BB BXRRRE HK$’000
[FfaE 2(n)] [HtEE 2(f)1 Mt
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2013 720134 /18 3,163,449 1,218,920 4,382,369
Additions during the year R0 1,013,841 127,014 1,140,855
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (787,050) (127,508) (914,558)
ERTW S
At 31 March 2014 7201453 A31H 3,390,240 1,218,426 4,608,666
Additions during the year R0 1,142,521 157,895 1,300,416
Transfers from Minor Works Projects Fund 25439 - 25439
ERE/ETRREREAS
Transfers to statement of income and expenditure (672,948) (110,317) (783,265)
ERATKEEER
At 31 March 2015 7201543 31 H 3,885,252 1,266,004 5,151,256
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21. Designated Fund - Home Loan Interest

Subsidy Scheme

The Group offers eligible employees under the scheme an interest
subsidy to finance the purchase of a residence in Hong Kong. Eligibility
under the scheme is primarily determined by the employee’s length of
service. The amount of subsidy generally represents half of the interest
rate payable by the eligible employee up to a maximum of 6% per
annum. However, eligibility and the maximum amount of subsidies
granted are subject to a number of restrictions as further defined in the
scheme.

The scheme is funded by HA through the recurrent subvention from the
Government. A designated fund has been set aside for the scheme and
is maintained in designated bank and investment accounts which are
included under cash and bank and fixed income instruments balances
respectively.

RBUIRF S KRERAERESRME—AMNER
B BBMOMERSBRBERMN - EREBRENESR
MRGFEE - RESR - RAEAERERRMHMEEX
BW—F RE/AEF%n - TG BERIEHRZESR
RS BB — LR E AR -

ZrT A EE REBRANEREEME TIAER - &
BIRE —SHEEES - BAXNBES KA SRS
MHBRFX  AERIEERTREFA - 255IA
Re  |ROTREEABTEEHRNA -

22. Hospital/clinic fees and charges 22. B ZEKE
The charges for hospital services provided by the Group are levied in SEMRERBERTE - RIBRBEERATIE K ER
accordance with those stipulated in the Gazette. Since the Government has MEIER - ARBAE ST —EB4% TEOBES RER
established a set of policies and procedures on granting fee waivers to the AERRERBERRIZF - GRS B EERDE
needy patients, the hospital/clinic fees and charges recognised as income RRBARER ZEANE - EMNR T ELREH
in the consolidated statement of income and expenditure are stated net of HeoAEHE_Z—AF=A=1T—HILZHMBEE
such waivers. The amount of hospital/clinics fees and charges waived for A - R R E BT, 2R ATIE RS 538,499,000 7T
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to HK$538,499,000 ZZ PO B8 526,5160007T) ©
(2014: HK$526,516,000).
23. Staff costs 23. BITRA
The Group
58

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$’000 HKS$'000
HZE2015F BE2014F
3ABILLEE 3A3ALLFE
BT BETFT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 34,415,031 31,829,230
EAXH & MEAME HESRET
Post-employment benefits BB BT :
— Contribution to HA Provident Fund Scheme [note 23 (a)] 2,266,007 2,166,017
EERRERTEMER M 23 ()
— Contribution to Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes [note 23 (b)] 519,572 432,551
SRAE D AT BI R [FRE 23 (b))
Death and disability benefits [note 18] 36T K IG5EARH (7 18] 34,101 31,289
37,234,711 34,459,087

BT EE RF R 2014-2015
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23. Staff costs (Continued)

(@)

HA Provident Fund Scheme (“HAPFS")

The HAPFS is a defined contribution scheme. The current scheme was
established on 1 April 2003 and governed by its Trust Deed and Rules
dated 29 January 2003, and registered under section 18 of the Hong
Kong Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance ("“ORSO”).

Most employees who have opted for HA terms of employment are
eligible to join the HAPFS on a non-contributory basis. The HAPFS is a
defined contribution scheme as all benefits are defined in relation to
contributions except that a minimum death benefit equating to twelve
months’ salary applies on the death of a member. However, when the
member’s account balance is less than his twelve months’scheme salary,
the difference will be contributed by the Death and Disability Scheme of
the Group.

The monthly normal contribution by the Group is currently set at 15% of
each member’'s monthly basic salary. The percentage of benefit
entitlement, receivable by the employee on resignation or retirement,
increases with the length of service.

At 31 March 2015, the total membership was 29,989 (2014: 30,809). The
scheme’s net asset value as at 31 March 2015 was HKS$58,006,082,000
(2014: HK$53,135,506,000).

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPFS")

In accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
the Group set up a MPFS by participating in master trust schemes. HA
permanent employees can choose between the HAPFS and the MPFS
while contract and temporary employees are required to join the MPFS
unless otherwise exempted.

The Group's contributions to MPFS are determined according to each
member’s terms of employment. Members' mandatory contributions are
fixed at 5% of monthly salary up to a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month.

At 31 March 2015, the total membership was 44,013 (2014: 40,244).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, total members’
contributions were HK$436,790,000 (2014: HK$352,257,000). The net
asset value as at 31 March 2015, including assets transferred from
members’ previous employment, was HK$5,940,981,000 (2014:
HK$4,877,162,000).

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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BT RA )

Bt g R EEs S

[BERRAESE | R—IHREHNEE - HiT

AERREBE_TE=F— A T L ANETROER
A R-ZT=FNA-BAXRILZEEE - WiRE
BB SRR /D -

AHBPERBRERERG 1#&”9@% F EERZM
ﬁi*f (e [BRERRAESE ] - [BRERR
BETE] E*ﬂ%m{ m;ﬁr%ﬂ AR TR
z*:ﬂiHﬁ*EME#EMrf F2HREFRTEFN -
B Mz R T35 aﬂiii o DB BB RARE MR
BRERZAB T Z - —EAEFESRE - =5
BHERNKTCREEESHE -

SENEAEEHFBEAEEESTMNI15% © E B EE
B 53R PR B P JE A F 25 L R BB AR IS A58 0 o

R-ZT—RF=A=1+—H 5t81£HF 299898 E
(ZZ—MF 308094 ) ' sTEIMEEFEARBE
58,006,082,00070( —=ZF—PU4F : #¥%53,135,506,0007T) °

SRR

RBCEHMERTER A BIED]) - REMAEREFERT

g BRBRIBHIEAESEE - 'E“‘A)%%%WEE\

EE2 [BREERATESTE ] 5 REIER
'EJr?‘JJ & &) KRR E B A2 Hﬁ%‘J'I&@%@%
2l BRIFESHR -

BEEtE

SEH [wHE B2 E ] HHR - BEERKE
K& FRGHETIE © AX B 858 B SR E R A A 5% -
A R 1,500 704 LRR ©

R-ZE—HF=ZA=+—0 - &2
ZE—OF 40244%) c EBEZZT—HF=H
= +—HLEZVBFEER ' KEMNHERBIERBE
436,790,000 7T ( ZZ — P4 : H#352,257,0007T) °
—HFE=RA=+—0  FENEEFE BFEX
SRR ERANEE - /B 5940981,0007T (==
—PO4F : 7B 4,877,162,000 7T ) °
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24,

25.

(a)

(b)

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses comprise office supplies, hospital supplies, non-
capitalised project expenditure and other administrative expenses. For the
financial year ended 31 March 2015, other operating expenses included an
accrual for auditor's remuneration of HK$3,050,000 (2014: HK$2,770,000).

Remuneration of Members of the Board and
Five Highest Paid Executives

No Board members are remunerated in the capacity as Board members.

The remuneration of the five highest paid executives, which comprised
basic salaries and other short term employee benefits and post-
employment benefits, and is included in the staff costs for the year, is as
follows:

BIFSIRARMTEE

24.

25.

HttEER

H2ERSBERAZAM  BRWE  FER
BHERIEREMTEEAL B#E-T—RF=A
=T—HIEZHMBEFE - At ERT BRI %S
Ril B <2 785 # 3,050,000 7T ( =& — U 4« % 2,770,000
JT) °

FAEHEREK BN ARG EKE &1 2N
4 o

FANBETHRAEBESN TATAZRSHTHA
S - BPEFAERTHE RAMERESEH
R BERAR AR -

For the year ended
31 March 2015

HK$'000
HZ2015F
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A31BHLEE
BB, THRASHR BET T
Chief Executive fTER#RH, 5,293
DrPakYin LEUNG RiEEE
Director (Cluster Services) B i8R 488 4,724
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG R{ZBiE
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & Pal #4842 85 4,537
Dr Che Chung LUK FEEHEEE 4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) JLEEFRR A48 8S 4,537
DrSauYing TUNG EFHEEEE
Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories East) #1R BBt A48 20 4,411
Dr ChiTim HUNG RREREEE
23,502

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to
performance.

it TATTIRA B T S R IR A R0 AN TE R BN o
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25.

26.

Remuneration of Members of the Board and
Five Highest Paid Executives (Continued)

BIFSIRARMTEE

25. AEXERAEZRSHITHRAEN

M€ ()

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$’000
BZE20145F
Current Position/Name of Executives 3A31HILEEE
BERA, THRABKR BET T
Chief Executive fTER#RE, 5,045
Dr PakYin LEUNG ZiBEE
Director (Cluster Services) B4R 4285 4,462
Dr Wai Lun CHEUNG aR1&EBEE
Cluster Chief Executive (Hong Kong West) 7 & Fali 4842 &5 4,140
Dr Che Chung LUK FERIRE A4
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) JLEER 4848 &2 4,140
Dr ChiYuen LO* EEEEA*
Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon West) J18E B A48 48 25 4,140
Dr SauYing TUNG EF5H 5
21,927

Note: All executives do not receive any variable remuneration related to
performance.

* Dr LO transferred from Cluster Chief Executive (New Territories West)
to Cluster Chief Executive (Kowloon Central) with effective from
1 January 2014.

Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group include
the following:

HA has entered into agreements with the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (“EMSD") of the Government for providing
biomedical and general electronics engineering services, hospital
engineering services and health building maintenance services to the
Group. According to the terms of agreements, the amounts incurred for
these services for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 amounted to
HK$866,675,000 (2014: HK$826,131,000). Other services provided by the
EMSD for the year (e.g. routine maintenance and improvement works)
were approximately HK$475,803,000 (2014: HK$273,038,000).

HA has entered into an agreement with the Government to provide serving
and retired civil servants, their eligible dependants and other eligible
persons with the services and facilities at all public hospitals and clinics free
of charge or at the prevailing rates as prescribed in the Civil Service
Regulations. For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, revenue foregone
in respect of medical services provided to these persons amounted to
HKS$353,111,000 (2014: HK$346,519,000). The cost of such services has been
taken into account in the Government's subvention to the Group.
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* EEAR A ATMEEE

RZZE—WE—F—H

BTN AR -

26. EEEBALTHIRS

& B SR A L PAEEAR 5T E ¢

BEERENNHETRZ VT iz AZERNEE
REEEL—MNEFIRERE  BRIERERESR
BERER - REHZRER 22T —HF=A
=+—BHLEZHBFEERNEBRESRORELES
#5 866,675,000 7T (=T — U4 : A% 826,131,0007T) °
FAME TREREEMARE (HITRERNRET
12) B 4 5788 475,803,000 70 (Z T —PU4F : B
273,038,0007T) °

BEREBFRILT ek REBIRKRTEE
HEAERNZBREMTEERALARERZA

TEEEBIFTET U B R A S BB BT K 22 AT R BR 765 K2 =%
e HE_T-—AF=A=1t—HILZHRFE " A
Ei A TR B ERSGS k2 R W FRIE REE
353,111,0007C (ZZ — P94 : ¥ 346,519,0007T) * i
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26. Related party transactions (Continued)

(©)

AP IRIRMIEE
26. EERAEEA TR S ()

Remuneration of key management personnel (O xEEBASHH
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and FTEERASREARNREERE B REES
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the EEBWAL - ERETHRAR - BE f@ B . BiaEs
Group. It comprises the Chief Executive, Cluster Chief Executives, RBRER AR EE -
Directors and other division heads of the Head Office.
Total remuneration of the key management personnel is shown below: FEERASEFMAENT
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
BZ2015F HZE20144F
3ABILLEE 3A3BELFE
BT BETIT
Basic salaries and other short term employee benefits 55,739 53,093
BEARF & IEEHE BB F
Post-employment benefits BER&E7F 5,541 5,071
61,280 58,164
Other significant related party transactions with the Government include ~ (d) BREFFBBALETORMEARSAESFLE
annual recurrent grants, capital subventions (note 20) and designated B - EARRE(MisE20) RIEEE S (MFE19K%
funds (notes 19 and 21). Details of transactions relating to the Group's 21) - AASERKGTEINZ S BN 23
retirement schemes are included in note 23.
Outstanding balances with the Government as at 31 March 2014 and ~ (€) BE-ZT—NER-T—AF=A=+—HREMZ

2015 are disclosed in notes 8, 12, 13, 15, 16 and 17. The current account
with a subsidiary, HACM Limited, is disclosed in note 16.

ﬁm%ﬁﬁmﬂmémznwm&7ﬁﬁ el pEs]
i [BREERPEERBERAR ] ZMARE
%Hmwﬁmﬁﬁo
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27. Net cash generated from operating activities

The Group
%8

FI PSRRI EE

27. EEFEEMEREFRE

For the year ended
31 March 2015

For the year ended
31 March 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000
BZE2015F HZE 20144
3A3ALEE 3A3HLFE
BT T BT T
Surplus for the year A& #R 1,376,859 665,032
Investment income & & Yz (266,914) (195,003)
Income transferred from Minor Works Projects Fund (1,011,020) (207,583)
ERE/ETRERES ZHBA
Income transferred from capital subventions and capital donations (783,802) (915,424)
HHARE R RERBE WA
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 4,699 6,086
HEWE  BERRBERELEEEE
Depreciation and amortisation 7 & K # 779,103 909,338
Increase in death and disability liabilities 38T K& &34 F & 1L N 26,919 26,692
Increase in deferred income ¥EAEUT 238 0 9267 110,237
Decrease/(increase) in inventories &4/ (3510) 55,051 (116,705)
Decrease in loans receivable FEWEFUR D 1,591 2,089
Increase in accounts receivable FEWRRFIE N (59,793) (32,949)
Increase in other receivables F fth & FRIEIE I (38,162) (55,520)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments (27,539) 26,375
=& RIBARIE GEM) SR
Increase in creditors and accrued charges & A KB & AN 1,322,492 2,361,977
Increase in deposits received B 4&E 1N 35,598 43212
Net cash generated from operating activities & EEENPTIFIR & F5H 1,416,049 2,627,854

28. Funds held in trust

At 31 March 2015, funds held in trust for the Government but not included
in the financial statements are set out below:

28. ErtES

RZZE-—RF=A=1+—H SEABNERERT
AMTEBRROEEESBEEAT ¢

The Group and HA
EEREER

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
20153 A31H 201443 A31H
BT T BT
Health Care and Promotion Fund (@R R{EEES 36,874 39,681
Health Services Research Fund EEZ&RFGHFEE S - 86
36,874 39,767
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29.

30.

(@)

Donations from the Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust

FI PSRRI EE

29. REFRBEFSE

EEETHNERE

During the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the Hong Kong Jockey BE_T-RAF=A=t—HLENUEREFREA B

Club Charities Trust made donations totalling HK$88,446,000 (2014: BERgRE *%%%#J"JT@J%T%T%E%M88,446,000

HK$51,166,000) to the following institutions: T(ZF— . 551,166,000 7T) ¢

HIK$'OOO
BT
Jockey Club Inpatient Facilities Modernisation Scheme (Various hospitals) ES &% REBT & (TR ) 56,619
Princess Margret Hospital 552Uk 12,343
United Christian Hospital ZE&##& 2t 10,375
Caritas Medical Centre BAE E&fx 6,250
Kowloon Hospital fLRE & 1,660
Hospital Authority Head Office Bt &R B4 FE 817
Shatin Hospital 2 H %kt 382
88,446

The donations were accounted for in the designated donation fund in MRIRBIRE 2(F) (i) FTE B S RTECR - BT AJEE R

accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f)(ii). HERA -

Commitments 30. 7&iE

At 31 March 2015, the Group and HA had the following commitments: R-E—RAF=A=+—H SEEREEFAEUTZ

AR

Capital commitments

(@) BEAEE

The Group
£8

At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201553 A31H 201493 A31H
BET T BETT
Authorised but not contracted for BEREERETZL 6,614,976 4,770,389
Contracted for but not provided B 5T 4B RE#E 1,301,598 1,494,359
7,916,574 6,264,748

HA

BER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 A31H 01443 A31H
BT T BT
Authorised but not contracted for B &EREERETZ24) 6,611,300 4,766,887
Contracted for but not provided 25T 4B KA 1,301,510 1,486,406
7,912,810 6,253,293

BT EE RF R 2014-2015
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30.

(@)

31.

32,

33.

34.

Commitments (Continued)

Capital commmitments (Continued)

The capital commitments disclosed above include both costs to be
capitalised under property, plant and equipment or intangible assets and
also costs which are to be charged to the statement of income and
expenditure in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(g).

BIFSIRARMTEE

30.

(@)

RIE ()

B AGEIE ()

IRIRFIRE 2(0) BTt 2 SHBOR - B3 P31 6 & A
BREEENENYME  BENRBERBTLEER
A ARITH AR AEE R

Operating lease commitments (b) EEHEANE
At 31 March 2015, the Group and HA had commitments for future F-Z—AF=A=+—H SEKEBEERESER
minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall 5118 PR B B RO P AT 2 B T B 2 AR RS AR AN S
due as follows: 5
The Group and HA
EEREBER
At 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
201563 HA31H 201493 A31H
BT BT
Buildings &5
Within one year —4 A Ejm 36,401 29,390
Between one and five years —Z HFE AW 121,918 115911
Beyond five years i8R 8w 43,092 75,003
201,411 220,304
Equipment =&
Within one year —4 A Efjm 48,401 60,081
Between one and five years —Z T F RN ER 6,979 43,338
55,380 103,419
Taxation 31. BIE

No taxation is provided as HA is exempt from taxation under the Hospital
Authority Ordinance.

Contingent liabilities
Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements after

reviewing the status of outstanding claims and taking into account legal
advice received.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform to the
current year's presentation.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by members of HA on 24
September 2015.

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Appendix 1
B % 1

Membership of the Hospital Authority

EE =S =
EREERENE
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2014-15

Name 2014-15FE Committee participation in 2014-15*

e HEZEAERE 201415 FESHENES S *

Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP 14/15 Chairman of plenary meetings, EC and EEC

Chairman, HA 2RAE  (THZRESRESEEREREGER

P e

B EREFE

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP 8/9 Member of HRC, MTB and PCC; Chairman of HRAC (all up to

(up t030.11.2014) 30.11.2014); HGC Chairman of Castle Peak Hospital and Siu

PRIMIR S Lam Hospital ‘

(BE 014911 A30H) ANAREAS PRGEEERRATRAEAANA

- BEREBAEEREE (TAF 2014F 11 H30H)

SlER M MERRERRE] LR

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS 13/15 Vice-Chairman of MTB and HRC; Member of MSDC; HGC

PRE R Chairman of Tuen Mun Hospital
FREFZEEMANERZEGRITER + BEREER
ZEEKE AFBREARZERER

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP 15/15 Member of MSDC

Director of Health BERKERZEGKE

PR R £

HEEER

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP 7/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Prince of

PRER Se I Wales Hospital
Aﬁﬁﬁ?%@‘%ﬁ%%%@?%@&*%&%%%@
KE : BRETRERREEEEgHKE

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching 11/15 Member of ITGC (from 2.5.2014) and MTB

HEELL BRI ERR B G (42014 F 5 A2 A#) kAR
RIELEEKE

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP 10/15 Chairman of SSDC; Vice-Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC,

0 B B S A EEC and MTB; HGC Member of Yan Chai Hospital
XERBERZEGER  AMBERGELAZBEEE
¥ RZEE BERSFSEESRTAREEES
KE  CEERELRZEEKE

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP 8/15 Vice-Chairman of SSDC; Member of MTB; HGC Chairman of

BBzt North District Hospital
ERBRGEHREZEGRIER  PREEZEEKE bt
BliiERZERER

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP 10/15 Member of HRC, MTB and SAC; HGC Chairman of Kwai

EEat Chung Hospital and Princess Margaret Hospital
ANEREZEESG HARELZEGNRE FREEGKE
LRRE LIERNEREARZEE TR

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP 15/15 Chairman of PCC; Member of ARC, EC and EEC; HGC

BE A Member of Hong Kong Eye Hospital, Kowloon Hospital and
Rehabaid Centre
ABEHEZEGER B MEARERZESY  THEE
SNESEERELZEGNKE  HERBELR - NWERK
MEFRERNERPLEREZEGHKE

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP 12/15 Member of FC and MTB

HELEE

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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B 8% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2014-15
Name 2014-15FE Committee participation in 2014-15*
i HEZBAERE 201415 FESHNESE*
Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP 10/15 Chairman of ARC; Member of EC, EEC and SSDC; HGC
mEATE Chairman of Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
FMEAREREEGER  THEES  EREERE
ZEg kX ERBEREZEENE ERERELREZESR
B33
Dr KAM Pok-man 15/15 Chairman of FC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC, MSDC and SSDC
HiEx L WHEZBEER B REARERZEE  THESE
REREEREZRE  BERKERZBGRIEREE
BREZEEgKE
Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai 13/15 Member of HRC, PCC, MTB and SSDC; Chairman of HRAC
(passed away on 17 April 2015) (from 1.12.2014); HGC Member of Queen Elizabeth Hospital
ZIEE L ANBRERE ARRFEEE - WRBEZEERE
. s % *REZEEGNE  AEREERNZESER (4
201544 A 17 AFH ERBRRE Bk i = S E L
‘ / 2014 4F 12 A1 HE) : PR ABRECEZEGHKE
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin 15/15 Member of ARC, FC and MTB
FHEBSE B MEARERESS  MBEEGRPRREZEGK
8
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan 10/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; Chairman of KRAC; HGC
B F XN Member of Cheshire Home, Shatin and Tseung Kwan O
Hospital
ANERZEE  BERGERZEGRAREEZEE
KB NEREEAZEGERE  PHARKEEREE
HERERLZEGKE
Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP 15/15 Member of FC and MSDC
Deputy Secretary for Financial Services and the UBEEERBERREERZEGKE
Treasury (Treasury)
22U B+
I EHREBBEIER
Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP 11/15 Member of MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Queen Mary
PE(EIE Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital
BRERGEERZEGRTPRRIEZEGKE  BEER R
BEERREALZEEKE
Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP 3/15 Member of FC and MTB
PEESLL B EEERPRIBEZEENKE
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP 15/15 Chairman of ITGC; Member of EC, EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC, MTB,
Chief Executive, HA SSDC, all RACs and HGCs
RRERAE BHRERBEERZERXF  (TREE®  BE2EES
1 . BLEG  MBEEE® ANERZEE®  BERFGER
B B IR BT TR AR BZ8 ESaL 4 % B ‘
s ZE® PREBEZEE  IERBERZEE  SEH
mAEEghEBREREZEEGNE
Dr LI Chi-kong, JP 13/15 Member of HRC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Member of Hong
S Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
ANEREZBE BEREERZBERTREFEZEE
KE  BRATFERORBHOEREZEGKE
Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP 13/15 Member of MSDC, MTB and PCC; HGC Member of North
RERHE Lantau Hospital
ERERGEREZEE PREFZBERARKHEZEE
KE bR LEREREEEKE
Dr LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP 3/6 Member of MTB and SSDC (both from 22.1.2015)

(from 1.12.2014)
EEREEL
(12014412 A1 H#E)

FRIGEZEB G M ERGEREZEENE (A4 2015 F
1 H22 HE)

BT EE BF W 2014-2015
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B 8% 1
No. of plenary meetings
attended in 2014-15

Name 2014-15FE Committee participation in 2014-15*

®E HESEBAERE 2014- 15 5 EZHRENEEE*

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP 11/15 Chairman of HRC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC and FC, HGC

SIEETE Chairman of Tai Po Hospital
ANERZEGERE Bt kAREEZE®  THES
g BRREXEZESRUBEEEKE  KEERE
AREEEEFE

Miss Winnie NG 13/15 Member of MTB and SSDC; HGC Member of Prince of Wales

hBEZ T Hospital and Queen Elizabeth Hospital
EP%&T?’Q?!@&S‘Z%EE%%@?E@EXE CBBRETERT
B RFFP REREGEEEKE

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP 14/15 Member of FC, MSDC and MTB; HGC Chairman of Queen

TRERE Mary Hospital and Tsan Yuk Hospital \
Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ : %%H&i‘%%@%%@&qﬂ RIFFLZEENE
BRERAEERBRERZESLR

MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP 12/15 Member of FC, MTB, PCC (up t0 8.1.2015) and SSDC;

FHEEEA Chairman of NRAC; HGC Member of Tseung Kwan O
Hospital
WBEEE - EPE'%&T?%??!@ . @%ﬁ%ﬁ?é@(ﬁ%
2015 F 1 A8 H) RERGHREZBEGNE  HAE
BHEERER  KERBREARZEENKE

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP 15/15 Chairman of MTB and MSDC; Member of ARC, EC, EEC and

[ Ve HRC; HGC Member of Grantham Hospital
*%TﬁT?’éé@&%{%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi,%@Iﬁ D R Rk
§I¥§§§ CTHEEE - f%%ﬂgg”ﬁﬁé%@&/\ﬁé
REEENE BELBREREEEKE

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP 15/15 Membe[ of EEC, FC, HRC, MSDC and SSDC

Permanent Secretary for Food and Health (Health) ZEEREEET Eﬁ%é 8%  ANARZEE &

EAYE L A BERGEREZEEAIERBEERZEENE

RYRELBEENER (L)

*Note

Apart from the principal officer (the Hospital Authority Chief Executive), other
members are not remunerated in the capacity as Board members. They
discharge the role of governance of the Authority through formulating policies
and directions and overseeing executive performance at Board meetings, as
well as taking part in steering the work of various committees of the Authority
including:

ARC - Audit and Risk Committee

EC - Executive Committee

EEC - Emergency Executive Committee

FC - Finance Committee

HGC - Hospital Governing Committee

HRAC -  Regional Advisory Committee of Hong Kong
HRC - Human Resources Committee

ITGC - Information Technology Services Governing Committee
KRAC - Regional Advisory Committee of Kowloon
MSDC - Medical Services Development Committee

MTB - Main Tender Board

NRAC -  Regional Advisory Committee of New Territories
PCC - Public Complaints Committee

SAC - Staff Appeals Committee

SSDC - Supporting Services Development Committee

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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Appendix 2(a)
My 8% 2(a)

Hospital Authority Committee Structure
BREEREETRE

Hospital Authority Board
BREERAE

Regional Advisory Hospital Governing Audit and Risk
Committees Committees Committee

ER#AEES BhEREES EREAREEESS

Emergency Executive
Committee

ESESREZEE

Executive Committee
THZEES®

Finance Committee
MEEE

Human Resources
Committee

ANEREZEES

Information
Technology Services
Governing Committee
BB AR

EREEE

Note: Membership lists of various committees are listed in Appendices 3, 4 and 5.
i BREEgKEREENMEE3 4 K5

Main Tender Board
FRRZZER

Medical Services
Development
Committee

ERRBRRESS

Public Complaints
Committee

ARBHERS

Staff Appeals
Committee

BE LREES

Supporting Services
Development
Committee

XERBBREESS

EPTEE RBFER 2014-2015
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Appendix 2(b)
By &% 2(b)

Hospital Authority Executive Structure
EREEBITHEE

Dr LEUNG PAK-yin, JP Chief Executive

RERBEE THRH

v

Y

Clusters Bi#8 Head Office #ii =&
Hong Kong East Dr LAU Chor-chiu Cluster Chief Executive Dr CHEUNG Wai-lun, JP Director (Cluster Services)
I IREEEE L ks
Gt ! i

BEREERE BIERNEEE 18

Dr Derrick AU Kit-sing Director (Quality & Safety)
Hong Kong West ~ . .
Cluster Dr LUK Che-chung Cluste::::efExecunve ERBEE z2rs2es

Kowloon Central
Cluster
NEEREERREI

Kowloon East

Dr Albert LO Chi-yuen Cluster Chief Executive
EEEEE poes

Dr Joseph LUI Cho-ze Cluster Chief Executive

Dr LEE Ha-yun Deputizing Director (Strategy & Planning)
(upto 1.7.2014)

FEREBEYE ArrnaEmsE
(BE20144€7H1H)

Dr LO Su-vui Director (Strategy & Planning)
(from 2.7.2014 to 31.3.2015)

(up t0 27.6.2014) BRERYE srares
BIRBEEEE s (#2014 4 7 A2 AF 20154 3 A 31 A)

(BE 20146 7527 H*)

Cluster
NEERERHA Dr c";‘:ﬂta";-;; 13’:;?; ghzlle)f’g(ecutlve Dr Theresa LI Tak-lai Head of Human Resources

REREE s EREEE AVAFEE

(12014467 51 HZ 2015 # 3 A 31 H)
Ms Margaret CHEUNG Sau-ling Head of Corporate Services
2::::::,“ West Dr Nancy TUNG Sau-ying Cluster Chief Executive RBRRL sty
hBETEEE B 4R EREBE pvonz
Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi Director (Finance)
itori Kt Hiswe
:ev: :Ier"tto"es Dr HUNG Chi-tim, JP Cluster Chief Executive Ll
as uster

REREE pEez

L Mr MA Wing-chang Deputizing Chief Information Officer
(up t02.9.2014)
Dr LO Su-vui Deputizing Cluster Chief Executive BBk REgmERE
(upto 1.7.2014) (BZE2014469A2A)
itori e Dr CHEUNG Ngai-tseung

AU (#2014 %7 A 18) : ,
West Cluster Head of Information Technology and Health Informatics#
¥R Dr KO Pat-sing, Tony Cluster Chief Executive (from 3.9.2014 to 31.3.2015)

(from 2.7.2014 to 31.3.2015)

SRR E pees
(812014 % 7 A 2 HE 20154 3 A 31 A)

IR E SRR EREEFE
(120149 A3 AZ 20154 3 A 31 A)

* FEFRIRETIEAR 2014 F 6 A 27 A - EFBAIR 2014 %F 6 A 30 A4z

" BRI R B (S B A F ERBATE 2014 F 9 A 3 HE - B [BARBEHEE] 28 [EAREREEEELE]
* 27.6.2014 was the last day of duty of Dr LUl and his last day of service was 30.6.2014

* Post title of the Head of IT&HI Division is changed from CIO to Head of IT&H| effective from 3.9.2014
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Membership and Terms of Reference of Functional

Committee
SEEZEENERBESRE

Audit and Risk Committee
Bt RAREIREEE

Membership List

REHE
Chairman . Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
*E mRASE
Members : MrRicky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
RE IEEAE A
Dr KAM Pok-man
HEXELT
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
THRESE
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BEEEE
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
IR
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
R R4
Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee
REER LT

In attendance :

SlE RGBSR E RYREFEBZEEFWER (%)
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RABRE THAEH

Terms of Reference
1. Exercise an active oversight of the internal audit function to ensure that
its:

(@) mandate, resources and organisational status are appropriate;

(b) plans and activities are adequate to provide systematic coverage of
the internal control and risk management systems put in place by
the Management; and

(0) findings are actioned appropriately and timely;

2. Recommend the appointment of the external auditor and the audit
fee to the Board, endorse any non-audit services to be provided by the
external auditor, and consider any questions of resignation or dismissal;

3. Consult with the External Auditor on all relevant matters including the:
(@) nature and scope of the audit;

(b) audited financial statements and the audit opinion;

(©)  management letter and management’s response; and

(d)  matters of which the External Auditor may wish to draw attention;

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP, Permanent Secretary for Health

TEREEREE RH N APEAT AL - PATRLR -

@ HBE#HE BRRASVEDRE

() HFEIMEBRNERGHRERT I ZHA
BREMERERENE &

© RERBAISERREVEE KEFNTTE

SN BN R ERETER  MEERASED
B BRSNS EE R B E M IEER RS -
AEMAEARIREEE

ShPTE B BRI SN EED - B

(@ FERFAIZHMEEMEE

(b) REFNEBFUHRENEABR

(© EEIBERREN R R EIREHMEE ;

() SMNEBEEREDIRH A EREIR
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Gain reasonable assurance on the completeness, accuracy, and fairness

of audited financial statements, including appropriateness of accounting

policies and standards, adequacy of disclosures and significant audit
adjustments (in collaboration with the Finance Committee);

Oversee the effectiveness of systems for risk management and internal

control, including:

(@) periodic review of:

(i)  HA's policies and process for the identification, assessment
and prioritisation of risk;

(i) the HA Risk Framework including reports on the enterprise
wide risk profile; and

(i) significant risk issues reported to it by the Chief Executive;

(b) monitoring HA's financial and administrative control processes,
including those designed to ensure the safeguarding of resources
and operational efficiency, through the results of internal and
external audit;

Oversee the processes implemented by the Management for

monitoring:

(@) compliance with pertinent statutes and regulations;

(b) compliance with HA's Code of Conduct;

(c) effectiveness of controls against conflicts of interest and fraud; and

(d) effectiveness of HA's whistleblowing mechanism

Note: It should be noted that although the functions of the Audit and Risk

Committee cover a wide area, matters that are of a pure clinical nature
(such as medical ethics) are not within its purview.

Focus of Work in 2014-15

The Committee met six times in 2014-15 to exercise an active oversight of
the internal audit function of HA, considered matters related to the audit of
HA's financial statements, and oversaw the effectiveness of risk management
and internal controls at HA in accordance with the Terms of Reference of the
Committee. Key focus of the Committee in 2014-15 was broadly summarised
as follows:-

(@)

In regard to the internal audit function, the Committee received
quarterly progress reports from Chief Internal Auditor on completed
audit results and follow-up actions. Among the various internal audit
reports reviewed during the year, some of the key operational audits
included “Management of Intensive Care Unit Services’, “Arrangements
for Training of Healthcare Professionals (Medical Sub-group)

" “Impact
of Measures to Relieve Workload of Doctors and Nurses” “

" “Inpatient
Identification — Newborns”, “General Outpatient Clinic Quota
Management’, “Measures to Address Winter Surge’, “Community Mental
Health Services’, “Key Financial and Reporting Controls for One-off Grant’,
“Quality and Safety of Food Supplies’, “Drug Allergy Checking”, “Follow-up
Audit on Day Surgery”, “Follow-up on Director of Audit Report on Public-
Private Partnership’, and “Security Incident and Response Management”.
In 2014-15, the Committee also considered and approved the audit
analytics strategy for clinical systems and its implementation in phases,
as well as the Internal Audit Plan for 2015-16.
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In the area of external audit, the Committee reviewed and endorsed
the HA's draft financial statements for 2013-14 in a joint meeting
with the Finance Committee, as well as the external auditor’s internal
control memorandum in a subsequent regular meeting. Besides, the
Committee reviewed the evaluation results of the external auditor’s
performance upon renewal of the audit services.

In regard to the risk management, the Committee considered and
endorsed the action plan to implement measures for moving towards
an organisation-wide risk management approach. During the year, it
also received reports on mitigation strategies for key risk items relating
to the Electronic Health Record Programme, Inpatient Medication
Order Entry System, management of multi-drug resistant organisms,
specialist outpatient clinics waiting time, medication safety, manpower
shortage of supporting staff, major capital works and error proofing in
IT Operations. As part of the risk reporting, the Integrity Risk Report and
the Key Organisation-wide Risk Report for 2015 were also reviewed by
the Committee.

To maintain good governance and high level of probity, the Committee
considered the recommendations from the ICAC Corruption Prevention
Department made in the assignment reports respectively on HA’s
administration of Chinese Medicine Centres for Training and Research
and the performance management of pharmaceutical manufacturers
and suppliers in HA, as well as the responses and follow-up actions
proposed by the management. The recommendations on HA's specialist
outpatient services for elderly patients and the implementation progress
of follow-up actions, which were resulted from the value for money
audit conducted by the Director of Audit on the provision of health
services for the elderly were also discussed by the Committee.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted
a self-assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year
according to its Terms of Reference.

(b)

NS BEMETNER I TR EEMBREE—
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2BE—E5 o
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Executive Committee
THEES

Membership List

RERE

Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP

xEE RECHIR

Member Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP

24= BRE B A
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
ERMALE
Dr KAM Pok-man
HExXELT
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIEBEE 77K
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
IR

Terms of Reference

Consider key matters and overall policies and directions on long-term

strategy and planning, risk management, corporate governance,

performance management and succession planning, and facilitate the

Board in discharging its responsibilities in this regard;

Advise on Board meeting agenda items proposed by the Management

including an annual forward looking agenda and key matters raised by

Functional Committee Chairmen;

Serve as a forum for the HA Chairman, Functional Committee Chairmen

and the HA Chief Executive to consider major matters relating to the

leadership and oversight of the HA;

Advise on changes to Board and Functional Committee structure and

processes including the respective terms of reference; oversee their

annual self-assessments; and advise the Board on the appointment of
chairmen, vice-chairmen and co-opted members of the Functional

Committees;

Advise the Board on the organisation structure and functions of the HA

Head Office and its Divisions;

Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following staff matters:

(@) advise the Board on the appointment, remuneration changes,
contract variation of the Chief Executive;

(b) advise the Board on the appointment of Cluster Chief Executives
and Directors of Divisions;

(c) approve contract renewal, remuneration changes and contract
variation as well as lateral transfer/job rotation of Cluster Chief
Executives and Directors of Divisions;

(d) approve the appointment, contract renewal, remuneration changes
and contract variation as well as lateral transfer/job rotation of
Hospital Chief Executives and Heads of Divisions; and
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(e) review the performance of Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of
Division and Cluster Chief Executives;
7. Convene as the Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) in accordance
with HA's Emergency Contingency Plan (supplemented by a senior Food
& Health Bureau official when meeting as EEC).

Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee met nine times to discuss or approve 46 papers
(including nine through circulation). Major matters considered included
appointment and remuneration matters of senior executives at HA Head Office
and clusters, job evaluation of selected senior executive positions, career posting
and succession of senior executives, progress of the Government's Review
on Hospital Authority, implementation progress on recommendations of the
Corporate Governance Review, the Capital Works Resource Allocation Exercise,
succession in Board Committees and membership of Hospital Governing
Committees, the HA Budget and Annual Plan for 2015-16, HA Strategic Plan
2017-2022, HA's Key Enterprise-wide Risk Profile, reports on staff complaints
against senior executives, HA's stance on Government’s Public Consultations
on Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme and Review of Regulation of Private
Healthcare Facilities, etc.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Emergency Executive Committee

Membership List

RERE
Chairman Prof John LEONG Chi-yan, SBS, JP
*E
PRI
(EETIERF - B2 [EHRE.
Member Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
24=1 BB E A
Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
IHEE A
Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
=LA
Dr KAM Pok-man
Higx i+

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive

(In his absence, the Deputising CE)
RIAERE TTHARR
(TTEAEZ T RS - B CEETTICAREL M (F)
Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

Miss Janice TSE, JP

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
A NELL
[REXRYREFLEBEFRER (L))
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
BRI

Note: The Emergency Executive Committee (EEC) was set up by the Board on
15 January 2004. It will automatically be called into action when the HA
activates the Tier-three Strategic Response to a major incident, which is
defined as an incident with prolonged and territory-wide implications,
such as the Serious Level (S2) or Emergency Level Response to influenza

pandemic.
Terms of Reference
1. To act for the HA Board and exercise its powers and functions, including:

(@) altering, amending or overriding existing HA policies, standards,
guidelines and procedures; and

(b) establishment of sub-committees or task forces to tackle particular
matters at hand.

2. To identify the objectives and assess the risks facing HA in emergency
situation;
3. To approve the strategies and policies for managing the emergency

formulated by the HA Central Command Committee, and monitor
implementation progress in all HA hospitals and institutions;

4. To coordinate activities of the other HA committees including Hospital
Governing Committees;

5. To ensure effective communication of clear and concise messages to
key stakeholders, including staff, patients, Government and the public;
and

6. To be accountable to the Authority Board and the making of regular

reports to HA Members as soon as practicable.
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Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee met on 30 December 2014 in response to a
confirmed case of human H7N9 (Avian) influenza infection on 27 December
2014 and the subsequent activation of the Serious Response Level (S2)
following the Government's activation of the Serious Response Level under the
Government’s Preparedness Plan for Influenza Pandemic.

At the meeting, the Committee was briefed on the details of the index case
and the latest position of the situation. Members noted the actions taken or
to be taken by the HA, including contact tracing and quarantine arrangement,
activation of the Clinical Management System'’s eH7 platform for early alert and
notification, triage arrangement at the Accident and Emergency Departments,
isolation facilities of the hospitals, enhanced infection control measures,
arrangements for visiting and volunteer services as well as clinical attachment,
and enhanced laboratory network service.

As at 31 March 2015, Serious Response Level (S2) remained in force.

2014-15 FETERR
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Finance Committee
HIREES

Membership List
RERE

Chairman . DrKAM Pok-man
*E HExEL
Member : Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP
ME HERSE
Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin
FHREB LS
Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP
PASES Yo
Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP / Ms Karyn CHAN

(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

2Bt RE AL

(RIS EHREF B FR)

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIAERE TTHAR

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
AN EL L
[RRRYRFGLERBEERER (F£)]
MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
Rl

Terms of Reference

1. Advise and make recommendations on the financial aspects of the HA
Corporate Plan and Annual Plan;

2. Advise and make recommendations on the financial planning, control,
performance, monitoring and reporting aspect of the HA;

3. Advise on policy guidelines for all financial matters, including
investment, business and insurance;
Advise and make recommendations on the resource allocation policies;

5. Advise and recommend to the HA on the financial statements (audited
and unaudited) of the HA;

6. Liaise with the Trustees of the HA Provident Fund Scheme and make
recommendations to the HA;

7. Monitor the financial position of the HA; and

8. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and

risk mitigation relevant to finance operations and other relevant areas
contributing to the financial risk profile of HA.

Focus of Work in 2014-15

To assist the HA Board in ensuring proper stewardship and effective use of
public funds, the Committee met five times in 2014-15 to advise and make
recommendations to the Board on various finance related matters for the
Authority. Key focus of the Committee in 2014-15 was broadly summarised as
follows:-
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In support of the corporate strategy and policies development of HA,
the Committee deliberated the future development direction and
refinement proposals for HA's Internal Resource Allocation model and
its applications. During this process, due consideration was given to the
preliminary discussions of the Government'’s Steering Committee on
Review of HA with respect to the review area of resource management.
Besides, the Committee also considered an update on the HA fees and
charges review for 2014-15 and the way forward for periodic review to
fulfil HA's fiduciary duties on advising the Government of the fee policies
for public hospital services.

Dovetailing with HA’s service and resource planning process, the
Committee examined the proposed 2015-16 HA budget and resource
allocation. On financial risk management, the Committee reviewed the
risk mitigation measures taken in 2014, and considered the planned
mitigation actions for the key financial risk facing HA in 2015. In addition,
it also considered and endorsed HA's insurance renewal approach and
direction for 2015-16.

On accountability reporting and monitoring of HA's financial position,
the Committee reviewed and endorsed HA's draft financial statements
for 2013-14. Besides, it considered the 2013-14 audited financial
statements for a number of designated programmes undertaken by
HA, including the Electronic Health Record Programme Development,
the Samaritan Fund, the Community Care Fund Medical Assistance
Programmes and the HA Charitable Foundation. In addition to
receiving monthly financial reports during the year, the Committee
also considered a mid-year financial review of HA together with the
unaudited financial statements for the six months ended 30 September
2014. Specifically, on management of medical fee income, regular
reports on major write-off /waiver cases (over HK$1 million each) were
presented to the Committee. In addition, it considered a review of
HA's overall debt management framework together with the related
accountability reporting arrangement, and also examined findings
from the first stage of post-implementation review of the new Patient
Billing and Revenue Collection System. With regard to investment
management, the Committee also received regular progress updates
from the Treasury Panel on HA's treasury management and operations.

On people development for the Finance function in HA, the Committee
received a progress update on the various organisation and staff
development strategies undertaken for the Finance grade, and
supported the way forward for initiating a review to further identify
improvement opportunities for building a sustainable Finance
workforce. Last but not least, the Committee also reviewed the Annual
Work Plan of the Finance Division and the proposed key strategic areas
for 2015-16.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Human Resources Committee
ANEREEE

Membership List

RERE
Chairman © Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
xEE BEEEE
Vice-Chairman Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BIEE PR = 58 ST
Members © Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2014)
54=} BRIFMR S (B2 2014 4F 11 A 30 H)
Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
PRER S22
Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
EEELL
Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (passed away on 17 April 2015)
2IRB A (R 2015 F 4 A 17 AEH)
Ms Angela LEE Chung-yan
(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
TERLZ+
[RERYRiFEREEWER (£)]
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
FFRHER
Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RIAERE TTHARE
Dr LI Chi-kong, JP
Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
EREHR
Terms of Reference
1. Advise on manpower planning;
2. Advise on staff training and development matters;
3. Advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies and related issues;
4. Advise, review and make recommendations to the HA on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff;
5. Advise, review and make recommendations to the HA on staff pay
awards and overall staffing structure;
6. Advise, review and make recommendations to the HA on any other staff
related matters;
7. Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk

mitigation relevant to human resources management; and

8. Monitor the performance of the Hospital Authority Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes and make recommendations to the HA as and when
necessary.

Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee met six times to discuss and consider various
human resources (HR) matters of HA.
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Along the strategic direction of HA to allay staff shortage and high turnover,
the Committee considered and endorsed various HR recommendations and
measures that were initiated to improve manpower situation and employment
terms and conditions, such as following-up the proposals on the Optometrist
Grade Review in 2013-14, recommendations from the job evaluation of senior
management positions, changes to the Continuous Night Shift Scheme, as well
as an initiative for employment beyond the normal retirement age of 60 for
serving staff. It gave comments on the development of senior HR executives,
noted the Finance organisation development, received a progress update on
Call Payment Offer Exercise for staff other than clinical doctors, and monitored
the HA Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme through a regular update.
Endorsement-in-principle was also granted for the proposed 2014-15 annual
pay adjustment for HA employees. On the other hand, having considered
that no apparent need was anticipated for further overseas recruitment of
Diagnostic Radiographer, Radiation Therapist and Podiatrist grades in the near
future, the Committee agreed to discontinue the enhanced overseas package
for overseas new recruits of these grades.

To further promote staff health and wellness, the Committee discussed and
endorsed the implementation details of the pilot project on the enhancement
of staff access to radiological services endorsed in 2013-14, reviewed the user
eligibility of the HA staff clinics and telephone booking system, and noted
the findings and full roll-out plan of the Personal Health Record Pilot Project —
Electronic Access of Staff Health Record.

In terms of staff training and development, besides receiving a regular update
from the HA Head Office Training and Development Team, the Committee
commented on the functions and roles of HA in providing professional training
for the healthcare workforce (including medical, nursing, allied health and
pharmacy grades staff); and considered the challenges and issues faced by
HA. In addition, the Committee considered the staff orientation and induction
initiatives in HA.

During the year, the Committee discussed the HR risk assessment for 2015
with planned mitigation actions, provided feedback on the key performance
indicators of HR functions, and deliberated on the agenda forecast for 2015-16.
It also received a report on staff complaints received in 2014.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference. It also received a report on Staff Complaints Management
Audit in 2013-14 and considered the findings and corresponding follow-up
actions.
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Information Technology Services Governing Committee
BRNKRBELCEES

Membership List

MERE
Chairman Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
*E RBBRE THAEHR

Vice-Chairman

EES -

Members

BB

Terms

N

Hospital

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP

BRI A

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching (from 2.5.2014)
BERE LT (f 20145 H 2 H#E)

Mr Davey CHUNG Pui-hong

Deputy Secretary for Food and Health (Health)
RYREELERBEANER (F4E)

Mr Daniel LAl, BBS, JP

HBRE LA

Mr Victor LAM, JP

Government Chief Information Officer (Acting) (from 26.2.2015)

WEBEE

BRTEMEHEARE: ((CFE) (B 2015 4F 2 A 26 H#E)

Mr Stephen LAU Ka-men, JP
2FEHEE

Hon Charles Peter MOK, JP
ETh%#%8

of Reference

Approve corporate policies and standards for Information Technology /
Information Systems;

Approve and monitor the overall progress of the implementation of the
Information Technology / Information Systems Strategic Plan;

Approve and monitor the execution of the Information Technology /
Information Systems Annual Business Plan;

Receive recommendations on the priorities for Information Technology
systems development and implementation;

Receive advice from the Information Technology Technical Advisory
Subcommittee;

Receive performance and status reports;

Provide periodic progress report to the HA Board; and

Consider matters relating to risk, risk management and risk mitigation
relevant to Information Technology across HA.

Authority Annual Report 2014-2015

g E

1.

BEBRERHNERRE BRRRHRRREE

BBEAR B RAGREE - WEERBE T
g

RBEME BARGNEFIETEE  WERE
MBS
WEIEEMH AR ER L EREZERIAR

[

WBHE BB MR ARZRENER

WBIRIR S AR
MBERASERRRITIERS &
EaEEREMRHENEREER
BREH -

[\ T T e [



Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee met four times to discuss various issues relating to
the strategic development of [T/information systems in HA. During this period,
the Committee discussed and endorsed the management structure review of
Information Technology Division (ITD) including the renaming of the Division
as “Information Technology and Health Informatics Division” (IT&HID) with
effect from September 2014 to better reflect the unique functionality of two
streams of expertise in healthcare T structure. The Committee also considered
and deliberated on the interim findings of and the actions arising from the
respective consultancy reviews of HA Strategy on IT and IT Sourcing Strategy.
It received various reports relating to assessing risks, identifying actionable
mitigating measures and enhancing the risk management processes. These
included IT Operational Risk Assessment, IT Technology Heat Map Analysis and
IT Quality Assurance and Risk Management Programme. In the area of privacy
and data protection, the Committee provided advice on matters concerning
the revision of HA's key privacy and security policies and the establishment of
a centralised library for I[T&RHID documents. To meet the growing demand for
IT systems to support the operation of the organisation, the Committee also
discussed on the IT Block Vote Submission for 2015-16 and the [T&HID Annual
Work Plan 2015-16 for responding to challenges in continuing existing service
delivery and delivering the major strategic [T-enabled projects.

To fulfil its overseeing functions, the Committee monitored the implementation
of the work stipulated in the IT&HID Annual Plan by considering, amongst
others, the performance and status reports of respective IT functions at each
of its meeting, the comments of which would be conveyed to the relevant
working teams under IT&HID for follow-up actions. Progress Update on Clinical
Management System Phase lll, Business Supporting IT Systems, eHealth Record
Projects and IT Services Performance were among the standing agenda items
of the Committee’s meetings. The Committee also monitored the ongoing
efforts of IT&RHID on development of the Government's Electronic Health
Record Programme with HA as the technical agent and endorsed the related
draft audited financial statements annually.

To support HA's service needs with the latest trend of IT technical development,
the Committee received advice from the Information Technology Technical
Advisory Subcommittee on the IT technical architectures and technology
selections proposed by IT&HID which included mobile strategy; HA IT
technology refresh approach; data privacy compliance and training; database
platform review for clinical systems; approach in business and IT alignment etc.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Main Tender Board

PRIGZEZEE
Membership List
RERE
Chairman . Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
*E BB
Vice-Chairmen © MrWilliam CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BIEE PR = 58 ST
Mr Lincoln TSO Lai
it
Ex-officio members . DrLEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
EARE (or his nominated representative)
RIEBRE TTHAEE
(TTBABZ SR ZE L)
Ms Clara CHIN Sheung-chi, Director (Finance)
(or her nominated representative)
SMRIE 2+ A EAEE
(B F e s A ZE L)
Members . Two of the following rotating members:
RE AT ER MR EREXS

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2014)
BRIEIRSE & (B2 2014 F 11 A 30 A)

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP

PRER e s

Ms Anita CHENG Wai-ching

BEE L+

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
BE B A

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
BREmZL

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
HEEAZ T

Mr Andrew FUNG Hau-chung, JP
BEBITE

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (passed away on 17 April 2015)
BIBESEAE (R 2015 4F 4 A 17 A#H)
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan

B HHE

Mr Stephen LEE Hoi-yin

FHEBLE

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
REEHER

Mrs Margaret LEUNG KO May-yee, SBS, JP
PASES Ve

Dr LI Chi-kong, JP

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP

Dr LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP (from 22.1.2015)
EEREL (2015 F 1 A 22 A#)

162 Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015



Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Ms Winnie NG

haaig 2+

Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP
TRERE

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrEEEEA

Terms of Reference

The main function of the HA Main Tender Board is to consider and approve
tender of order value above HK$4 million;

1. Review and assess the recommendations made by the assessment
panel;

2. Review the procedures and criteria adopted by the assessment panel in
the course of its selection;

3. Approve the selection made by the assessment panel after satisfying

itself that (1) and (2) are in order and such approval should be final.
Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Main Tender Board (MTB) met 24 times to consider a total of
699 tender papers for procurement of supplies and services with value of
over HKS1 million for HA Head Office, and above HK$4 million for clusters
and hospitals. Tenders for procurement of supplies mainly covered purchases
of pharmaceutical products, medical and laboratory equipment and their
consumables whereas service tenders were mainly related to hospital domestic
and supporting services, maintenance of medical and laboratory equipment,
information technology systems and maintenance services and data
hosting facilities. Capital works tenders were mainly concerned with hospital
redevelopment projects and minor works improvements for maintenance
of hospital premises. During the year, Members of MTB sought clarifications
or made suggestions for the management to follow up on 27 tender papers,
and action was taken for most of them while one tender paper was finally not
approved.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.

RS E
BEERTREEZZEENIEREEEARBRSREE
400 BT A _ERIRIZ

1. BERPAE/MAPTERDRREE - ETTRE RETAX

2. iRME/NEZEERPTERAMRR T MER - EiTeE R

3. fEREM Bat (1) & () BEGEIER - BATE/ AR R E
TESARHIHEAZ

2014-15 FETERR

£2014-15 5 - ZESHEM 24 X% - Bidk 699 (DX
BYENRBSORIE G BREANFTSEER  BERG
PHEFE 100 B £ ¢ B R EERT 400 BITbA E - BRARE
MEMZEZ S REEEY BRERMCBEERERER
ARASEREBHYIRIT E 208 K BB M RS IR RS - B kb 5h
BERE BEAREEGNRER IR 780 - MEART
B2 kBREEEE RBREEMRE N RE
TR TR ZEEKRELH 27 NIREXHEREEEE
BRBETEABRE  ERABHEZEEERNT A—
IS SRS BIE

RBERFEEER  RESET T BRI - RIEERE
BERTBE—FNIE-

BB RHER 2014-2015

163



164

Appendix 3
B sz 3

Medical Services Development Committee
BRRBFREREEE

Membership List
RERE

Chairman . Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP

EE

Members

KB

RERIEHIR

PREREE FEEER

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
BoRTA

Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP

BRER S X

Dr KAM Pok-man

Higx g+

Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
TR
Ms Esther LEUNG Yuet-yin, JP/Ms Karyn CHAN

Dr Constance CHAN Hon-yee, JP Director of Health

(representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury)

2Bt REH AL

(KX EHREB B ER)

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
RS BHI

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP, Chief Executive
RABERE THAH

Dr LI Chi-kong, JP

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

Mr Richard YUEN Ming-fai, JP
Permanent Secretary for Health
RGBS A

RYRELERBEIHER (FE)

Terms of Reference

Examine, review and make recommendations on the changing needs
of the community in respect of clinical services provided by public
hospitals and institutions;

Advise and make recommendations on the overall policies, directions
and strategies relating to the provision, planning and development of
the public hospitals and related services, having regard to the availability
of technology, staff and other resources and the need to provide a
patient-centred, outcome-focused quality healthcare service by a
knowledge-based organisation;

Consider and make recommendations on the overall priorities for the
planning and development of the public hospitals and related services
in order to ensure an optimal utilisation of available resources;

Consider, review and make recommendations on any other matters
related to the planning and development of the public hospitals and
related services;

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to medical services development; and

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015
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6. Exercise powers delegated by the Board on the following matters:
(@) approve the scope of coverage of the Samaritan Fund as
recommended by the Management Committee of the Samaritan
Fund,
(b) approve clinical service plans on specialty services and
redevelopment projects, except those involving decisions on
financial provisions.

Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee met six times to discuss issues relating to the
planning, development and management of clinical services. On clinical
services planning and development, the Committee considered and
deliberated on the development of respective clinical services plans for the
Kowloon Central Cluster, Kowloon East Cluster and New Territories East Cluster;
service development of the Hong Kong Children’s Hospital; commissioning
of the Tin Shui Wai Hospital; development of the Integrated Chinese-Western
Medicine pilot programme; and the setting up of Phase 1 Clinical Trial Centres
in the two teaching hospitals.

The Committee considered and gave advice on a wide range of clinical
management issues, including relating to the introduction of new drugs and
indications to be covered by the Samaritan Fund from 2014-15; management
of the HA Drug Formulary; HA's guidelines on Resuscitation and guidance
on advance directives; hospital accreditation; framework on credentialing
and defining scope of practice in HA; Enrolled Nurse training; development
of the Complaints and Feedback Management System; HA's support for
the administration of an additional Licensing Examination of the Medical
Council of Hong Kong in 2014; winter surge preparation; annual review on
key performance indicators; and the patient service and care risks and the
proposed risk reduction plans for 2015.

The Committee also received progress reports of various clinical programmes,
including the Service Management Report of the Chinese Medicine Centres for
Research and Training under the tripartite arrangement; Filmless HA Project; HA
Patient Experience and Satisfaction Survey; Patient Engagement Study 2013;
and progress of various public-private partnership service programmes.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-
assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Public Complaints Committee
NRRFREES

Membership List

RERE
Chairman © MrRicky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP*
xE ISEE S A
Members © Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2014)
ME BRIAKR & (B 2014 F 11 A 30 A)
Rev Canon Dr Alan CHAN Chor-choi
BRAf= A SR AR A

Dr Jane CHAN Chun-kwong (from 1.12.2014)
BRE VLB (#2014 € 12 A 1 A#E)

Mr CHAN Shu-ying, SBS, JP
PRAGIEHSE A

Ms Christine Barbara CHAN So-han
PREMZ L

Mr CHAN Wing-kai (from 1.12.2014)
BRI AE (B 2014 %F 12 A 1 H#)

Sister Nancy CHEUNG Chu-kin (up to 30.11.2014)
RIE RS (B FE 2014 F 11 A 30 H)

Ms Peggy CHING Pui-ki (from 1.12.2014)
RME L+ (B 2014 F 12 A1 HE)

Mr CHOI Chi-sum
Mr Antonio CHU Lok-sang
REEEFRE

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BEEHX

Mr HO Sau-him

] <SPk S A

Mr HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP (from 1.12.2014)
HFRBR ST (B 2014 4F 12 A 1 A#E)

Mr Samuel HUI Kwok-ting
B4

Mr KWOK Jing-keung, SBS, FSDSM (from 1.12.2014)
BRI (2014 F 12 A 1 HE)

Mr KWOK Leung-ming, SBS, CSDSM (from 1.12.2014)
WAL (B 2014 F 12 A 1 A#E)

Mr Alex LAM Chi-yau

MEREE

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (passed away on 17 April 2015)
BB (R 2015 F 4 A 17 HEHH)

Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim*
ENBREE £ *

Dr Agnes LAW Koon-chui, JP
EERE LT

Ms Maggie LEUNG Yee-mei (from 1.12.2014)
REBIE (B 2014 F 12 A 1 HAE)

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, JP*
REFHIX >

Dr MAK Sin-ping, BBS*

BIEFEE

Mr Simon MOK Sai-man, MH (from 1.12.20714)
EWR %A (B 2014 F 12 A 1 A#E)

166 Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015



Appendix 3
B 8% 3

Prof WAN Chin chin
j}%-‘a—-;a—

Mr WONG Kwa|—huen, JP (upto 8.1.2015)
FHEESR A (BiFE 2015 F 1 A8 H)

Dr WONG Kwok-chun (up to 30.11.2014)
SRERIELE (BE2014F 11 30 H)

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo, MBE

EHHBEMZ L
Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIt
Ms Lisa YIP Sau-wah, JP*
ERFELL
* Panel Chairman
*/NBEFE
Terms of Reference RiEEE
1. The Public Complaints Committee (PCC) is the final complaint redress 1. ARKHEZEE (ZE®) 2BREEER (BER) A%
and appeal body of the Hospital Authority. IREVIR AR TR I _EERH ¢
2. The PCC shall independently : 2. EHEEEBIM
(@) consider and decide upon complaints from members of the public @) FTHEMFAABRATHES  SLBFEVNEE
who are dissatisfied with the response of the HA/hospital to which B/ Bt - BRFAHEERBENRE UK
they have initially directed their complaints.
(b) monitor HA's handling of complaints. (b) EERBEERURFHEE
3. Pursuant to Para 2 above, the PCC shall independently advise 3. ﬁiﬂﬁj: 155 2 BRFmiiBieE - ZE SR BMARER
and monitor the HA on the PCC's recommendations and their RS - WERERMNMET
implementation.
4, In handling complaint cases, the PCC shall follow the PCC Complaint 4. %8 EE?IE&DJHI“H  BREE B TRIEETNIR
Handling Guidelines (Annex) which may be amended from time to time. FrEIEES|
5. The PCC shall from time to time and at least once a year, make reportsto 5. ZE&®& iEEHﬁI?Q\i RABERRERRRAL
the HA Board and public, including statistics or raising important issues ERTIE  BERXBEENSTHTREERE -

where applicable.
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Annex

Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases in the Public Complaints

Committee (“the PCC")

1. The PCCis an appeal body within the Hospital Authority (HA) to consider
appeals made by the public relating to its services. Based on its Terms of
Reference, the following are guidelines set by the PCC to facilitate the
handling of complaints.

2. The PCC shall not normally handle a complaint:

(a) if the complaint relates to services provided by the HA more than
2 years before the date of the lodging of the complaint, unless the
PCC is satisfied that in the particular circumstances it is proper to
conduct an investigation into such complaint not made within that
period;

(b) if the complaint is made anonymously and/or the complainant
cannot be identified or traced;

(c) if the complainant has failed to obtain the proper consent of the
patient, to whom the services were provided, in the lodging of the
complaint (this restriction will not be applicable if the patient has
died or is for any reason unable to act for himself or herself);

(d) if the subject matter of the complaint has been referred to or is
being considered by the coroner;

(e) if the complaint relates to a matter for which a specific statutory
complaint procedure exists;

(f) if the complainant or the patient concerned has instituted legal
proceedings, or has indicated that he/she will institute legal
proceedings, against the HA, the hospital or any persons who
provided the services (in any event, the Committee shall not
entertain any request for compensation);

(g) if the complaint relates to dispute over the established policies
of HA, for example fees charging policy of the HA in respect of its
services;

(h) if the complaint relates to an assessment made by a medical staff
pursuant to any statutory scheme whereas such scheme provides
for a channel of appeal, for example, the granting of sick leave
under the provisions of the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance,
Cap. 282;

(i) if the complaint relates to personnel matters or contractual matters
and commercial matters;

(j) if the PCC considers that the complaint is frivolous or vexatious or
is not made in good faith; or

(k) if the complaint, or a complaint of a substantially similar nature, has
previously been the subject matter of a complaint which had been
decided upon by the PCC.

3. Taking into account the following:

QU
=

the disclosure of legal privileged documents in an open hearing;
the disclosure of personal data in an open hearing;

the PCC is not a judicial or quasi-judicial body;

an aggrieved party has other channels to seek redress; and

the PCC should not duplicate the functions of other institutions
such as the courts or the Medical Council;

the PCC considers that its meetings shall not be open to the public.

g

o

)
— = —
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4. In considering the merits of a complaint, the PCC may from time to time
obtain expert opinion by medical professionals or other experts relating
to the subject matter of the complaint. If the PCC considers appropriate,
it may also invite the complainant, the patient, the medical staffs or any
other relevant persons to attend an interview.

(The above Guidelines on the handling of complaint cases may be amended

from time to time as appropriate.)

Focus of work in 2014-15:

In 2014-15, the Public Complaints Committee held 17 meetings and handled
a total of 281 cases, of which 206 were related to medical services, 39 related
to administrative procedure, 28 related to staff attitude and eight others. In
addition to the handling of appeal cases, the Committee also advised on HA's
complaint handling policies to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
the Authority’s complaints system, and make recommendations for system
change and improvement of healthcare services. Regular internal and external
communication programmes were conducted to enhance the transparency
and credibility of the Authority’s complaints system and the Committee as the
final appeal body. Through its Secretariat, the Committee also shared important
lessons learned for risk management and enhanced the complaint handling
skills of frontline staff through regular specialist complaint management
training including applied mediation skills training.
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Staff Appeals Committee
BHELREEE

Membership List

RERE

Chairman © Mr Peter LO Chi-lik

xEE BENTE

Members : I\/ls Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP

RE HEEZT
Mr Lawerence LEE Kam-hung, JP
TEBEE
Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RRERSTE

Terms of Reference

1. To consider and decide upon appeals from staff members who have

raised a grievance through the normal internal complaint channels and
who wish to appeal against the decision made.
2. The Committee shall :

(@) consider whether the appeal cases need further investigation by
the management;

(b) direct the appeal cases to be investigated;

(c) have access to all relevant information required from the
management for making a decision;

(d) ensure that appropriate action is taken; and

(e) reply to the appellant.

3. The Committee’s decision shall represent the HA's decision and shall be
final.
4. The Committee shall make annual reports to the HA Board.

Focus of Work in 2014-15

The Committee was set up on 19 December 2002 to hear appeals from staff
members who had raised grievances through the established channels of
HA but who wished to make further appeal against a decision made. The
Committee comprises individuals who are not staff members of HA.

In 2014-15, the Committee considered six appeals including a case carried
forward from the previous year. Among the five cases received this year,
the Committee did not handle one case as the appellant had instituted
legal proceedings against HA. The Committee found that in all cases the
complainants had fully presented their cases, and the relevant evidence had
been carefully gathered and considered thoroughly by the HA management.
The Committee deliberated that the conclusions reached were justified.
Appropriate observations by the Committee in the process of investigations
were duly passed on to the management teams in question for follow up.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Supporting Services Development Committee

3

ZERZERESE

Membership List
RERE

Chairman

EE

Vice-Chairman

EES -

Member

BB

Terms

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
BE B A

Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
Bt

Prof Edwin CHAN Hon-wan
PRE B

Dr Andrew CHAN Ping-chiu, BBS
BRIAEIE L

Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
Dr KAM Pok-man
HigxE+

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (passed away on 17 April 2015)

BIBB S A (R 2015 4F 4 A 17 AEHY)

Ms Angela LEE Chung-yan

(representing the Permanent Secretary for Health)
FRBZL
[RERYREFLEBEFRER (FE)]

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah

RS A

Dr LEUNG Pak-yin, JP Chief Executive
RIABELE THAAH

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
RN

Dr LO Wai-kwok, SBS, MH, JP (from 22.1.2015)
EREEL (F2015F 1 522 H#E)

Ms Winnie NG

hatg R+t

Mr WONG Kwai-huen, BBS JP

Fre@i s

of Reference

Advise on the directions and policies related to the development of
Business Support Services and Environmental Protection to best support
clinical services delivery in the HA;

Review and monitor the annual capital expenditure plan approved by
the HA Board;

Review and advise on the implementation and monitoring of Capital
Works Projects in the HA;

Review and advise on the new initiatives in Business Support Services
such as improvements in supply chain management, equipment
management, strategic outsourcing and public-private-partnership of
non-core functions, and the development of supporting services for
revenue generation;

Advise on the adoption of better practices and industry innovations
related to the planning and delivery of Business Support Services and
implementation of Capital Works Projects in the HA; and

Consider periodically matters relating to risk, risk management and risk
mitigation relevant to business support services and capital expenditure
projects and other areas under the purview of the Committee.
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Focus of Work in 2014-15

In 2014-15, the Committee held four meetings to advise on the directions and
policies related to the development of Business Support Services and Capital
Planning to best support clinical service delivery in HA. It reviewed reports
on hospital security services, the enhancement of supply chain services to
clinical users in clusters, and the contracts with price adjustment approved
via Authorise and Direct granted by the Main Tender Board. It endorsed the
recommendation of the consultancy review of HA's procurement strategies and
Manual, and supported the proposed revision to the delegation of authority
limits on procurement and materials management in HA. The Committee also
endorsed the way forward for the outsourced patient food service project. The
Committee followed through the replacement of medical and engineering
equipment in 2014-15 and the plan for up to 2017-18, as well as the progress
of advertising services. It also revisited the key operational risks in relation to
business support services, pharmaceutical supplies and capital planning.

The Committee considered the formulation of the annual capital expenditure
plan, the one-off grant for minor works projects, and regular reports on
the progress of major capital works projects. It reviewed reports on the site
supervision for major capital works projects managed by HA, and the latest
updates on environmental management in HA. It supported the use of district
cooling system in Hong Kong Children’s Hospital and the replacement plan to
adopt high efficiency air-conditioning chillers in HA premises. It endorsed the
request for resumption of management and control of parts of Haven of Hope
Hospital by Haven of Hope Christian Service, and the return of a portion of land
at Ruttonjee Hospital and a store located in Prince Philip Dental Hospital to the
Government. The Committee commented on the maintenance of slopes under
management of HA and the latest development of the proposed columbarium
outside Pok Oi Hospital. It also reviewed the consultancy study on construction
induced vibration impacts on medical equipment, and the regular progress
reports from the Capital Works Sub-Committee which was established under
the Committee to oversee and advise on capital works / project related items.

As a good corporate governance practice, the Committee conducted a self-

assessment exercise in reviewing its activities in the past year according to its
Terms of Reference.
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Membership of Hospital Governing Committees

EE = AN = —
BB oZTEETNE

Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital

HEROIVEHATTRER

Chairman : RtRev DrThomas SOO Yee-po, JP

& BRAREH
Ex-officio members

&8 R E L

Bishop Ben CHANG Chun-wa

RIREEE

Mr CHEUNG Wing-fai, MH

RECIESEE

Ms Michelle CHOW Yan-wai

ARELL

Mr Richard FUNG Lap-chung

ISR SEE

Ms KO Sui-fun

Bins Lt

Mr Michael LAl Kam-cheung, BBS, MH, JP

FESRIR ST

Mr Roger LEE Chee-wah

FEERLE

Dr Pamela LEUNG, JP

e S

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH

FEIGREE

Rev Dr LI Ping-kwong, SBS

F IR

Mr Wilson MOK Yu-sang

EREkRs

Rev PO Kam-cheong

SH 50 = 1A

Mr Herman TSOI Hak-chiu

R LE

Dr WONG Fook-yee

TREEL

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, MH, JP

BEBLZL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
ERRE BB RITHAR S E AR

Hospital Chief Executive

Bl IT AR
Members : Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon

Eg ’3@
=Y

=
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Bradbury Hospice

BEEZEEPL

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Dr Joseph LEE Man-ho
FXZE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr Hubert CHAN Chung-yee, JP
PREZREL

Miss Mable Shadalla CHOW Sui-ming
BN

Dr Amy CHOW Yin-man
EFEEL

Dr David KAN

LR IE A4

Prof Samantha PANG Mei-che
TEREHR

Mr SHUM Si-ki

LT ESE A

DrVincent TSE Kin-chuen

I RE

Mr Paul WU Wai-keung
HREREE
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Caritas Medical Centre

BAZ Rt

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Prof David CHEUNG Lik-ching
SR IEHHR

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr Wallace CHAN Chi-ho
PRESREL

Mr CHAN Wai-ming, MH

PRIZRASE &

Dr Denis CHANG, JP

SREERIE L

Mr Augustine CHOI Chi-wa, BBS
Mr CHOW Yick-hay, BBS, JP
AR TE

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
pakitaat: £aa

Prof Frederick HO Wing-huen, SBS
(CIENEES €3

Dr Conrad LAM Kui-shing, JP
REE K B

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP
Mr Charles YANG Chuen-liang, BBS, JP
BEREE

The Most Rev Michael YEUNG
HIREEH

Rev Joseph YIM Tak-lung
=R

BiE
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Castle Peak Hospital & Siu Lam Hospital
SISk R/ EER

Chairman © Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP
xR BRI 5
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members © Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
ME BREZE ST E
Mr Edward PONG Chong, BBS, JP
RERISE A

Prof SHAM Pak-chung
AR

MrTSANG Hin-hong

BEREE

Ms Deborah WAN Lai-yau, BBS, JP
BERZ T

Dr Jimmy WONG Chi-ho, SBS, JP
FTHRE

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP
7 B U

Ms Nora YAU Ho-chun, MH, JP
R[22+
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Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok
FHARKKESRR

Chairman . DrAlbert WONG Chi-chiu
*E FEEIEAE
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Mrs Shelley M CHOW
ME BAEBRzt
Mr Hilbert KA Ping-wah
BRERLE
Ms Betty KO Lan-fun
BRE L
Dr Bernard KONG Ming-hei
JLRAEREE A
Mr Peter LI Lan-yiu
THBELE
Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai
FEBE
Ms Janice MORTON
Ry e+
Mr Simon TAM Chi-ming
BAREE
Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
1ol fE =+

Eg ’;@
=Y
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Cheshire Home, Shatin
DERKESR

Chairman © Mrs Linda WONG LEUNG Kit-wah
xEE FRZ2EL T
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Mrs Shelley M CHOW
ME BAEBRzt
Ms Janet LAl Keng-chok
R+
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
FF K
Dr Edward LEUNG Man-fuk
RERBE
Dr Pamela LEUNG Ming-kuen, JP
REAIREE
Prof Mark MACALPINE (passed away in May 2014)
ERFEHIE (R 2014 FF 5 AFF)

Mr Paul MAK Chun-nam
HIRm A

Ms Janice MORTON

E2 el

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
EATIE ST
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The Duchess of Kent Children’s Hospital at Sandy Bay
RAREER

RORBRBLE
Chairman
FE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Vivian LEE Wai-man
EXER G

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Prof Godfrey CHAN Chi-fung

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
SRCEHR

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong

RERSE

Mr Renny LIE Ken-jie

FEREE

Mr Gordon Gilbert LOCH Han-van
REEIE S

Ms Helen LUI Wai-hing
EERZ L

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP

EEAE

Mr Douglas SO Cheung-tak
32t

Dr Barbara TAM Sau-man
BAZE

Eg ’3@
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Grantham Hospital

SEHREMR

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
EREE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr CHENG Chun-ho

B

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
AREkE

Mr Edward HO Man-tat

Al EEE A

Prof Peggy LAM, GBS, JP
MEEZHIX

Prof Karen LAM Siu-ling
NS HIR

Dr Carl LEUNG Ka-kui

Mr William LEUNG Shu-yin
B LA

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
RKEBE L

Prof LO Chung-mau, JP

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF

Prof Sydney TANG Chi-wai
HEEHER

Prof Maurice YAP Keng-hung, JP
TR

Mr Rocco YIM Sen-kee, BBS, JP
B kA
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Haven of Hope Hospital

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Charles CY CHIU

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B

Mr Jonathan CHAN Pok-chi
PRIGE

Mr CHAU Kwok-woon

BB S

Mr Stuart CHEN Seng-tek
BRFA15 5E &

Ms Clara CHONG Ming-wah
SRR

Dr HO Wai-ip

{18 2% 58

Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
RA AR 2R

Dr LAM Ching-choi, BBS, JP
MRIERT &

Dr Andrew LUK Leung
REsEig L

Dr George NG Sze-fuk, GBS, JP

RtEEt

BiE
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Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital
BEHINEER

Chairman : MrKeith LAM Hon-keung, JP
*E WERE T
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : MsKelly CHAN Yuen-sau
jo4=] BREF L
Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
fAfENEL

Ven KOK Kwong, GBM (Passed away in November 2014)
BYOERD (R 2014 F 171 A EFt)
Mr LAl Sze-nuen, BBS, JP
REEEE L

Mr Anthony LAM Chi-tat
MEEEL

Ms May LAU Mei-mui
ElESish e

Mr LEE Ka-cheung
FRERETL

Dr POON Tak-lun, JP
EEARE

Mr SHUM Man-to, SBS
MRS

Ven SIK Hin-hung
FEOTZ=ARD

Ven SIK Hong-ming
TR B ARD

Ven SIK Ku-tay
EREER

Ven SIK Kuan-yun
FETIEARD

Ven SIKTo-ping

T8 ARD

Ven SIKYin-chi
TR A LRD

Ms WAN Yee-ling

B EL

Dr WONG Kam-chiu, MH
=IRHBEL
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Hong Kong Eye Hospital & Kowloon Hospital
BERNER RN ESER

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr LO Chung-hing, SBS

EERE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr Connie CHAN CHENG Yuk-yee, MH
PREB F ifn 18 +

Mrs Sheilah CHENG CHATJAVAL
PREBIK A 22+

Dr Jennifer CHEUNG NG Chui-yiu
SRR+

Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
KRB EL

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
ISEAE A

Ms Mavis LEE Ming-pui

M AL

Mr Louis LOONG Hon-biu
BEREL

Prof Julia TAO LAI Po-wah

PEERE EHIR

Dr WONG Yee-him

HLAGRE

Mr James YIP Shiu-kwong
Bk

Eg ’;@
=Y
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Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
HEMTFSHMARFEPIL

Chairman : Mr Philip TSAI Wing-chung, JP
xEE EoKBEAE
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Mr CHAN Kai-ming
ME PR IRRBA St A=
Mr Ambrose HO Pui-him, SBS, JP
CINGiE &t
Dr HO Chung-ping, MH, JP
fa{h - & A4
Ms Ada LAM Wai-ming
MERZ L
Dr LI Chi-kong, JP
Mrs Patricia LING WOO Sau-ha, MH, JP
MEAFE L+
Ms Clara SHEK Ka-lai
ARBLL
Mr Luke WONG Sui-kwong
|mIKHEE
Mrs Irene YAU LEE Che-yun, JP
EFEBRLZT
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Kwai Chung Hospital & Princess Margaret Hospital

HARBRRITEINER

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Ms Quince CHONG Wai-yan, JP
HERELLE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
RS #FHUX

Mr Stanley CHEUNG Tak-kwai
RIBREE

Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
WK+

Prof Hon Joseph LEE Kok-long, SBS, JP
F BB

Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
=it

Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
BRESE

Mr Henry TONG Sau-chai, MH, JP
HEBE A

Dr Peter TSOI Ting-kwok
2l

Mr William WONG Kuen-wai, BBS, MH
=B

MrWONG Yiu-chung, MH
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Kwong Wah Hospital & TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital
BEBRARRE=FEXLEMR

Chairman © Mrlvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS
& MEERIB SR
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members © Mrs Viola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS
ME PRI A+
Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
BRI TE L
Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
RUEES A

Mr CHOW Chun-fai, BBS, JP
URIESEE

Dr CHU Chor-lup

RAILE

Ms Maisy HO

Al EREE 2

Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
F=TiEt

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEBE LT

Mr Billy LEUNG Ting-yu, BBS
REFIRE

Mrs Katherine MA

BREE =zt

Mr Stephen NG Chi-wing, BBS
Mr Sunny TAN

BRAE1E SE &

Ms Wendy TSANG Wan-man
BRERLL

Mr Vinci WONG

FEWEE

Mr Stephen YUEN Kwok-keung
REIREE
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MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre

HIRSERAE

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Prof Chetwyn CHAN Che-hin
RS #FHUX

Mr Calvin CHAN Man-yin

R ERE

Mr Vincent CHENG Wing-ming
ERERERSE A

Prof Kenneth CHEUNG Man-chee
R AR

Dr Daniel FANG Tak-sang
Pakitaat: £aa

Dr Edith MOK KWAN Ngan-hing, MH
SRS

Mr NG Hang-sau

HAMERE

Mr Sammy NG Wai-tong
REZSEE

Mr Adrian WONG Koon-man, BBS, MH, JP
EV D vt

Mr David YAU Po-wing
MBS E

MrYU See-ho

RETHF A
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North District Hospital
Pl

Chairman © Ms CHIANG Lai-yuen, JP
xR BBt
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Mr DENG Kai-rong, MH
ME Bt E
Mr HUNG Siu-ling
AR A
Mr LIU Sui-biu
B
Mr MA Ching-nam, JP
SEtaEE
Ir George PANG Chun-sing, MH
2l vt
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEKELE
Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
BRag AR S
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North Lantau Hospital

AL AU L EEB5e
Chairman : Ms Sandra LEE Suk-yee, GBS, JP
xEE FREL LT
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members © Mr CHAN How-chi, MH
ME BREZE ST E
Ms CHAU Chuen-heung, BBS, MH, JP
FAEEL+
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
EHRE

Ms Elizabeth LAW Kar-shui, MH
Esei/ME

Prof Raymond LIANG Hin-suen, SBS, JP
RERHIE

Eg ’;@
=Y

=

E BER 2014-2015

189



Appendix 4
Mesx 4

Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital
ESST U

Chairman © Mr Lester Garson HUANG, JP
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members . Father Brian R BARRONS
ME F AR
Dr Gabriel CHOI Kin
ZREREE
Ms CHOW Lai-hing
ARzt
Mr John J CLANCEY
Dr Nancy FOK
EBIEAL
Dr Lawrence LAl Fook-ming, BBS, JP
FEtERA
Dr LAM Siu-keung
Ik B
Mrs Marigold LAU, SBS, JP
IR+
Sister Marilu LIMGENCO
M
Ms June LO Hing-yu
BEGLLT

Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
ShEL A

Rev Edward PHILLIPS

Mrs Elizabeth WONG YEUNG Po-wo
EHBEML T

Sister Marya ZABOROWSKI
BREER
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Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital
REABRAAFI=ER

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Lawrence LEE Kam-hung, JP
TEW/EE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Ms Ophelia CHAN, BBS

PR H ez £

Mr Roland CHOW Kun-chee
B ek

Rev CHU Yiu-ming

Ny L

Ms KO Siu-wah, SBS, JP
BRELL

Mr Alex KONG Chack-ho, MH
DEREAE

Ms Ka-shi LAU, BBS
BlErRi+

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FEIESE

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEIGRSTE

Dr Yvonne LUI Lai-kwan
EEAELT

Rt Rev Dr Thomas SOO Yee-po, JP
BRIAREH

Prof TAM Sheung-wai, GBS, JP
BRI

Mr YEUNG Po-kwan, JP
BB

Dr Dominic YOUNG Ying-nam
T IEr B

Eg ’;@
=Y

=
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Pok Oi Hospital
Bk

Chairman : DrHO Wing-tim, MH
xEE (GES/N e
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Mr Michael CHAN Kee-huen
ME PRECIE
Mrs CHAN LI Lei
BRFge L+
Dr CHONG Man-yuk
e
Ms Yvonne CHUA
E30S hot
Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH
MEEELE
Mr PANG Siu-hin
ZOOTERE
Mrs Winnie TAM KEUNG May-chu
BEERLZL
MrTSANG Yiu-cheung, MH
BRELE
Mr Alan WONG Wai-kai, MH
FEEEE
Ms WONG Wai-ling
=ERL L
Mr Chris YIP Yiu-shing, MH
BERRIR S A4
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Prince of Wales Hospital
BIETHT R £ &80k

Chairman © MsWinnie NG
xEE (b 2lisE g
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : Prof Francis CHAN Ka-leung, JP
jo4=] BRER 20X
Mr Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP
FOHRRE S A4
Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FRELL
Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
KB
Ms Maggie NG Miu-man
(=g G
Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu, MH
HEIRELE
Dr WONG Kwai-lam
mIEME L
Prof Richard YU Yue-hong, SBS
RTRHIX

Eg ’;@
=Y

=
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Queen Elizabeth Hospital
(EEIPONS {0

Chairman : MrJohn LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
& TRME A
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members . DrEliza CHCHAN, SBS, JP
ME PREEEL
Ms Maisy HO
AR A £
Dr James HWANG Shu-tak, BBS

mEE A

Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung

EHE L

Mr Emmanuel KAO Chu-chee
mEBTE

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (passed away on 17 April 2015)
RIENESEE (R 2015 &F 4 A 17 HEF)

Mr David MUI Ying-yuen, MH, JP
1EREIREAE

Ms Winnie NG

hElgz+

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BEAZT

Dr YU Yuk-ling
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Queen Mary Hospital & Tsan Yuk Hospital

ey = == =
REERRETER
Chairman Mr PANG Yiu-kai, SBS, JP

xE
Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

TIRESRE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr Steven J CANNON (from 26.6.2014)
ERREBEIB L (4 2014 %F 6 A 26 H#E)
Mr Stephen CHAN Chit-kwai, BBS, JP
BREER o

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
BB sR e

Prof John LEE Chi-kin, JP

TR

Prof Gabriel Matthew LEUNG, GBS, JP
REEHIR

Mr Joseph LO Kin-ching

BleEkaE

Prof Amy TSUI Bik-may (Resigned on 17.6.2014)
BREZEHIE (R 2014 F 6 A 17 HEHE)
Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BEAXLT

Mr Paul YU Shiu-tin, BBS, JP
RIEREE

Eg ’;@
=Y

=
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Rehabaid Centre

ERENRERPIL

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Thomas Joseph MULVEY, JP
BREREE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Dr Joseph BOSCO

MAHEL

Hon Judge Kevin Anthony BROWNE (Resigned on 3.9.2014)
MRS (R 2014 F 9 A 3 ABT)
Ms Kelly CHAN Yuen-sau

BRES L

Dr Eddie CHOW Siu-lun

BPIkmEEE 4

Mr Ricky FUNG Choi-cheung, SBS, JP
IHEE A

Mr Robin GILL

BT

Hon Judge Patrick LI Hon-leung
FHRELE

Dr Leonard LI Sheung-wai

FERE

Ir TSANG Chiu-kwan, JP

BRARESE A

Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015



Appendix 4
Mo % 4

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals
;I oBlR R EERER

S,

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
ZxBIEL

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Ir Lillian CHAN Lit-yee

REUG 22+

Mr Raymond CHOW Wai-kam, JP
AREkE

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
ERFRE

Mr Edwin LEUNG Chung-ching
2B A

Dr LIU Ka-ling

BEieEs

Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
ERES A

Mrs Gloria NG WONG Yee-man, BBS, JP
REKELRL

Mr PANG Yuk-ling, SBS, JP
TZEESRE

Mr Burji S SHROFF

Mr Noshir N SHROFF

Mrs Purviz Rusy SHROFF

Mr SHUM Choi-sang, SBS, JP
SAEEE

Ms Anna TANG King-yung, BBS, MH
B 2+

Mr Richard TANG Yat-sun, BBS, JP
B H #2554

Ms Alice WOO Wai-see
REBx+

BiE
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Shatin Hospital
ek

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mrs Yvonne LAW SHING Mo-han, JP

ERRMA L

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B

Mr Jeckle CHIU

EiRlbeietan

Mr CHIU Man-leong
BXEE

Dr Andy CHIU Tin-yan
BRI &

Prof Joanne CHUNG Wai-yee
BEEHX

Mr FONG Cheung-fat, JP
HRERE

Prof LAM Tai-hing, BBS, JP
MAREHE

Mr LAU Kim-hung

215 e
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Tai Po Hospital
Kbt

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP
BEERELE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Ms Nancy KIT Kwong-chi, JP
BsFt

Dr Benny KWONG Kai-sing
BRI L

Mr Gregory LEUNG Wing-lup, SBS
P SVt

Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP

Mr Arthur LI Ka-tat

BRERE

Mr MAN Chen-fai, BBS, MH
XEBEAE

Ms Gigi PANG Che-kwan
TIEEXL

DrYIP Ka-chee

HEmE

BiE
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Tseung Kwan O Hospital
% R e

Chairman . DrEliza CH CHAN, SBS, JP
xR BBEE LT
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : MrRaymond CHAN Wai-man
jo4=] BRIE A
Mr Clifford King CHIU
BB EE
Mr KAN Shun-ming
RS A4
Prof Joseph KWAN Kai-cho
BRI
Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
BFRHER
Mr Stephen LIU Wing-ting, JP
Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah
BRER
Mr WAN Yuet-cheung, BBS, MH, JP
IR E S A
MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FHEERE
Mr WONG Kwing-keung
EV kS

200 Hospital Authority Annual Report 2014-2015



Appendix 4
Mo % 4

Tuen Mun Hospital

EPIESk

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr William CHAN Fu-keung, BBS
(=L s

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

Bl TR

Prof Alfred CHAN Cheung-ming, SBS, JP
BREERFUX

Dr Charles CHAN Kam-kwong
BREEIE L

Dr Shirley IP Pui-seung

ESTyGE Lo

Mr KU Moon-lun

Eb] e

Mr Lothar LEE Hung-sham, MH
Dr Sam WONG Chun-sing, MH
FIREEL

Ms Lina YAN Hau-yee, MH, JP
BRIDRL L

Mr Boris YEUNG Sau-ming
B EE

Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
BEkELE

BiE
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Tung Wah Hospital/Tung Wah Eastern Hospital/
TWGHSs Fung Yiu King Hospital
REBRERRERRARRE=REZMNER

Chairman © Mrlvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS

& MEERIB S 4

Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

ERRE BEREERITHARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEpT TR AR B

Members : MrsViola CHAN MAN Yee-wai, BBS

RE PRI A+
Dr Ina CHAN Un-chan, BBS
BRI IE L+
Mr Charles CHANG Juo-hwa, BBS
RCES A

Ms CHENG Lai-king

EREIR A+

Ms Maisy HO

CFibt o

Mr Henry LAl Hin-wing
FERARSE A

Dr John LEE Sam-yuen, BBS
=L

Dr LEE Yuk-lun, JP
FEBBL

Mr Billy LEUNG Ting-yu, BBS
REFHRE

Mrs Katherine MA
BB+

Mr Stephen NG Chi-wing, BBS
RERFEE

Mr Sunny TAN

BRABME S &

MrTONG Chun-wan

BIRE Sk

Mr Lincoln TSO

Bkt

Mr Vinci WONG

FERTE
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United Christian Hospital

BEEHHEEMR
Chairman
FE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr John LI Kwok-heem, MH
FEIGRELE

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
B B RITHAR AR R
Hospital Chief Executive

BEPr TR B

Bishop Jenny CHAN Kin-lai
REEEE

Mr Derek CHAN Man-foon
PR

Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
AR L

Ms Constance CHOY Hok-man
2824+

Mr Paul FAN Chor-ho, SBS, JP
SefEE A

Mr FUNG Sau-chung (Resigned on 25.11.2014)
ISR L (R 2014 F 11 A 25 HEHT)
Rev Paul KAN Kei-piu
[HEEEELA e

Dr LAM Kin-wah, BBS, MH
MEERL

Mr Marthy LI Chak-kwan
FERSAE

Rev LO Lung-kwong
[EBESCHRAM

Dr Danny MA Ping-kwan
TSR A4

Mr Wilson OR Chong-shing, MH
TIEIRE

Rev PO Kam-cheong
=Lyl

MrThomas TSANG Fuk-chuen
BRELE

Ms Nancy TSANG Lan-see, JP
BTzt

Mr Herbert TSOI Hak-kong, BBS, JP
=g bitas

Rt Rev Louis TSUI Tsan-sang
REEEH

Mr David WONG Tat-kee

Ms Grace WONG Yuen-ling

| A+

Dr Alice YUK Tak-fun, BBS, JP
RS E L

Rev YUNG Chuen-hung
SEEAED

BiE
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Yan Chai Hospital

{ZBEk

Chairman © Mrs Susan SO CHAN Wai-hang, BBS
xEE HREER L
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Hospital Chief Executive
BEPr TR B
Members : MrWilliam CHAU Chun-wing, MH, JP
ME B A
Mr Sam CHAU Chung-tung
JERRR A

Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung
P E £

Mr CHENG Yan-kee, BBS, JP
B R E S A

Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang
SRR

Mr Alex LAN Khong-poh
ERBRE

Mr Alfred WONG Wai-kin
=EREE

Mr Vincent WONG Yin-shun
FEMEE

Mr YAU Kam-ping, BBS, MH
BR8-S A4

Mrs YIM TSUI Yuk-shan
BRiREH 2+
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Membership of Regional Advisory Committees

EEAEEE

Hong Kong Regional Advisory Committee

=
=

EERLBZHEES

Chairman
*E

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

Mr CHAN Bing-woon, SBS, JP (up to 30.11.2014)
BRIAKR T L (B2 2014 F 11 A 30 A)

Mr Andy LAU Kwok-fai (from 1.12.2014; passed away on 17 April 2015)
BIBNBEE (B 2014 F 12 A1 HE i R2015F 4 A 17 AFt)

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BRERRITRARIERR

Director of Health or his/her representative

FEEFERIERR
Mr AU Lap-sing, MH
BRSZAKSE A

Mr Stephen Chan Chit-kwai, BBS, JP

BRIEE S

Dr Eric CHIEN Ping

Mr JONG Koon-sang
A

Mr Alex KONG Chack-ho, MH
IR A

Mr Steve LAN Yee-fong
EERFiE

Dr LAU Chor Chiu, MH

2T 515 &

Mr Peter LEE Kwok-wah
FEESE

Dr Vitus LEUNG Wing-hang, JP
RoKBIEL

Ms Helen LUI Wai-hing
EERLZL

Mrs Katherine MA
BRRBLZ+

Dr Jeffrey PONG Chiu-fai
EEFAIRE

Mr TSANG Wing-wah
EOKERE

Mr Lincoln TSO

RS E

Ms Catherine YEN Kai-shun
BEAXLT

Dr Paul YOUNG Tze-kong, JP
1ol fE £

Prof Richard YUEN Man-fung
R B

Mr YUNG Chi-ming, BBS, MH
SERTE

Eg ’;@
=Y

=
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Kowloon Regional Advisory Committee
NEREBHEES

Chairman . Prof Diana LEE Tze-fan
& FFHHIR
Ex-officio members . Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative
EARE BEREERBITHRARSEREK
Director of Health or his/her representative
BEEERIHARE
Members . Dr Charles CHEUNG Wai-bun, JP
ME REWIEL
Mr Charles CY CHIU
HRF L
Mr CHOW Chun-fai, BBS, JP
MIRE 4
Ms Margot CHOW Yan-tse
ARzt
Mr CHOY Chak-hung
Ms Maisy HO
AR A &
Mr HO Tak-sum, MH
fAfENEL
Mr HO Yin-fai
BB 4
Mr Chris IP Ngo-tung
ERREE
Ms Nancy LAM Chui-ling, MH
MBI L
Mrs Nina LAM LEE Yuen-bing, MH
= S
Ms LAM Yuen-pun
B+
Dr Robert LAW Chi-lim
EHREE
Mr Rex MOK Chung-fai, MH, JP
EfPiEsE A4
MrThomas Joseph MULVEY, JP
SEREE
Mr SHUM Siu-hung
MRS
Mr Stanley TAM Lanny
BARSE

Dr Hayles WAI Heung-wah (from 29.5.2014)
BmIESE A (B 2014 4F 5 B 29 HE)

MrWAN Yuet-cheung, BBS, MH, JP (up to 28.5.2014)
BARB SR (B2 2014 F 5 A 28 A)

Mr Anthony WONG Luen-kin, JP

=R A

Mr Luke WONG Sui-kwong

|mIKHEE

Dr WONG Yee-him

=R ES

Mrs YIM TSUI Yuk-shan

BURE M+
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New Territories Regional Advisory Committee

MRENBHEES

Chairman

xE

Ex-officio members
ERKE

Members
24=1

MrWONG Kwai-huen, BBS, JP
FrEEEEA

Hospital Authority Chief Executive or his representative

BREERTHRARIERR

Director of Health or his/her representative

MEEBERIHERRK

Mr Daniel CHAM Ka-hung, BBS, MH, JP

R IESEE

Miss Mable Shadalla CHOW Sui-ming

B3R/ N A

Mr FONG Cheung-fat
ARERE

Dr HO Wing-tim, MH

CEV N

Mr LAM Tak-leung, MH, JP
MESESEAE

Mr LAU Kwok-fan, MH
2B A

Mr LEUNG Wo-ping, JP
PR A

Mr LI Kwok-ying, BBS, MH, JP
TR LA

Ir Prof Peter MOK Kwok-woo
SRR

Prof Simon NG Siu-man
RIK

Mr Alfred POON Sun-biu
EITIRSEE

Mr Philip WONG Chak-piu, MH

mEREE

Prof Thomas WONG Kwok-shing, JP

T B AR

Ms Peggy WONG Pik-kiu, MH, JP

EEBIL
Mr Charlie YIP Wing-tong
EokERE
Mr Thomas YIU Kei-chung
wRag RS

BiE
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Membership of the Board of Trustees of the Hospital

Authority Provident Fund Scheme 2014-15
BREERARESIEIETEZEETMNE 2014-15

Chairman © MrJohn LEE Luen-wai, BBS, JP
EE FHHE L

Trustees : MsClara CHIN Sheung-chi
] MR 2+

Dr KAM Pok-man (from 12.9.2014)
BEXEL (#2014 F 9 A 12 HFE)
Mr Peter LO Chi-lik

mENEE

Mr Patrick MA Ching-hang, BBS, JP

Mr Raymond LEE Wing-hung
FB/ELE

Mr Alan Howard SMITH, JP (up to 14.8.2014)
S anfmd e (BiFE 2014 F 8 A 14 H)

Ms Nancy TSE Sau-ling, JP
FilEag s

Miss Janice TSE Siu-wa, JP
W NER L

Dr Ernest MA Hon-ming
SRR

Mr Barry NG Kwok-hing
REIBSEA

Dr WONG Tak-cheung
HERE

Dr Vincent YEUNG Tok-fai
THEIEEE 4
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Public Feedback Statistics
NRE RSt

Complaint / Appreciation Received (1.4.2014 - 31.3.2015)
IR EEBEFT (2014 F4818-2015F38318)

Public Complaints Committee

ABRRFEER
Nature of cases Number of appeal cases
(EEEd=1 LRERET
Medical services E&f& iR 7% 206
Staff attitude B B BE/E 28
Administrative procedure 172 ¢ 39
Others E At 8
Total number of appeal cases handled E 3 L 5F{EREH 281

Hospital Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

BRI BR EEGE

Complaint Feedback Appreciation

Nature of complaint / feedback/ appreciation cases received received received
Rk BREBERNEE RFHF BERYF HBHF
Medical services B8 AR 7% 1411 4,150 19,620
Staff attitude B B B8 /E 461 2,651 11,979
Administrative procedure {TEZ 7 355 2,906 1912
Overall performance 485K 140 1,773 927
Others HAth 32 595 11,732
Total number of hospital complaint / feedback / appreciation 2,399 12,075 46,170
BRERRBEREBAY

GOPC* Complaint / Feedback / Appreciation Statistics

EENMDYAMRSBREERT

Complaint Feedback Appreciation

Nature of complaint / feedback/ appreciation cases received received received
Rk BREBEREE RFEF EREF HBHT
Medical services B8 AR 1% 68 368 2216
Staff attitude B S R /E 63 292 1,340
Administrative procedure 7T 2 FF 22 354 125
Overall performance #285K 35 13 124 72
Others E A 1 38 740
Total number of complaint / feedback / appreciation received by GOPC 177 1,176 4,493

EENMDRMERH BREBER

* General outpatient clinics
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Statistics of the Controlling Officer's Report
EHIABBRSHTEHF

The Hospital Authority generally achieved its performance targets in 2014-15. EREEBHAB EX T -—NE-AFEHNRFBRIAE
The volume of patient care activities across the full range of services in 2014-15 & - ZZ—ME - RAFE AR ABERHHRERS =M

is comparable to the level in 2013-14. ZE—=—E—FERKFIEE -
The key activity data in respect of the Hospital Authority are: EARRERERRBNEZEENT
2013-14 2014-15

()  Access to services A ER A #Y AR %5
inpatient services 125t iR 7%
no. of hospital beds (as at 31 March) B&ftm/AEE (BH=Z=A=+—H)

general (acute and convalescent) & @& (ZAE & EE) 21,132 21,337
infirmary B&EE 2,041 2,041
mentally il #5475} 3,607 3,607
mentally handicapped % &} 660 660
overall #&5t 27,440 27,645

ambulatory and outreach services H RSNz R%
accident and emergency (A&E) services =UE = IR

percentage of A&E patients within target waiting time
FEAEREREABEENSERANB DX

triage | (critical cases - 0 minutes) (%) % 1 ¥851 (/B34 1EE —0 76 ) (%) 100 100
triage Il (emergency cases - 15 minutes) (%) % 1585 (B2 A% — 157 5F) (%) 96 97
triage Il (urgent cases - 30 minutes) (%) & A5l (B2 (A% —30 55 ) (%) 75 75

specialist outpatient services EEIFI2 IR

median waiting time for first appointment at specialist clinics
SR FTHEAE B 5 RF P AP 28

first priority patients &8 — B L2 HA < 1 week < 1 week
second priority patients 58 B ZHA 5 weeks 5 weeks

rehabilitation and geriatric services (as at 31 March)
BEREAMERS (EE=A=1+—0H)

no. of community nurses 4t FRE T2 E 449 468

no. of geriatric day places & ARt H H % 28R 619 639
psychiatric services (as at 31 March) #t8 BRI (BBE=RA=+—H)

no. of community psychiatric nurses #5118t R -2 130 129

no. of psychiatric day places #8187 B 2k 258 889 889
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2013-14 2014-15
() Delivery of services Fri= &1 iR #%
inpatient services 1Zfz iR %
no. of discharges and deaths EFTH A HiE AR &I T A2
general (acute and convalescent) EE R (ZAE & EIE) 1,005,483 1,035,951
infirmary BE&EE 3,301 3,501
mentally il % 17,662 17,140
mentally handicapped & &7} 552 531
overall 485t 1,026,998 1,057,123
no. of patient days m Akt Bk
general (acute and convalescent) &R} (ZAE & EIE) 5,798,056 5,937,588
infirmary B&EE 505,244 510,633
mentally il f&4P%EH 969,898 935,336
mentally handicapped & &} 205,890 201,122
overall #85T 7,479,088 7,584,679
bed occupancy rate (%) B ERZ (%)
general (acute and convalescent) & @R (ZAE & EE) 87 88
infirmary &R 87 88
mentally il FE4E} 74 71
mentally handicapped & [E#} 87 85
overall &5t 85 85
average length of stay (days)* T {ER R (B)*
general (acute and convalescent) & @& (EE & EE) 5.8 5.7
infirmary BER} 127 141
mentally il F&#7%} 60 57
mentally handicapped % &} 443 420
overall &5t 74 7.3
ambulatory and outreach services A &R IMNERH
day inpatient services B I Fim AR
no. of discharges and deaths HiFt AR RIFET A S 542,333 571,563
ARE services =i ZE AR TS
no. of attendances B# AR 2,241,006 2,222,901
no. of attendances per 1 000 population &+ A HHIBLZ AR 312 307
no. of first attendances for ERBEZ ARSI
triage | &5 1 X85 19,358 19,353
triage Il 2 11585 41,136 41,344
triage Il 2 11585 674,841 677457
specialist outpatient services EEFI2 IR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) new attendances 704,512 712,500
HRIPIZ (BRIR) FTEM 2 AR
no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) follow-up attendances 6,336,371 6,479,280
ERIF2 (FRIK) BIEBZ AR
total no. of specialist outpatient (clinical) attendances 7,040,883 7,191,780

EMPI2 (BRR) M2 BAR

BT EE BF W 2014-2015 21
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2013-14 2014-15

primary care services £ /& B &R

no. of general outpatient attendances EBEIFIZ T2 AR 5,813,706 5,905,262

no. of family medicine specialist clinic attendances KEEZHRFIZ T2 AKX 287,182 289,048

total no. of primary care attendances £ /B E&E 2B AR 6,100,888 6,194,310
rehabilitation and palliative care services 18 [ 4F 4% & 12 IR %5

no. of rehabilitation day and palliative care day attendances 79,483 87,250

BRI R AT E R BRE RS2 AR

no. of home visits by community nurses 1 BZa& TR a1 X2 853,821 861,961

no. of allied health (community) attendances ZRE & (112 ) #E2 AR 32,141 33,165

no. of allied health (outpatient) attendances EREE (FI2) 2 AR 2,329,162 2428470
geriatric services Z ARHRT

no. of outreach attendances % 5MNg& frig AR 633,416 642,176

no. of geriatric elderly persons assessed for infirmary care service 1,701 1,637

BEXBEERGIRNEE AH

no. of geriatric day attendances & AT B &3t AR 137,695 144,138

no. of Visiting Medical Officer attendances # % 2|2 8 £ /8 B AR 116,439 113,591
psychiatric services f&t# AR

no. of psychiatric outreach attendances # X FERIINE RIS AR 260,146 280,120

no. of psychiatric day attendances #&1# %} H i & T3t 2 AR 215,375 219,163

no. of psychogeriatric outreach attendances % #Z A BB EIIMNE RF AR 97,995 95,219

(1)  Quality of services FRIEE %

no. of hospital deaths per 1 000 population” &+ A D HEAEERILT A" 33 3.1
unplanned readmission rate within 28 days for general inpatients (%) 10.5 104

L BRMEBTR ATE BT 1% 28 RNARLSTRAI B ABL X (%)
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Appendix 8
By 8% 8

2013-14 2014-15
(IV) Cost of services R
cost distribution 2<% 16
cost distribution by service types (%) 2RI RIEI 5 BIK ARSI E 5 % (%)
inpatient (X5t AR 54.7 545
ambulatory and outreach B & &5MNE BRI 453 455
cost by service types per 1 000 population (HKSMn)
BT AORRBEERE SRR (B EET)
inpatient {5t AR 75 36 39
ambulatory and outreach B & &5MNE BRTS 30 32
cost of services for persons aged 65 or above 65 5& sk bA_E A 8 RIS
share of cost of services (%) BRFS PTG B AR H B 5 3 (%) 46.0 462
cost of services per 1 000 population (HKSMn) &F A R EI ARG A (BB B EIT) 213 223
unit costs BV R A
inpatient services 12 iR %
cost per inpatient discharged (HKS) &4 HEtim AR AR (B7T)
general (acute and convalescent) & @& (ZAE & RIE) 22,610 23,830
infirmary & 213,800 214,440
mentally il FE4E 124,400 134,820
mentally handicapped & &} 481,240 530,550
cost per patient day (HKS) IR A® B (7T)
general (acute and convalescent) & @R (ZAE & RIE) 4,330 4,600
infirmary & 1,400 1,470
mentally il FE4E 2,270 2,470
mentally handicapped & &} 1,290 1,400
ambulatory and outreach services H R IMNER%
cost per A&E attendance (HKS) SAE =& RN (ET) 1,040 1,140
cost per specialist outpatient attendance (HKS) ERIFIZERZERNK A (BT) 1,080 1,130
cost per general outpatient attendance (HKS) EBRIPIZ @R ZAER KA (FT) 385 410
cost per family medicine specialist clinic attendance (HK$) 1,010 1,100
REBSIRPIZERDENRA (BT)
cost per outreach visit by community nurse (HKS) #- Bz 8 X IMNE RS HIK A (B T) 450 490
cost per psychiatric outreach attendance (HKS) #&RIMNE BRIS &R IR (5 7T) 1,350 1,440
cost per geriatric day attendance (HKS) # A%} A 2B 8RR (BT) 1,840 1,900
fee waivers " WE R % -
percentage of Comprehensive Social Security Assistance (CSSA) fee waiver (%) 20.2 19.2
FATSREED GE) WEREE D E (%)
percentage of non-CSSA fee waiver (%) E4R1E W BRI A 9 X (%) 48 5.8

Notes : i85t -

*

Derived by dividing the sum of length of stay of inpatients by the *

corresponding number of inpatients discharged and treated.

A Refers to the standardised hospital death rate covering inpatient and A
day patient deaths in Hospital Authority hospitals in a particular year.
The standardised rate, as a standard statistical technique to facilitate
comparison over years, is calculated by applying the Hospital Authority
age-specific hospital death rate in that particular year to the “standard”
population in mid-2001.

~ Refers to the amount waived as percentage to total charge. ~

RIEBTR AT s 6 B B AR STV (E B i A i B K
BESOBBFARGHE -

BRFERERERE FBRERMARBALT
ABHIREILTE - BARE(ITCEREEER
EZFEEEFRARNBRBASLTE - ERR=
TR —FFHH R AAMAEHRE < E2—
EEENBETE - BB TRFHMIET X -

B R FBERRENE DR -
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Appendix 9
Bz 9

Statistics on Number of Beds, Inpatient, Accident &

Emergency and Outpatient Services in 2014-15

2014-15 FERKRHBE - ERKP - REZRBRPIZRIZHSTHT

Inpatient Family
No. of TotalIP npatient bed average Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds &DP occupancy length Total SOP Specialist Health
(asat31  discharges rate of stay Total (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General
March2015)  and deaths (%) (days) A&E attendances™ attendances’ attendances®  Outpatient
BRAREE ARRABLR EREA fERHA  attendances Rl FEBEZ EBBA attendances™
Institution (BZ2015F BALRARR  BREAE  THARKHE SEE (%) MY (FR)RD  EERMR
B 3A31A8) RTAH (%) (8) BN RPEAR RPAR BARY  BBAR
Hong Kong East Cluster E5 RERHE
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok 240 480 818 1990 200
sl AERERR
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 1673 144921 836 56 147409 574579 57625 132,864 398,781
RELEBXABITRER
Ruttonjee Hospital and 633 26,168 88.1 8.1 78676 128231 10452 9,736 130486
Tang Shiu Kin Hospital
BRER KRR
St John Hospital &M &k 87 3198 709 6.0 10,662 77 6,381 33073
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RERI% 278 8,716 839 144 103,850 29769 25,542
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital BT &k 160 166 923 4115
Sub-total /it 3,071 183,649 84.9 8.0 236,747 806,737 68,077 265,950 587,882
Hong Kong West Cluster % 5 F 855149
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at 133 2176 550 95 19955 28347
Sandy Bay
AORRERERARERR
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King n 3187 785 209 484 438
Hospital
RE-RHEENRR
Grantham Hospital & 2% Efx 3n 11533 7.1 125 35,052 2870
MacLehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre 110 1,089 543 213 31 2,790
Queen Mary Hospital S5E= 1,702 152,544 778 45 128,855 726,092 20949 147,192 357,382
Tung Wah Hospital RZE[z 550 2717 825 153 47,642 5790 32,069
Tsan Yuk Hospital E5 Bt 3 172 22,289 5252
Sub-total /\it 3,142 197,818 76.0 6.5 128,855 851,826 20,949 192,679 389,451
Kowloon Central Cluster f13EF &5 54
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital 324 7191 85.7 186 12,064 14214 47172
ERHYER
Hong Kong Eye Hospital &8 86 45 8,704 386 37 2722 21783
Kowloon Hospital /L& 1335 15877 843 272 84,126 146,028
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (FF 1%k 1,868 177,838 955 54 190391 702,968 7470 220,300 523476
Rehabaid Centre' ERER REFHL' 207 23415
Sub-total /it 3,572 209,610 89.9 8.5 190,391 1,026,591 7470 425,740 570,648
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Appendix 9

M % 9
Inpatient Family
No. of Total P |npatient bed average Medicine  Total Allied
hospital beds &DP oecupancy length Total SOP  Specialist Health
(asat31  discharges rate of stay Total (clinical) Clinic  (Outpatient) General
March 2015} and deaths (%) (days) ARE attendances” attendances’ attendances”  Outpatient
BRAEREE fRREEER fERBA fERHA  attendances ENAY FERE EBBE attendances™
Institution (B22015F BALRARR  REGERAZE  THLERERE SEE (EX) MY (MR)BP EERMR
He 3831R8) AN | (%) (B) #8208 BPEARY  H2AR BARY  HRARF
Kowloon East Cluster fLEERE R4
Haven of Hope Hospital ZE &b 461 7282 90.7 204 8,706 5364
Tseung Kwan O Hospital I E R &k 625 53,115 917 5] 137,551 294,158 226 114,691 318,284
United Christian Hospital ZE %k Bl 1,405 116,159 85.2 46 182,520 492,937 55556 216,908 626,666
Sub-total /)it 2,491 176,556 879 5.7 320,071 795,801 55,782 336,963 944,950
Kowloon West Cluster /1327 &[5 848
Caritas Medical Centre 32 Elx 1,206 56,054 837 66 130,870 364370 1439 78,89 302,543
Kwai Chung Hospital 2 &2 920 4215 737 656 219,904 32,207
Kwong Wah Hospital BZZH 1,206 98,366 799 44 136,456 360980 3034 160,841 208,848
North Lantau Hospital Jt KL EFT 40 1,686 802 43 81314 4463 313 24014 60,901
Qur Lady of Maryknoll Hospital E& & 236 10,693 67.7 84 65,678 837 35108 435230
Princess Margaret Hospital #5274 &6z 1733 147,791 959 52 137,003 447202 15,775 115459 385513
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 5N 8,197 883 216 863
Hospital
RE=REXIlIER
Yan Chai Hospital CEEfx 800 54,840 81.7 45 135904 211,576 2,945 86,383 263,169
Sub-total /)it 6,652 381,842 83.8 6.5 621,547 1,674,173 24,343 533,771 1,656,204
New Territories East Cluster
FRRBRYE
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 536 52,334 838 44 135275 237688 5101 101,321 235991
ERRmPRNTRER
Bradbury Hospice A EBEEH % 614 9.1 140 11 1255
Cheshire Home, Shatin P BZR E& kK 304 25 684 3212 463
North District Hospital 3t & & 589 44195 936 50 106,630 171450 5721 57538 255017
Prince of Wales Hospital B BT £ 20 1,580 153454 86.6 51 138,137 711533 47,063 178,754 455,307
Shatin Hospital 2 B &t 552 8,790 915 198 518 518
Tai Po Hospital AEEH 993 9810 835 245 389 309
Sub-total /it 4,580 269,422 85.9 73 380,042 1,121,589 57,885 340,158 946,315
New Territories West Cluster
FRABRHE
Castle Peak Hospital & L EPx 1,156 2694 65.2 108.5 139,633 24627
Pok Qi Hospital &% 2 605 41484 89.5 52 126,292 93530 32,549 05,624
Siu Lam Hospital /MEE P 500 504 9.0 4360
Tuen Mun Hospital P2k 1876 165,107 98.0 56 218956 681,900 21,993 242958 809,812
Sub-total /it 4,137 209,789 86.9 9.1 345,248 915,063 54,542 333,209 809,812
GRAND TOTAL #3f 27,645 1,628,686 85.1 7.3 2,222,901 7,191,780 289,048 2,428,470 5,905,262
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Appendix 9

Pt 5%

Notes:

9

Rehabaid Centre and Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
are Hospital Authority institutions with specific functions but have no
hospital bed.

Number of hospital beds as at 31 March 2015 is based on the Annual
Survey on Hospital Beds in Public Hospitals 2014-15.

Outpatient attendances for different clinics are grouped under
respective hospital management.

Specialist Outpatient (SOP) (clinical) attendances also include
attendances from nurse clinics in SOP setting.

Total Allied Health (Outpatient) attendances exclude follow-up

consultations provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

6. General Outpatient (GOP) attendances also include attendances from
nurse clinics in GOP setting and attendances in related healthcare
reform initiative programmes in primary care.

Abbreviations:

IP— Inpatient

DP — Day inpatient
A&E — Accident & Emergency
SOP — Specialist Outpatient

Data prepared in June 2015.
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Appendix 10
B 8% 10

Statistics on Community and

Rehabilitation Services in 2014-15
2014-15 FEMRRRERFBRSTES

Rehabilitation

Psycho-  Community Visiting  Allied Health day & palliative Psychiatric
Homevisits  Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical (Community) careday Geriatric day day
by community outreach outreach  Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances® attendances
nurses attendances’ attendances’ Service’ attendances’ EHER  BERAE EAR BEN
Institution HE  ESREN ESZAREN HEEA HBRIPBE (HE) BEAH AEER AEER
Hi BLFHRE MRREAR MERBAL  FUERE BEAR BIAR®  BERPAR RPAR® RPAR
Hong Kong East Cluster &SRB HA
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok - - - - - 81
EHAEREER
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 102910 23,89 11,105 - - 817 280 16,131 30,587
RELEXABITRER
Ruttonjee Hospital and - - - 122328 23,105 1881 5431 18122
Tang Shiu Kin Hospital
BRER RHEERR
St John Hospital &M Ek 4,805
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital RE %5 - - - - - 85 32,366
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital BT &k - - - - - 11 - 2428
Sub-total /it 107,715 23,896 11,105 122,328 23,105 2,875 38,077 36,681 30,587
Hong Kong West Cluster 5 F &5 54
The Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital at - - - - - 1
Sandy Bay
AORRERERAREER
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Fung Yiu King - - - 40,793 11,984 1935 - 5668
Hospital
RE=frHEHER
Grantham Hospital B2 &k - - - - - 150 4430
Maclehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre - - - - - 86 14,564
BRI ERNR
Queen Mary Hospital FEE & 58172 19,381 13543 - - 946 - - 18,758
Tung Wah Hospital R %6t - - - - - 269 7775 6,210
Sub-total /)it 58,172 19,381 13,543 40,793 11,984 3,387 26,769 11,878 18,758
Kowloon Central Cluster /i3 B4
Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital - - - - - 129 28%
EAHARR
Kowloon Hospital /L& 68,767 19743 8822 39,827 5513 1,749 888 2618 10350
Queen Elizabeth Hospital 71 8%k - - - 35,176 7310 1313 - 10,849
Rehabaid Centre B RER R &AL - - - - - 860
Sub-total /it 68,767 19,743 8,822 75,003 12,823 4,051 3,784 13,467 10,350
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Appendix 10

By 8% 10
Rehabilitation
Psycho-  Community Visiting  Allied Health day & palliative Psychiatric
Homevisits  Psychiatric geriatric Geriatric Medical (Community) careday Geriatric day day
by community outreach outreach  Assessment Officer attendances’ attendances attendances® attendances
nurses attendances' attendances’ Service’ attendances’ ERER BERSE EAR BEN
Institution HE  BIBNN EZEAREH HEEA EBIIPEE (HE) EEAH AEER AEER
B ELRTRE MRRBAR' NRREARS  FREBE’ REAR RPAR  RERBAR ARAR® BDAR
Kowloon East Cluster LEER B %48
Haven of Hope Hospital EE & 31,766 6,611 1,091 636 1444 5,007
Tseung Kwan O Hospital FE £k 74
United Christian Hospital £ 8%k 4 Bt 134,744 30,152 10,046 36430 10397 1152 2963 19,888 31,762
Sub-total /it 166,510 30,152 10,046 43,041 11,488 1,862 4,407 24,895 31,762
Kowloon West Cluster NEF RS
Caritas Medical Centre 3% 27 79,760 42,004 3408 129 1183 13687
Kwai Chung Hospital Z &2 85,130 25,280 2693 64,164
Kwong Wah Hospital B85 37071 48710 9,206 %6 8375
North Lantau Hospital 3 AL 5 6325 3364 209 1658
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital £ 8 45520 15,269 279 125 680
Princess Margaret Hospital #5274 &6z 85,581 38,961 6,024 782 1,241 14632
Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Wong Tai Sin 70 11,020
Hospital
RE=HEAlER
Yan Chai Hospital (- E &R 41323 5721 250 4371
Sub-total /it 254,257 85,130 25,280 189,831 24,638 5,224 4,762 52,085 64,164
New Territories East Cluster
FRRERES
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 36,087 787 27813 7390 2675 106 11,29 9376
EERAYRBITRER
Bradbury Hospice A EBEEH 65 232
Cheshire Home, Shatin 2 K # & 2
North District Hospital t & EH 36,251 11446 7231 28501 6,824 3314 330 9824 11,881
Prince of Wales Hospital BiF AT £ &5t 51,347 22,380 7745 4473
Shatin Hospital 2 Bl 21,006 5439 126 5988 13,557 16,232
Tai Po Hospital AEER 9,546 212 9 7811
Sub-total /it 123,685 41,998 13,669 78,694 21,959 10,664 6,656 34,677 45,300
New Territories West Cluster
FRAEBREE
Castle Peak Hospital & L Eft 59,820 12754 1620 13,042
Pok Qi Hospital 5% %5 2926 525 2581
Tuen Mun Hospital £FIZlt 82,855 91,197 75% 2957 2,795 13,624 5200
Sub-total /it 82,855 59,820 12,754 94,123 7,59 5,102 2,795 16,205 18,242
GRAND TOTAL 3t 861,961 280,120 95,219 643,813 113,591 33,165 87,250 189,888 219,163
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Appendix 10
Bt 8% 10

Notes:

1. Figures also include home visits and crisis intervention.

2. Figures also include home visits and consultation-liaison attendances.

3. For Community Geriatric Assessment Service, the activity refers to total
number of outreach attendances and geriatric elderly persons assessed
for infirmary care service.

4. Visiting Medical Officer attendances refer to the attendances receiving
services provided to elderly persons living in Resident Care Homes for
the Elderly under the Visiting Medical Officers Scheme introduced in

2003/04.

5. Allied Health (Community) attendances exclude follow-up consultations
provided by the Medical Social Services Units.

6. Geriatric day attendances also include attendances in Integrated

Discharge Support Program (IDSP) for elderly patients.

The activity performed in different centers and teams are grouped under
respective hospital management.

Data prepared in June 2015.

1. BFhEERM KRR

2. BFOERRGABAGD -

3. EREBEMNERBEHARREZBERRGIZNRE
AERHILERN -

4. ERIZELRBEANIRIE 2003-04 FEHEHM B2 E

A58 R ARER S REMRENEIDRY -

5. EREBER (HE) B2 AXRTEIERB LSRG HE
A BRAEEZ

6. EAMBEBERLD AR BERE REGA SRS
BIELZ AR °

B0 RESFIRGESSEAMBRERZT

BRI 2015 F 6 A#HE ©

o
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Appendix Tl(a)
B 8% 11(a)

Manpower Position - by Cluster and Institution
AFikin - R RSSO 8

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2015)"***
ZE2BAEHA (2015 £ 3 A 31 Ag=E)

Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
W R BE R Hity et
Hong Kong East Cluster % 5 5 2[5z B4 623 2,517 762 3,800 7,702
Cheshire Home, Chung Hom Kok & B2 KSR 3 56 10 116 185
Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern Hospital 486 1,673 516 2428 5,102
RELBRAIIT T

Ruttonjee & Tang Shiu Kin Hospitals 2208 & S E2 5 87 522 159 718 1,486
St John Hospital &M B 6 35 8 78 127
Tung Wah Eastern Hospital REER T 39 182 65 336 621
Wong Chuk Hang Hospital &4t 265t 2 49 4 125 180
Hong Kong West Cluster % & 7 BB 5 4 670 2,679 883 3,518 7,750
Duchess of Kent Children's Hospital 12 69 43 135 259
RARBEABRARERR

Grantham Hospital & &3t 8t 27 223 51 281 582
Maclehose Medical Rehabilitation Centre Z832 515 B 1 38 30 82 151
Queen Mary Hospital” 358 5px ° 575 1,959 651 2,478 5,664
TWGHs Fung Yiu King Hospital 8% =B 5528k 55t 15 82 29 147 274
Tung Wah Hospital REE T 39 308 79 395 821
Kowloon Central Cluster J1.58 A & 5 B 48 746 3,275 989 4,535 9,546
HK Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service 6 90 69 255 420
FBATFEBEMRKT O

Hong Kong Buddhist Hospital & & #8245 f 12 146 35 181 374
Hong Kong Eye Hospital & ERT 2505 37 73 18 166 294
Kowloon Hospital /18255 63 770 186 936 1,955
Queen Elizabeth Hospital (A A% 628 2,196 668 2,984 6,477
Rehabaid Centre 18 RERI R ERH O 0 0 13 13 26
Kowloon East Cluster J15E R B[ B 48 693 2,613 706 3,270 7,281
Haven of Hope Hospital & % 20 280 61 393 754
Tseung Kwan O Hospital # F /R gt 174 663 184 758 1,779
United Christian Hospital &% & 26 498 1,669 461 2,120 4,747
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Appendix Tl(a)

By &% 11(a)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff (as at 31.3.2015)"***
ZE2BASHAE (2015 F3 A 31 AEF) >
Institution Medical Nursing Allied Health Others Total
W R BE R Hity et
Kowloon West Cluster }1.5 75 & F B 43 1,417 5,608 1,566 7,092 15,683
Caritas Medical Centre FHE Efz 254 864 237 1,137 2,491
Kwai Chung Hospital %88 b 72 651 119 584 1,427
Kwong Wah Hospital &2 2t 340 1,208 330 1477 3,355
North Lantau Hospital 3t AU 1L &85 32 84 61 190 367
Our Lady of Maryknoll Hospital 22 & & 84 272 90 384 831
Princess Margaret Hospital #3221 &k 428 1,634 494 2,096 4,651
TWGHs Wong Tai Sin Hospital % =B s Al # T 25 240 46 303 614
Yan Chai Hospital =75 2&Fx 181 655 190 920 1,947
New Territories East Cluster 3757 5 B[ B 4% 966 3,897 1,081 5,084 11,028
Alice Ho Miu Ling Nethersole Hospital 157 571 199 901 1,828
MR R AT =B
Bradbury Hospice BB E&HH 4 3 27 5 25 60
Cheshire Home, Shatin > HZ& K #EE T 1 89 9 136 235
North District Hospital 1t [& &5z 176 674 177 809 1,836
Prince of Wales Hospital B FRETE T 5Bt 548 1,857 545 2,315 5,265
Shatin Hospital 4 H #5 42 317 74 420 852
Tai Po Hospital AIF &R 40 364 72 478 954
New Territories West Cluster 7 57 7 & B 5 49 756 3,163 831 4,576 9,324
Castle Peak Hospital & LI E&Fr 74 571 95 663 1,403
Pok Oi Hospital 18 E 2553 115 496 131 689 1,431
Siu Lam Hospital /MEE&Fr 5 127 2 300 434
Tuen Mun Hospital #F9E&Ft 562 1,969 602 2923 6,056
Total # 5t 5,871 23,751 6,818 31,874 68,315
Note: G
1. This figure excludes 1979 staff in the Hospital Authority Head Office. 1. BEFIEEBREREIEEN 1979 BRE °
2. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) basis includes all full-time & 2. AF& [FRZBAE] 5t RIEEERME 2B NE
part-time staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. BRI ERE  SXRIGRRE -
3. Individual figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. 3. HREBRIEANBIE  SEEFHEINEAEIERE
#h o
4, Manpower figures of individual hospitals/institutions include 4. ZHBREAFHESFEEEER LEAEBEBNEIEA
management staff providing hospital and cluster-wide services. =
5. Manpower providing services for Tsan Yuk Hospital is included in Queen 5 EBERBLRNRBAFESABBRERA -
Marry Hospital.
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Appendix Tl(b)
B 8% 11(b)

Manpower Position - by Staff Group
AFiRR - B E B BID%E

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2010-11 - 2014-15"

ZRZBAEHAE '
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
Medical &%
Consultant EAfIE 630 699 729 761 799
Senior Medical Officer/Associate Consultant 1,296 1,504 1,639 1,733 1,785
AR EBIRER
Medical Officer/Resident(excluding Visiting Medical Officer) 3,110 2,945 2,875 2,866 2,872
BA B E 4 (TEEEE)
Visiting Medical Officer 75 % 16 16 16 16 18
Intern BT BB E A 280 275 280 31 401
Senior Dental Officer/Dental Officer 5 7 6 8 8
SRR L TR
Medical Total: 5,337 5,447 5,546 5,695 5,884
ERABAS
Nursing #32
Senior Nursing Officer and above m## &3l 81 127 156 174 181
Department Operations Manager #BFT:E (F4LIE 163 168 176 181 182
General Z#F -
Ward Manager/Nurse Specialist/Nursing Officer/ 3,283 3,526 3,760 3,978 4,114
Advanced Practice Nurse
WEEIE/ERELT TR EREN
Registered Nurse T+ 11,971 12,293 12,722 13,258 13,848
Enrolled Nurse &l =+ 2,199 2,290 2,373 2425 2,447
Midwife/Others BhZE £, HAth 25 23 19 9 4
Student Nurse/Pupil Nurse/Temporary Undergraduate 406 447 437 434 653
Nursing student
AT SEE B ET B EESEE
Psychiatric 157¢F} -
Ward Manager/Nurse Specialist/Nursing Officer/ 436 493 510 532 545
Advanced Practice Nurse
REEIR/ ERlEL LR ERERD
Registered Nurse T+ 1,059 1,025 1,085 1,153 1,205
Enrolled Nurse &t =+ 473 509 578 614 613
Student Nurse/Pupil Nurse s=fli s+ 84 /Z gt 24 6 0 0 0 0
Nursing Total: 20,102 20,901 21,816 22,759 23,791

EEASRG
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Appendix Tl(b)
Bt 8% 11(b)

No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2010-11 - 2014-15"

ZRZBAEHE '
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

Allied Health SR8 5&
Audiology Technician #8811 & 9 7 7 6 6
Clinical Psychologist &R /O IEEE R 100 110 134 139 155
Dietitian & &R0 92 106 118 128 141
Dispenser Bl 428 971 997 1,055 1,129 1,186
Medical Technologist/Medical Laboratory Technician 1,176 1,221 1,270 1,310 1,347
BISLRR,BIELRE
Mould Technologist/Mould Laboratory Technician 27 27 27 26 26
BRI, HEERERNE
Optometrist 42 J£AD 42 60 61 67 67
Orthoptist 1% & 48 [EAD 14 13 14 14 15
Occupational Therapist B 6D 573 613 673 698 731
Pharmacist ZZFIEM 392 437 488 522 574
Physicist #1322 K 58 61 68 71 73
Physiotherapist #3254 £ 775 814 846 869 886
Podiatrist 2 AJAERD 27 31 35 35 39
Prosthetist-Orthotist & k& 24 105 116 123 126 135
Diagnostic Radiographer/Radiation Therapist 907 925 947 1,002 1,017
FRETRD, HR T Sa A A
Scientific Officer (Medical) BRI F (B 75) 67 71 76 82 82
Speech Therapist & sa/a B AD 59 69 77 82 91
Medical Social Worker & #4t T 224 265 282 301 315
Dental Technician 7 BH T & 2 2 2 3 3
Allied Health Total: 5,618 5,944 6,302 6,609 6,888
ERERASES
Care-related Support Staff’ EEXE*
Health Care Assistant & 5z AR5 8h 1% 3,087 2,878 2,630 2,395 2,179
Ward Attendant %5 BR % & 478 400 342 295 247
General Services Assistant/Technical Services Assistant 5,661 AR 8,076 9,447 11,290

(Care-related)/Theatre Technical Assistant/Patient

Care Assistant & Other Care-related Support Staff
SIERISENIE, B AR TS B (ER)

FMEHMENIE RARGIEREAEETIRAS
Care-related Support Staff Total: 9,226 10,389 11,048 12,137 13,716
BEXEASHLT
Direct Patient Care Total: 40,283 42,680 44,713 47,200 50,278

HERABEATFA

BT EE BF W 2014-2015
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Appendix Tl(b)

By &% 11(b)
No. of Full-time Equivalent (FTE) Staff 2010-11 - 2014-15"
ZRZBAEHE '

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15
Others H At
Chief Executive/Director/Deputy Director/Head 6 7 7 7 7
TIRME e BIRE
Cluster Chief Executive/Hospital Chief Executive 27 27 26 26 26
BTN E B TERAE
Chief Manager/Senior Manager/Executive Manager/ 87 90 92 95 94

General Manager

IBITHAEIE B A THAE I 1TBUS I /1Bl i8

Other Professionals/Administrator, System Manager, 1,522 1,745 1,984 2,099 2,297
Analyst Programmer etc

HihHE 1THABR - RFEE - REEFONHERFES

Other Supporting Staff - Clerical, Secretarial, Workman, 16,594 16,679 17,392 18,180 17,591
Property Attendant etc
HihEEAE-X8  ME TN EXEEESF
Non-direct Patient Care Total: 18,235 18,548 19,501 20,407 20,015
FEERAEEAFAN
HA Total: 58,518 61,228 64,213 67,607 70,293
BERAFHET:
Note: &t
1. Manpower on full-time equivalent (FTE) includes all full-time & part-time 1. AF& [ERZMAE ] 5t - BERERHME BN
staff in HA's workforce i.e. permanent, contract and temporary. Individual BB SANEREE - ARNEETANBER @ &
figures may not add up to the total due to rounding. BTN RTRE NS R B -

2. With effect from April 2014 manpower data, a revised classification of 2. #2014 & 4 A - FETEABDEEIER] ©
Care-related Supporting staff group is adopted.
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Appendix 12(a)
B 8% 12(a)

Operating Expenditure' in 2014-15
2014-15 FEHEEER

2014-15
(HK$Mn)
Cluster 2014-15 F£E
B4 (BEEET)
Hong Kong East Cluster /& & H B i 4Y 5,291
Hong Kong West Cluster 7 & 78 BB BiE 48 5612
Kowloon Central Cluster J15EH B P Bt 48 6,602
Kowloon East Cluster JUBE 5 B b B 49 5119
Kowloon West Cluster 152 78 E5 Bt 48 11,086
New Territories East Cluster $757 5 28 B 48 7,844
New Territories West Cluster 757 74 28 B B 48 6,312
Hospital Authority Head Office, and Others” EFR & B@l FiE - kH M’ 2,165
Total #5t 50,031
Note: e
1. Operating expenditure does not include capital works projects, major 1. HAEZERI U TRIEEATRNE  BEAREER
equipment acquisition, corporate-wide Information Technology B REAMBMBBEREERAABBEYEH
development projects and drug expenditure self-financed by patients. X °
2. Includes corporate-wide expenditures processed by Head Office (such 2. BELBNFERENCERS (WRBRER  Z2E

as insurance premium, legal costs, claims paid and salary of medical
interns) and on information technology, as well as resources for
supporting the Government’s electronic health initiatives.

A mEXH  BESEHFHS) MEERBHERE
BX W - ARSORBAETE FRELSFNMAER

BT EE BF W 2014-2015
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Appendix 12(b)
B 8% 12(b)

Hospital Authority Training and Development Expenditure
BREERREEIIREERRAS

Training and Development
Expenditure for 2014-15'

(HK$Mn)
Cluster 2014-15 FEZIIRBREHRX '
B 48 (BE¥EER)
Hong Kong East Cluster /& & 5 BB 48 92
Hong Kong West Cluster /5 78 & Bt it 48 8.7
Kowloon Central Cluster J188H &8 B 49 114
Kowloon East Cluster J182 5 B b 48 5.0
Kowloon West Cluster J15E 78 2B 48 96
New Territories East Cluster #7575 28 B B 48 1.2
New Territories West Cluster 57 78 &8 fr B # 6.1
Hospital Authority Head Office B/ &1 B4l =& 68.3°
Total &5t 129.5
Note: At
1. Expenditure in providing training and development for HA workforce 1. ABERBEREEIIRERN X BFE28 &
with items including course/conference fees, passages and travel, BB RENZRE  BES  BEERR - HMKES
scholarships, subsistence allowances, teaching aids and devices, ATy EmER - - REZABREMAEBRAS -
publications, trainer fees, refund of examination fee and other relevant
charges.
2. Expenditure includes a number of corporate-wide training programmes 2. FAXBEBRERBEMNEETR RAENEIRERE
and initiatives centrally coordinated by Hospital Authority Head Office. go
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Appendix 13
Bt 8% 13

Five-Year Financial Highlights
BARATNIBUEE

Financial Results (for the Year ended 31 March)
BN (BEFE38318)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEET BYEEER BYEER BYEER BYEET
Income LA
Government subvention (recurrent and capital) 50,531 45,869 43,159 38,348 34,366
BT B) (B EIE R EARML)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3423 3,182 2,951 3,030 2,994
EEE AW A (HkRE#E)
Non-medical fee income FFEZEERUA 936 892 775 685 562
Designated donations &5 18 & 230 183 149 145 143
Capital donations & A48 110 128 120 109 113
55,230 50,254 47,154 42,317 38,178
Expenditure X i
Staff costs & TR (37,235) (34,459) (32,290) (29,616) (26,904)
Drugs %) (5,328) (4,941) (4,479) (4,069) (3,639)
Medical supplies and equipment E&& ) N5 & (2,326) (2,118) (1,999) (1,846) (1,354)
Other operating expenses (include depreciation (8,964) (8,071) (7,288) (6,289) (6,039)
and amortisation)
H &R (BRI E L)
(53,853) (49,589) (46,056) (41,820) (37,936)
Surplus for the Year FE R} 1,377 665 1,098 497 242

Income by Source (in % of Total Income)

FEEWRARE (ERKRABDEL)

100%
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Others Medical fee income Government subvention
Hith BEEARA BB
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Appendix 13
Bt 8% 13

Key Financial Indicators (for the Year ended 31 March)
TEMPER (BE8F3/83108)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$SMn HK$SMn HKS$SMn HK$Mn HK$Mn

BEERET ABYEERT BYEER BYEER  B¥%EER

Medical fee income (Note 1) BEEE AU A (5£1)

Inpatient fees {EFt U & 993 943 939 1,164 1,269
Outpatient fees PI2 I & 1,285 1,258 1,218 1,188 1,169
ltemised charges A & 1,595 1,420 1,231 1,134 1,032
Other medical fees E i B8 /& UL E 88 88 81 71 66
3,961 3,709 3,469 3,557 3,536
Less: Waivers (Note 2) B} : #4% (5£2) (538) (527) (518) (527) (542)
Medical fee income (net of waivers) 3,423 3,182 2,951 3,030 2,994
BREAWA IKR#2)
Additional provision for doubtful debts charged to 52 45 45 33 37
the Statement of Income and Expenditure (Note 3)
EWR R EERAIG A RERRE (FE3)

Expenditure by Category (in % of Total Expenditure)
BFEXH (MBEXZHBEDL)

| I I I I I

90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
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10%

0%

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
. Other operating expenses . Medical supplies and equipment . Drugs Staff costs
Hih& @ BREURRERE 37 BIMA
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Appendix 13
Bt 8% 13

Note:

Medical fee income

Fees for hospital services are governed by the HA Ordinance. There are
3 categories of charges: (i) public charges for Eligible Persons (EP); (ii)
public charges for Non-eligible Persons (NEP); and (iii) private charges.
The definition of EP and NEP can be found in HA website whilst the fees
and charges schedules are listed in the Gazette and HA website.

Waivers

Under the Government policy, recipients of Comprehensive Social
Security Assistance (CSSA) can obtain free medical treatment at HA's
hospitals and clinics. Other persons with financial difficulties in paying
the medical fees and charges can apply for medical fee waivers through
Medical Social Workers. The granting of waivers is subject to meeting
the criteria under the established waiving mechanism.

The waivers granted to EP and NEP for the year ended 31 March 2015
are $466,000,000 and $72,000,000 respectively (for the year ended 31
March 2014 are $475,000,000 and $52,000,000 respectively).

Additional provision for doubtful debts charged to the Statement
of Income and Expenditure

Each year, HA would make assessment on the collectability of
outstanding hospital fees and charges (accounts receivable). As a result
of the assessment, additional provision (or reversal of provision) would
be charged to the Statement of Income and Expenditure for the year.

BREABRA

BREERNERRBERERBLEERGIRE -
BERWEAORTI=H: () FREBALHAREK
B () EFEBERALTHRRIE « A (i) WRKWE -
ERIHAERALTI RIFEFEERAL] ZES
MRBEEREERME - FARET2HBHRLEL
ERBHME -

e

ERFNBERT @ ER[RateRER] (&) B
ATAE#RE AT ERREEE - HALEBLEBER
o AMRBEBHTREERRR - BHERRE 2
HERERIEIE B RS 2 L RIERT -

HZE2015F3 A31 BBILEHRFTEERALTFIER
BEBATHERRRE D R AB 466,000,000 K& HE
72,000,000 (B ZE 2014 F 3 A 31 HAILZER#HEH 5|
RS 475,000,000 KB # 52,000,000) ©

ERXEERABMORRRE
BEREFENMEBRERFARKEM AT G (B
BRAR) © RKRHAR - B (B E) MRRBEESFE
EZFENBSEERA -

BB RHER 2014-2015
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Appendix 13
By 8% 13

Financial Position (at 31 March)
BEURR (RE8E3 831 8)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HKS$SMn HKS$SMn HKS$Mn HKS$Mn HK$Mn
BEEET BEEHET BEEHET BEEHET BEEHET
Non-current assets JERENEE 20,107 10,615 10,391 4,204 5,636
Current assets i BV &= 23,930 30,508 14,206 11,815 8,425
Current liabilities /B & & (11,227) (9,607) (6,918) (5,929) (4,795)
Net current assets REEEFE 12,703 20,901 7,288 5,886 3,630
Non-current liabilities 3ERE & & (18,994) (19,609) (6,686) (683) (658)
Net assets EEFE 13,816 11,907 10,993 9,407 8,608
Capital subventions and capital donations 5153 4610 4383 3,895 3,593
BB RE A
Designated fund f&E £ & 5077 5077 5077 5077 5,077
Revenue reserve YA & 3,586 2,220 1,533 435 (62)
13,816 11,907 10,993 9,407 8,608
Total Assets (in HKS millions)
HWEE (BEBEER)
40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
- .
5000
0
(Note) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(&)
. Placement with the Exchange Fund Cash & bank Fixed income instruments
MEESER RERBITES BEEABEIA
. Receivables, deposits & prepayments Inventories Fixed assets
PR ~ e RFENFIE =E EE&EE

Note: Exclude the placement with the Exchange Fund of HK$6,669,972,000 (2014: HK$6,408,438,000) as HA is acting as a custodian for
the Samaritan Fund.

i TREREREAMBFEESRE AFRRINEEEHE6,669,972,0007THI IR (2014: E#56,408,438,0007T) °
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B 8% 13

Key Financial Indicators (at 31 March)

FTEMBEE (KREE 3831 8)

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn HK$Mn
BEEET BEEET BEEET BYEET BYEEET
Inventories #&
Drugs &4 1,087 1,151 1,043 840 713
Other medical and general consumables 227 218 209 209 180
H i B N — OB
1,314 1,369 1,252 1,049 893
Average stock holding period (weeks)
FHFERAERD (EH)
Drugs %) 10.5 12.0 120 10.8 10.2
Other medical and general consumables 8.1 86 8.7 10.0 94

HAO BB & —REFEm

BT EE BF W 2014-2015
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The Hospital Authority is committed to environmental protection.
You may access this Report on our website www.ha.org.hk
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